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Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien
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Bank of China

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
China Construction Bank
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Certified Public Accountants
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Leung & Lau

Units 7208-10, 72nd Floor
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Central, Hong Kong
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Financial Summary

SUMMARY OF RESULTS
BZ12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
ARBTRTE ARETT AREFTT AREFTT AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Wz Revenue 21,296,534 20,985,532 22,101,871 22,487,671 23,328,991
EH Gross profit 7,051,523 7,227,800 8,140,733 7,308,387 7,779,629
B PS8 A& Profit before income tax 1,276,824 1,067,972 1,170,761 414,678 1,116,048
PSR 2 Income tax expense (398,608) (460,643) (336,256) (129,141) (199,636)
FERAM Profit for the year 878,216 607,329 834,505 285,537 916,412
KRR REE Profit attributable to equity
BHEABLET holders of the Company 878,216 607,329 834,505 285,537 916,412
ey Dividends 614,751 121,466 166,901 57,107 183,282
AR%S ARES ARES ARES ARES
RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents
REARZEF Basic earnings per share 20.33 14.06 19.32 7.18 25.46
MW12B31H
As at 31 December
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
AR¥BTRT AREFRT AREBEFT AREFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BEE Total assets 20,036,552 20,705,427 21,606,419 21,264,400 18,967,792
waE Total liabilities 7,221,075 8,665,316 10,004,016 10,427,671 10,825,624
EmiAsE Total equity 12,815,477 12,040,111 11,602,403 10,836,738 8,142,168
BeMEE&EEY  Cashand cash equivalents 2,356,350 2,076,839 1,473,317 1,804,022 1,413,929
e (BE)F5E Net current (Liabilities) (475,101)  (1,868,005)  (1,337,930) (632,403) (828,438)
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Chairman’s Statement

The year 2017 marked the 10th anniversary of the listing of Uni-
President China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together as the “Group”, “our Group”, “we” or “us”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
Group adhered to its corporate vision of “Honesty and Diligence;
Innovation and Excellence (& #)i8 - 8] ¥13K3#E ) 7. Upholding the
principle of “Honest Operation ( IEJKAL & ) ", we aim to become
consumers’ favourite and win investors’ confidence. China’s
economic development has led to consumption upgrade over times
and consumers demand better quality. In view of this, we will strive

to achieve higher customer satisfaction.

Uni-President Enterprises Corporation, the Company’s holding
company, and its subsidiaries will enter the first year after the
golden jubilee in 2018. Adhering to the goal of “High-Quality,
Reliable and Reasonably Priced Products with Good Service ( =
4 —/R38) " set by our founder Mr. Kao Chin-Yen, we will carry
out ongoing optimisation and evolve into an enterprise of “Integrity
(@) 7, “Brand (@k2) " and “Taste (5% ) 7, where “Integrity
(1% )” is the basic ethical norm, “Brand (fK2) " refers to
our dedication to creating a distinguishable brand preferred by

»

consumers, and “Taste ( @K ) " represents the grace and elegance
of our outstanding and superb brand image. We shoulder the
responsibilities of conveying our traditional virtue and belief through
our products, services, platform and culture, thereby promoting

mutual prosperity and progress with society.

In 2017, the Group recorded a revenue of RMB21,296.5 million,
representing an increase of 1.5% as compared to last year.
Due to the rising price of raw materials, the gross profit margin
reduced to 33.1%, down by 1.3% from 2016. Profit attributable
to shareholders of the Company (“‘Shareholders”) was RMB878.2
million, representing an increase of 44.6% as compared to the
corresponding period last year, which was the result of effective
management in expense control. The revenue of instant noodles
business slightly decreased by 0.7% to RMB8,162.6 million.
The market share has made a further breakthrough to 21.2%, in
which “Soup Daren (J5# A )" grew rapidly under the continuous
implementation of mid-high end instant noodles marketing strategy,
and became a significant brand priced at RMB5 and above in
the market. The revenue of the beverages business amounted to
RMB12,465.5 million, representing a growth of 2.3% as compared
to the same period of last year. “Assam Milk Tea ([ i 48

% — ¥ FEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 5
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)7, “Uni Green Tea (#i—#%%)” and “Uni lce Tea (£ —iKAL
%) " regained growth momentum and achieved satisfactory sales
performance in 2017.

DIVIDENDS

Having accounted for the Group’s overall performance, surplus,
financial condition, capital expenditures, etc. in 2017, the board of
directors (the “Board”) proposes to declare a final cash dividend
of RMB14.23 cents per share (amounting to a total dividend of
RMB614.8 million) for the year ended 31 December 2017 at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

PROSPECT

The economy of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) is
expected to grow steadily in 2018. The Group will proceed with
focused operations and brand building, and develop new products
to enhance customers’ convenience and satisfaction. The Group
will promote upgrade of lifestyle noodles products. With regard to
the beverages sales channels, it will manage and keep the products
fresh and adjust sales rhythm when necessary. In 2018, the
uncertainties on raw material price may cause further challenges to
the Group and operational strategies are required to be adjusted
from time to time, testing their adaptability to changes in the
industry. The Group will strive to maximize Shareholders’ interests.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Our Group’s steady growth is credited to every party’s support
and dedication. On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our
sincere gratitude to our customers, suppliers, business partners,
financial institutions and shareholders for their unparallelled support,
especially for all our colleagues’ efforts and contributions in the past
year.

Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien
Chairman

27 March 2018
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ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT

The GDP of the PRC increased by 6.9% in 2017 as compared
to last year, which is in line with the forecasts made by the PRC
government. Given the steady economic development, domestic
consumption continued to expand. At the same time, changes in
the global economy, such as the trade war and Brexit, continued to
expose the Group to economic and financial uncertainties.

In the industry, the instant noodles business came out of the
downturn and the overall industry started to recover. As the
beverages industry rebounded, restructuring of the industry slowed
down. Focusing on the brand operational strategy, the Group
pursued sustainable growth in the stable economy through building
a distinguishable and consumer-recognised brand image.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2017, the Group proceeded with focused operation and brand
building. After further review of major brands and products in all
categories, it removed underperforming products and concentrated
on leading brands and flavours. It devoted marketing resources
in key sectors and established strengths in particular fields, so
as to maximise marketing effectiveness for higher profitability and
competitiveness.

— ¥ EER AR 2 F Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 7
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Evolving lifestyle and improving living standards have drastically
changed consumers’ food expectation. The needs for more
diverse, convenient and tasty food affect their decision-making and
the demand leads to reform. Beside the research and promotion
for the upgrade of instant noodles, the Group extended to develop
convenient and instant food including self-heating food and frozen
fresh noodles. These products can be enjoyed by consumers
anywhere at anytime, and are designed to meet the consumption
trend for modern day life. Based on the actual market demand
for beverages, the Group adjusted the sales rhythm and set sales
targets with reference to seasonal demand. As a result, consumers
are offered with fresher products and better beverages experience.
In 2017, the Group recorded a revenue of RMB21,296.5
million, representing an increase of 1.5% as compared with the
corresponding period last year. Information about the Group’s
businesses are as follows:

Food Business

The Group adopted segmented marketing for its instant noodles
brands in 2017. Under the model, each segment team promoted
products based on prices and nature, which allowed more focused
and suitable marketing initiatives. With product development taking
into account of lifestyle changes, it is expected that more new

products will be launched.
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Instant Noodles Business

The Group recorded a revenue of RMB8,162.6 million for the
instant noodles business in 2017. As a part of the main strategy,
it eliminated underperforming products and focused on promoting
upgraded products. Consequently, “Soup Daren (%3 A )" lived
up to the expectation and achieved rapid growth, and the product
mix of instant noodles underwent improvement. Despite rising
cost of raw materials, the Group boosted profitability through
optimisation of product structure and precise management of
marketing expenses. The profit hit a record high of RMB411.8
million.

Being a leader in the product category, “Uni-President Lao
Tan Pickled Cabbage and Beef Flavoured Noodles ( #t
—ZEBEF A AM)” continued to pursue excellence
in product competitiveness and consumer experience.
The opening of the pickled cabbage factory for public visit
offered consumers the first-hand experience with the Group’s
authentic production process and stringent food safety system,
thereby promoting the core value of “Authentic Sourness and
Crunchiness (IEREE 38 ) ”. In terms of marketing communication,
it extended its reach through the drama shows “Surgeons (4t
EZE) " and “Midnight Diner OX &R &= ) ". To celebrate the 15th
anniversary of “Uni-President Lao Tan (#—%38) ", the Group
launched virtual reality videos in the fourth quarter of 2017, which
presented the production process with creative plots. It also joined
hands with Alipay to reward consumers in the “Scan QR Code &
Wingold (###5 &£ =) " promotion campaign. The “Go Home in
Chinese New Year (FEift A BIZXR) " accumulated brand assets
through viral marketing and built rapport with consumers to garner
brand loyalty.

The Group made innovations to introduce “Teng Jiao Beef
Noodles (BEMIAFAIZE) ” in August 2016 in the southwestern
region, which has been quite popular. In 2017, the Group
promoted “Teng Jiao (B#5) " as a brand nationwide. The
brand “Teng Jiao (BE#5) " focuses on the development and
innovation of the taste of Teng Jiao (a kind of pepper), to enter
into the spicy noodle market, leading consumers to enjoy the
special taste of Teng Jiao. At the initial stage of the nationwide
launch of “Teng Jiao (##E) ”, its refreshing packaging and unique
taste had attracted a large number of loyal fans. Later, through
innovative advertising and high-exposure media promotion in the
Internet popular show “Oh My General (#ZE 7 £ ) ", brand slogan
of “the feeling of the electric shock (i E A FBIERLE ) " spread
rapidly and so with the brand awareness.

i — ¥ FEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 9
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In 2017, as
the Group’s
main brand of
instant noodles
upgraded, “Soup
Daren (% &
A )" recorded
a double-digit
revenue growth
once again.
“Soup Daren (;5
# A )", adhering to the spirit of making the soup extraordinarily
well, continues to seek the brand core value of “Nourishing
Soup (JT& =5 ) ". With respect to product strength, the soup-
making technology has been improved and upgraded for many
times in pursuit of excellent quality, aiming to offer consumers
“Nourishing Soup (JLR &%) " with deep and rich flavor. In terms
of communication effectiveness, “Nourishing Soup, Soup Daren
Vitalize Your Life (JTTR % @ mEAREEMIITR) " serves as
the main slogan. The new TV advertisement uses the physical
property of “Making Soup with Soup (LAJZ 255 )" to endorse
“Nourishing Soup (7T &%) . Through carefully selected media
platforms with high-density sound exposure, combined with Youku
({BE:) “Pan-culture (32X 1{k) " for in-depth topic implantation,
“Vitality Hall (7L 88 ) ” and other promotion modes widely praised
by consumers, “Soup Daren (/%3 A)” conducted in-depth
interaction with consumers to trigger resonance, thus continuing to
enhance brand visibility and brand image.

The brand of “Imperial Big Meal (j#% X% ) " introduced a new
flavour, “Taiwan Braised Beef and Beef Tendon Noodles ( & =3
¥ AFAH) ” to the market in March 2017. With large piece of
genuine beef, refreshing and elastic tendon, and the excellent flavor,
the product has been widely affirmed by the consumers. The Group
won the trophy of “Convenience Food Innovation Award ( 75 1% & &
BIF78%) 7 in September 2017 for three consecutive years.

In 2018, the Group’s instant noodles business will focus on the
main brand to cultivate key markets. In the premise of food safety,
with improving consumer satisfaction as the goal, the Group will
make continuous innovation for improvement.

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Other Food

Self-heating food “Lazy Time (ZE &))" first introduced
“Chongaing Old Hotpot (EEZ ASH) " in 2018. Positioning itself
as “Eat Hotpot at Ease ( &2 /02 A #8) ”, it provides consumers with
oil and self-heating bag, bringing more possibilities for the Group
to explore in the new lifestyle. Another new product “Q-Fresh (Q
/NEE) " entered into the fresh cold noodles market. It is made
from selected imported wheat flour and simple ingredients with no
preservatives, aiming to provide consumers with a more convenient
way to enjoy an alternative taste in their busy lives.

Beverages Business

In 2017, the Group’s beverages business has always adhered to
the strategy of operation and brand building. In terms of product
and access, it focused on key brands and key markets, phased
out products with low margin and no future competitiveness,
strengthened the product layout in the first-tier and second-tier
cities, and actively expanded the sales network to maximize the
benefits with limited resources. In terms of sales, it kept adjusting
the sales rhythm according to the different characteristics of
seasonal consumer demand, and set different sales targets. With
the concept of appropriate level of access inventory, it strived to
improve product freshness on the market shelves, so as to bring
consumers a better taste experience. With enhancing customer
satisfaction as the basis, it adjusted the past inertia industry sales
model, resulting in the increase in effectiveness of various aspects.
In 2017, profitability of the beverages business improved and
increased significantly from the previous year, despite the pressure
of growing raw material cost. The annual earnings of the Group’s
beverages business recorded a revenue of RMB12,465.5 million,
representing a growth of 2.3% compared with the same period last
year. The performance of the major drink products are as follows:

Tea Drinks

Earnings of tea beverages business in 2017 recorded
a revenue of RMB5,964.0 million, representing a
growth of 0.8% compared with the same period
last year. During the peak season of the beverages
business in 2017, the performance of “Uni lce Tea (%t
—/K4Z) " and “Uni Green Tea (#—#4%Z5) " was
eye-catching, which has changed the gloomy haze of
sales during the past few years. The revenue of both
products began to achieve positive growth again.
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“Uni Ice Tea (#t— K41 %%) ” adheres to the brand attitude of “Stay
Young for Ever (B &&EMRBR) ". Through the popular youngsters
games, it has attracted consumers of the post-95 generation.
By working with the popular mobile game “ Battle of Balls (Ek
BRAEEL) 7, it took advantage of the game platform resources,
such as product and online game implantation, offline tournament
cooperation and other forms, to precisely target consumers.

“Uni Green Tea (£t —#%Z5) " continues to optimize product
strength, and its marketing is focused on young consumer
groups. With the implementation of the brand proposition of
“Close to Nature (¥t B A) ", it integrated platform with high
consistence with the brand to conduct in-depth cooperation, and
introduced the consumer activity of “Plant Trees with QR Code
(85 _EZRFEHT) ”. With integration of young attributes, including
green public welfare, celebrity advocates and fans support, it fully
stimulated the positive energy of the fan economy. By donating to
plant Haloxylon ammodendron trees in Alashan of China, it created
entertaining public welfare activities for the public to participate.

“Classmate Xiaoming (/NE R Z) ", with
“Seriously Funny (RE %) " as the brand
core, strengthened the national appeal for
“Cold Tea (/23%5) " in 2017, and carried
out deep binding with Tencent QQ family for
whole-platform cooperation to jointly create
funny content and in-depth interaction with
consumers. In 2017, through sponsoring public
benefit football activities, continuous campus
promotion, and carnival game interaction, deep
communication has been established with core
consumers, thus making the products real small
partners of students. The activity at the same
time won the gold award of Great Wall Award-
Innovative Marketing in 2017.

In 2017, the new brand, “Taimoxing (Z=E M) ", with the
differentiated Thai style lemon tea flavor, provided consumers with
an alternative choice. Its promotion was focused on the annual
theme of “Irresistibly magic flavor, too good to stop it (ARKAK
BEME R =) 7, and Internet icons have been invited for
word-of-mouth advertising. With unique positioning and magic
packaging, the brand gained widespread publicity.

/I 2 #— ¥ B R B R 2 F Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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In 2018, through the optimization of process technology, “Uni
JKATLZE)” and “Uni Green Tea (Ht —4%Z5)” will
improve the taste of products and enhance popularity through

Ice Tea (%t —

new packaging. “Classmate Xiaoming (/N Z £ ) " will strengthen
the “cold brewing process (/238 T#)" technology to ensure
the stability of product flavor. In terms of product marketing, it will
continue to promote in campus, and strengthen brand equity in a
humorous way, to attract new customer groups. “Taimoxing ( 2= &
%) " will introduce the Thai-style lemon juice and tea processing
technology, for the continuous improvement of product strength.
“Magic (B ) " tone of communication will be used in marketing
to differentiate “Thai-style Magic (Z==\EE %) ”. By conforming to
the trend of consumer upgrading, in 2018, the tea and beverages
business will make the layout for the new category of chilled tea,

to lock the freshness by freezing and launch the products on the

markets of key cities in eastern China.

Juice Drinks

In 2017, the Group’s fruit juice business recorded a total revenue
of RMB2,038.9 million. Focusing on key brands and key markets,
“More Juice Series (§—% R7t) " focuses on “Uni More Orange
Juice (4 — 8% ) " with “Haizhiyan (8 2 5 ) ” concentrates on
lemon flavour to create better profitability.

In 2017, “More Juice Series (1 —2% %7t)” continued to focus
on the operation of orange-flavor of “Uni More Orange Juice (£t
— 8% )", and used different ways to interpret the meaning of
“Beauty (JZ52) " and adhered to taking “More Vitamin C, More
Beauty (%C%JZ52) " as the brand principal axis. Through the
trend of poetry and culture, it created beautiful poetry bottles to
attract consumers’ attention and stimulate their desire to share.
Through the crossover with mobile phone brand Vivo, it made
a strong launch of “Bubble Run (#RZEEH) ", a large-scale
promotional activity to interact with customers and deepen their
brand impression.

% — ¥ EE R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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In 2017, the brand strategy of “Haizhiyan (&2 &) focused on
the lemon flavor, integrated marketing successfully connected artist
resources, Youku (fE) platform, sports application software
resources and sports event resources, etc., so as to promote
“Take a Refreshing Walk to the Sea (JE&8xE £ AX&) ", and form
a “Deambulation (EL:E &) ” ecological system with “refreshing
(%) " as the core. A large-scale sport walking city competition
“Take a Refreshing Walk to the Sea (JE5&E £ AX/8) " that offered
active experience was organised by the Group, so as to promote
the brand appeal of “Instant Refreshing (B#fE;E3E) . In 2018,
Haizhiyan will continue to sharpen the brand
image by centering on “Sports + Tourism (f2 5
+J&3%) ”, and extend the competition of “Take a
Refreshing Walk to the Sea (JEZ&E EAX8)”"
to more cities, and at the same time, cultivate
community strength with the “Starfish Plan (/&
E:T2])” and seek innovation marketing by
collaborating with more brands, so as to implant
the attitude and culture of “refreshing ()&
3%) " into the hearts of more consumers, and
constantly accumulate brand assets.

In 2017, “Seasonal Drinks (X#& 4 Z) " emphasized on brand
youth and improving brand preference. The new packaging
injected youthful vigor into the brand. And the “Snow Pear Cartoon
Expression Package Design Contest (Z/Fl-KEKRIBEEHRET K
) " which interacted with the young group has been favored by a
wide range of young consumers. The public welfare activity “Love
Calculus (BB F& %) ” has been held for three years to promote
and deepen the warmth and caring value of the brand.

Combined with popular international fruit juice trends, “Fighting (7T
%) " bubble juice drink was launched in the market in June 2017,
featuring lemon mint taste. The taste is based on world classic
non-alcoholic cocktail Mojito (MOJITO), with the positive energy
brand name of “Fighting (%) ", and the smooth refreshing
taste of lemon, mint and bubble, the product has been popular
among consumers once launched. In addition to the package of
polyethylene terephthalate (PET) plastic bottles, canned products
had been introduced for the access of catering layout in October
2017. It worked successively with the “Chongging Hotpot Festival
(EE M MHET) 7, and branded hot pot restaurants recommended
by “A Bite of China (F 4 _EHHE) ", to associate products and
catering scenes, and gradually creating a new brand image of a
food partner in the hearts of consumers, thus leading the new
fashion of juice bubble drinks.

#i— ¥ EER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Looking ahead into 2018, the Group will further improve the
strategic distribution of fruit juice, focus on resources, continue
with brand promotion, seek improvement through innovation in
product strength, and to introduce fruit juice products of different
temperature and concentration, so as to meet the diverse needs of
consumers, and move towards a healthy and high-quality path with
a richer combination of fruit juice products.

General Beverages Business
Milk Tea

Sales of milk tea products rebounded in 2017 and returned to
positive growth. The competition pattern of milk tea is getting
stable. The Group adjusted sales rhythm of the milk tea business
by changing the management of freshness, to provide customers
with more fresh products, so as to improve consumer satisfaction.
In 2017, the Group’s milk tea business income achieved a growth
of 19.3%, with a market share of 71.8%, maintaining the leading
position in consecutive years.

“Uni Assam Milk Tea (#—Fi#E#) ” is promoted by centering
on “Good Mood (#F:031&) ”, to explore the youth market. The
brand proposition of “Smooth and Good Mood ( JIB/&#F 0 iE )
has been changed into a good mood that you can experience at
any time, and the annual activity of “Good Mood Everywhere (X
OB BRFEK) ” has been organized. The “Dialect bottle ( 75
=JR) " interacts with the customers through “Fly with Dialects
and Travel with Good Mood (&7 & % R R - & 018 =R 1T) 7.
Network popular languages in dialects are shown on bottles
through the technology of
augmented reality to let
consumers spread their own
good mood. The advertisement
with the joint performance of
Ms. Guo Caijie (3B%2) , the
spokesperson of the brand,
and “Good Mood Factors
(470 1EAE) " were added
with good mood element in
dialects. With brisk and catchy
melody, the advertisement
was targeted to broadcast on
the TV shows and websites that are popular among youngsters.
With the in-depth cooperation with Bilibili, songs of cover version
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were collected online. Quadratic-element milk tea stores were built
offline. The display of youth image and funny interaction are favored
by consumers. In February 2017, “Assam Rock Salt Cheese ( Fi]
ENEEZ L) mik tea was launched in key markets, and
with the live product launch conference of “With nice looking and
cheese together, Good Mood comes along (BEEE =+ #H
#705E) 7, by taking advantage of fan economy, the new product
was displayed in an all-rounded way, giving young consumers a
distinctive experience.

In 2017, “Assam Small Milk Tea (P& /NIIZE) ” continued to
focus on the operation during hot drinks season, and introduced for
the first time, i.sharing, from Taiwan, as the theme to achieve cross-
strait cooperation. “Sharing Popo ( E 5 %)% ) ” that is favored
by the Taiwanese had a warm-hearted cooperation with “Assam
Small Milk Tea (P EE#/NIIZE) ” and joined hands with a popular
New York suitcase brand, designed by the international renowned
designer Daniel Wong, to promote the brand image in a more
fashionable, modern and innovative way, creating a distinguishing
marketing model.

In 2018, the Group’s milk tea business will continue to be
committed to the upgrading of product strength and marketing.
The image of “Good Mood Factors (#F/2EE %) " that is favored
by consumers will be utilised in the packaging and communication,
to strengthen the brand image of “Good Mood (#F/0:&) ” of “Uni
Assam Milk Tea (%t —FiBE#) .

Aqua More

To cater the needs of target
consumers, “Aqua More
(/K# % )" combined its
interesting packaging with the
fresh taste of lactobacillus. In
2017, it focused on its core
brand proposition — “Interest
Your Boringness (i# {R 8
Z )", created a brand
image of “No Boring but
Interesting (N Z 1K - B i) "
in the minds of consumers,
making it a pleasure to drink
water. The focused operation
in Chengdu in 2017 has made initial success. In 2018, it plans to
cooperate with the well-known brand Tuzki for joint promotion,
going through “Interesting (B #) " to the end and bringing forth
the brand new interesting experience to the customers.

#i— ¥ EER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Others
Coffee

In 2017, the revenue of the coffee business of the Group grew by
12.1% compared with the same period of last year, mainly due
to the increase in revenue generated by “A-Ha Iced Coffee (7
KUNEE) . “A-Ha (#"S ) ” Coffee harmonized the main vision of
its product packaging in 2017, with “lced Coffee (7k#IBE) ” and
“ltalian (Z =) " Series in brighter main colors, exhibiting young
and stylish brand image. With the brand proposition of “Enjoy the
WD) 7, combining with
a high-quality social platform integrating target customers, “Chat
Therapist CXBIAMET) 7, “Meet Coffee and Chat Happily ( #
EZEIYN) " and other marketing events have been launched for

good taste and chat happily ( ¥tk 8 -

an in-depth interpretation of brand proposition, enhancement of
the relationship between “A-Ha (#lG) " and “Chat Coffee (HIX
MEE) " and continuous accumulation of brand equity. In 2018,
the Group will focus on promoting “A-Ha lced Coffee ( ¥ 7k ¥l
BE) ", centering on operating key markets, while continuing the
marketing principal axis of “Chat Coffee ( BIXMIBE) ”, promoting
coffee culture, and expanding the market size of its instant coffee
products.

Bottled Water

The Group focuses on the management of two brands of natural
“ALKAQUA (E &) " and “Bama Quan (EEF %) "
to provide consumers with high-quality natural mineral drinking

mineral water —

water. In 2017, the revenue of bottled water business grew by
18.4% compared with the same period of last year.

In March 2017, “ALKAQUA (E )" launched 6-bottle sharing
package, promoting the drinking scenes during travel, partying
and other occasions. The Group constantly increases the product
exposure through the influence of the popular actor Mr. Wang
Kai (E£8l), inputs more resources into his film and television
works, and holds “Spokesperson Meeting (RE AREE)”
events, engaging customers to a large extent by innovative reading
sessions. Through multi-angle and multi-media means, the Group
conveys to consumers the brand concept “Appearance accounting
for 30% and inner beauty accounting for 70% (30% 5EER1E - 70% &
ME) ” of “ALKAQUA (E#) *, enhancing the brand association of
“Simple and Stylish (47855 ) ”.

— ¥ EER AR 2 F Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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In 2018, the brand “ALKAQUA (&
)" is expected to introduce a
new 1.5 litres family size package,
which will benefit family consumers
in a more cost-effective way.
With regard to publicity, a new
commercial advertisement by Mr.
Wang Kai ( £ 8l) will be shot
to disseminate the geographic
appeal of water sources, increase
the inputs in key cities, explore
thoroughly the first-tier cities
market, and strive to become
the fashionable natural mineral water brand favored by young
consumers.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group’s Research and Development (“R&D”) Centre strives
to maintain its advantages of innovative technologies and develop
high value-added products required by consumers. In order to
protect core technologies and consolidate intellectual property
rights, as of December 2017, the R&D Centre owned 39 granted
patents and has applied for 54 patents, creating an advantageous
barrier to protect its intellectual property.

“Taimoxing — Thai Lemon Tea (RE MR A BIEE) " responds
to the rapid growth of the lemon tea market, and the Group has
targeted the development of distinctive Thai lemon tea through
market study and field visits. Taking the Thai flavor as its main
feature, the product combines the fresh and exciting tea flavor with
lemon, uses simple and natural ingredients, and prefers highland
black tea and lemon juice and other materials, exhibiting the
characteristics of real tea and real lemon, with abundant product
differentiation and memories.

Continuing the discovery of authentic taste, Teng Jiao Beef is a
dish widely loved by Sichuan people, with the impressive perfect
combination of the fresh flavor of Teng Jiao and the flavor of beef.
The R&D team combines the taste of Teng Jiao flavoured beef with
instant noodles to make the “Teng Jiao Beef Noodles ( EE#I 4 A
#1) ”, which contains the uniquely fragrant and richly pungent blue-
green pepper, clear-flavored fresh black pepper, and the featured
fragrance of the king of pepper oil — Teng Jiao oil, producing a bowl
of spicy, refreshing, fragrant, and authentic home-style noodles that
are unforgettable.

#i— ¥ EER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Among the various cuisines in Taiwan, beef noodles is a typical
folk cuisine. The “Imperial Banquet (i /& A% )" brand

of the Group regards inheriting Chinese cuisine as its

mission, absorbing the merits of many Taiwanese beef

noodle shops. The “Imperial Banquet Taiwan Braised

Beef and Beef Tendon Noodles (i RZE & =\ F 5+

A4 A ) " are made by first stir-frying fresh ingredients,
watercress and spices with butter, then adding beef bone

soup, especially fresh vegetables, for stewing, with a view to
present the authentic beef soup. Combining imported calf and beef
tendon as ingredients, using freeze drying technology to perfectly
preserve the taste and nutrition of Qingjiang vegetables, parsley
and sweet peppers, making a bowl of
Braised Beef and Beef Tendon Noodles (jm & A& & =
FA5E)

choice of meal for consumers.

“Imperial Banquet Taiwan
GRS

delicious with abundant ingredients become the best

“Lazy Time — Chongging old hot pot (BF Y} —FEEAH) ", the

self-heating small hot pot uses traditional Chongqging butter hot pot

as prototype, adopting rapid cooling stripping technology

to produce cube-shaped hot pot soup base,

introducing a breakthrough to the existing hot pot

soup base, while presenting rich fresh ingredients

of traditional hot pot restaurants in wet vegetables

package, and the hot pot necessities such as tripe,

crispy intestine, vermicelli, bean curd and other hotpot

dishes. The reasonable mix of meat and vegetables mellow

butter and spicy flavor aim to enable the consumers to enjoy the

spicy, satisfying and authentic Chongging old hot pot anytime
anywhere.

FOOD SAFETY

The Group upholds the concept of “Three Good and One
Reasonable: Good Quality, Good Credit, Good Service and
NE:mE ERE R BRA
3&) " to provide consumers with safe, healthy and delicious food.

Reasonable Price (= —

To enhance the level of food safety management system, the Group
has set up a Food Safety Committee and a Food Safety Centre,
which are committed to implementing food safety and security
system, formulating food safety policy, deepening food safety risk
assessment, warning and monitoring, so as to ensure food safety,
undertake the Group’s quality assurance system management,
formulate and implement the product quality policy.
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The Group continues to improve the supervision mechanism for
raw material supply chain, focuses on strengthening the supply
chain source of food safety management and finished food safety
monitoring. It has implemented supplier’s food safety qualification
assessment and field assessment, established the raw material
food safety project monitoring mechanism to ensure food quality
and safety from the source of the supply chain, set up production
plant qualification review and on-site evaluation mechanism, strictly
monitored all food safety items in addition to the strict inspection
of finished product of each batch after production according to the
laws and regulations, so as to ensure the safety and delicacy of the
Group’s products.

The Group is actively promoting the source management of
suppliers. In addition to supplier training, it has introduced third-
party professional agencies to evaluate suppliers, and help
suppliers to establish their own scientific and effective food safety
and quality management system. The Group has fully introduced
the Food Safety Protection Program, which covers the production
process starting from the product design, including access to sales,
to ensure that consumers are rest assured.

The Group pays close attention to various food safety incidents
of other food manufacturers, timely carries out risk assessment,
checks raw materials and finished products similar to those used in
such incidents, improves food safety management system, actively
participates in the formulation and revision of relevant national
standards, collects and releases food regulations and national
and foreign food safety information, so as to enhance the Group’s
awareness of food safety, and promote the full implementation of
food regulations and safety standards to safeguard consumer rights
and interests.

The Group’s Food Safety Centre has passed the assessment
conducted by experts of China National Accreditation Service for
Conformity Assessment (CNAS accreditation) since 2005 and 167
projects of the Group had been approved thus far. Meanwhile,
with the co-operation of each of the laboratories of the Group’s
subsidiaries and external testing institutions, the demand for key
food safety items testing was met. Such co-operation also provides
the Group with professional and authoritative testing services
and support in enhancing food safety. Further, three technical
achievements of the Group’s innovative laboratory testing system
have received national patent licensing.
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As of 2017, the Group has 31 subsidiaries that have passed the
ISO9001 International Standard Quality Management System
Certification, and 29 subsidiaries that have gained the 1SO22000
International standard Food Safety Management system
certification. These certifications and awards recognised the
Group’s improvement on food safety and quality assurance, its
capability to guard food safety, as well as the Group’s dedication to
provide consumers with delicious, healthy and safe food.

PRODUCTION STRATEGIES

The Group spares no effort in operation, research and
development, innovation, brand building and sales expansion,
aiming to meet customer needs, develop and strengthen the
corporation and maximize revenue. The Group does not solely rely
on its own production resources. It also outsources its production
to other professional beverages manufacturers (including external
independent third parties and related parties companies). A
strategic alliance is formed under such long-term co-operation with
the external manufacturers, providing the Group with production
flexibility. Thus, the Group is able to fully utilise its resources on core
operation and optimise its efficiency.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (the “Year”), the Group
recorded a revenue of RMB21,296.5 million, representing an
increase of 1.5% from RMB20,985.5 million of 2016. Revenue from
the instant noodles business decreased by 0.7%, and revenue from
the beverages products business increased by 2.3%, standing
at RMB8,162.6 million and RMB12,465.5 million respectively,
accounting for 38.3% and 58.5% respectively of the Group’s total
revenue. During the Year, gross profit of the Group decreased by
2.4% from RMB7,227.8 million of the corresponding period last
year to RMB7,051.5 million while gross profit margin decreased by
1.3 percentage points from 34.4% for the corresponding period of
last year to 33.1%, which were mainly due to a growth in the cost
of bulk raw materials.
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During the Year, the Group focused on key markets, effectively
refined channels, built its brands and precisely targeted markets
with its internal and external marketing resources. As a result,
the selling and marketing expenses decreased by 11.9% to
RMB5,153.8 million (2016: RMB5,849.9 million). During the Year,
administrative expenses amounted to RMB987.7 million (2016:
RMB999.0 million), representing a decrease of 1.1% compared
to the corresponding period last year, which was mainly due to a
corresponding decrease in surtaxes (such as urban maintenance
and construction tax) resulting from the decrease in gross profit of
the Group.

Operating profit was RMB1,186.6 million for the Year, increasing
by 23.3% from the operating profit of RMB962.5 million for 2016.
During the Year, share of profits of investments accounted for using
the equity method decreased 69.4% to RMB28.5 million (2016:
RMB93.1 million), which was attributable to the disposal of the
entire equity interest in Jinmailang Beverage Corporate Limited by
the Group in the last year. During the Year, profit attributable to
equity holders of the Company was RMB878.2 million, representing
an increase of 44.6% as compared with RMB607.3 million of the
corresponding period last year, which were mainly attributable to a
growth in revenue from the beverages business. Earnings per share
during the Year were RMB20.33 cents (2016: RMB14.06 cents).

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
Cash and Borrowings

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had cash and bank balances
of RMB2,782.7 million (31 December 2016: RMB2,463.2 million),
among which 99.3% were denominated in Renminbi and 0.5%
were denominated in United States dollars. The Group mainly
financed its operation and capital expenditure with internally
generated cash flow. As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s total
financial liabilities decreased by 48.7% to RMB1,334.8 million (31
December 2016: RMB2,600.2 million), and 37.5% of such financial
liabilities were repayable over one year. 99.0% of the Group’s
total financial liabilities were denominated in Renminbi. As at 31
December 2017, all of the Group’s financial liabilities bore floating
interest rates, save for the RMB500 million notes due 2019, which
was at fixed interest rate of 3.9% per annum. As at 31 December
2017, the Group did not have any secured bank borrowings (31
December 2016: Nil).
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Financing

The Group aims to maintain an appropriate capital structure. Taiwan
Ratings Corporation, a credit rating agency, issued a press release
about the Group’s credit rating on 26 June 2017, and upgraded
the Group’s long term credit rating from “twAA-" to “twAA”, with its
rating outlook standing at “Stable (#&5) ”. The following table sets
out the gearing ratios of the Group during the two years ended 31
December 2017:

HZ=12A31H

As at 31 December
2017 2016
ARE TR ARBF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
wiEeE Total borrowings 1,334,768 2,600,169
7R e RIBITE R Less: cash and bank balances (2,782,731) (2,463,201)
&1\, (BRe)F8E Net debt/(cash) (1,447,963) 136,968
MR Total equity 12,815,477 12,040,111
BEKR Total capital 11,367,514 12,177,079
BERBELE (M) Gearing ratio (Note) (12.74%) 1.12%

fiaf: EARBUERZERFARNERETRE

Note: The gearing ratio is computed as the net debt divided by the sum of

BFRZMEE -

EBRERERERNBBALE KBERKES
REFS REREHELRES L2 2HREF
T YAREBEERENENCHBELRE
B

total equity and net debt.

The Group reviews its gearing ratio on a regular basis. According to
the capital plan for the future, the Group tries to maximise revenue
for shareholders with capital risk awareness in mind. Capital
structure is being constantly adjusted according to changes in the
operational environment.
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Cash Flow and Capital Expenditure

As at 31 December 2017, the Group recorded a year-on-
year net increase in cash and cash equivalents of RMB286.3
million, comprising net cash inflow from operating activities of
RMB2,452.8 million, net cash outflow from investing activities of
RMB782.2 million, and net cash outflow from financing activities
of RMB1,384.3 million. The Group’s capital expenditure for the
year is RMB750.8 million (31 December 2016: RMB1,126 million),
which was mainly resulted from product procurement, investments
in acquiring new equipment, upgrading and modifying equipment,
building a distribution network and acquiring R&D equipment etc.

Analysis of Operating Efficiency

Sales to most customers are made on a delivery on payment
basis. Trade receivables are generated from credit sales to credit
customers from modern channels (including but not limited to
food and groceries stores, stalls and department stores and
e-commerce merchants) with credit terms normally ranging from
60 to 90 days. During the Year, as the number of the Group’s
credit sales clients increased, net trade receivables increased
by RMB20.1 million to RMB563.0 million (31 December 2016:
RMB542.9 million).

The Group’s trade payables mainly arose from credit purchase
of raw materials, and the inventories mainly comprised raw
materials, packaging materials, finished goods and low-value
consumables. Trade payables increased by RMB257.8 million to
RMB1,396.0 million (831 December 2016: RMB1,138.2 million),
while the inventories decreased by RMB55.1 million from last year
to RMB1,159.4 million (31 December 2016: RMB1,214.5 million).
The following table sets out the major turnover days during the two
years ended 31 December 2017.

HZE12A31ALEE
Year ended 31 December

2017 2016
FEUE B AR A8 R & Trade receivables turnover days 9 9
FEHERAERE Inventories turnover days 30 34
JENE 5 IR A E X E Trade payables turnover days 32 31
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Trade receivables turnover days is calculated based on the average
of trade receivables balances at the beginning and at the end of the
year divided by revenue multiplied by days in the year.

Inventory turnover days is calculated based on the average of
inventory balances at the beginning and at the end of the year
divided by cost of sales multiplied by days in the year.

Trade payables turnover days is calculated based on the average of
trade payables balances at the beginning and at the end of the year
divided by cost of sales multiplied by days in the year.

The Group reckons that inventory turnover days, trade receivables
turnover days and trade payables turnover days in the distribution
channel help the Group in understanding its ability to convert
inventory into cash and sales and cash conversion cycle. Through
reviewing and improving the turnover days, the Group can
improve its revenue, profit, the ability to develop continuously and
operational efficiency.

Financial Management

The Group adheres to the principle of financial prudence. It
seeks to control risk variables and moved forward prudently by
moderately adjusting its selling and marketing expenses according
to market condition, and made appropriate capital expenditures to
optimize and expand the basic infrastructure. The Group’s finance
department has formulated financial risk management policies
based on the policies and procedures approved by the Board and
guided by the executive Directors. These policies are reviewed
by the Group’s internal audit department and internal control
department regularly. The Group’s financial policy aims at reducing
impacts of interest rate and exchange rate fluctuations on the
Group’s overall financial position, as well as minimizing the Group’s
financial risk exposure.

The Group’s finance department provides centralized financial risk
(including interest rate and foreign exchange risk) and cash flow
management, and cost-effective funding for the Group and its
members. During the Year, the Group gathered the shared service
centres for different accounting regions, processed accounting
works in a centralised manner, and developed a group-level
financial and taxation platform, with a view to improving capital
efficiency and accounting treatment effectiveness.
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Treasury Policy

It is the Group’s treasury management policy not to engage in any
highly leveraged or speculative derivative products and not to invest
the working capital in financial products with significant underlying
leverage or risk, including hedge funds or similar instruments. The
Group continued to adopt a conservative approach to financial risk
management with no significant bank borrowings during the Year.

Most of the Group’s currency of receipt and payment is
denominated in Renminbi since a majority of its revenue is derived
from operations in the PRC. The Group may be exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from future borrowings from overseas and
some of its recognized assets or liabilities, such as cash and
cash equivalents and borrowings, which are denominated in other
currencies. The Group uses foreign exchange forward contracts
outside the PRC, when appropriate, for risk management and to
control the Group’s assets and liabilities when interest or exchange
rates are uncertain or fluctuating, or whenever suitable.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

As at 31 December 2017, the fair value of the Group’s available-
for-sale financial assets was RMB222.1 million (31 December 2016:
RMB225.5 million), which is resulted from the fair value changes of
listed securities. The fair value of available-for-sale financial assets
mainly consist of the fair value of the equity of China Haisheng
Juice Holdings Co., Ltd. (“‘Haisheng Holdings”) (listed securities)
of approximately RMB10.4 million (31 December 2016: RMB13.9
million) and the fair value of the equity of Heilongjiang Wondersun
Dairy Joint Stock Co., Ltd. “Wondersun” (non-listed securities) of
approximately RMB211.7 million (31 December 2016: RMB211.6
million).

Haisheng Holdings is a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 359.HK) which is mainly engaged in manufacturing
and processing of juice concentrate. In addition, Wondersun is a
company limited by shares in the PRC, which is primarily engaged
in manufacturing of milk powder and liquid milk products. The
Group invested in established upstream raw material suppliers
to enhance competitiveness in the overall beverages business.
Currently, it has no further investment plans. The Group will persist
to implement prudent investment strategies.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2017.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

The Group did not have any charges on group assets as at 31
December 2017.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

The Group had no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures during the Year.

FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Directors confirmed that as at the date of this report, there
are no current plans to acquire any material investment or
capital assets other than in the Group’s ordinary business of
manufacturing and sale of beverages and instant noodles.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 December 2017, the total number of employees of the
Group was 29,502. The Group adhered to the policies of focused
and streamlined operation, and organizational structure and staff
structure will be improved on a continuous basis to make the
enterprise stronger and more efficient. In terms of recruitment, the
Group is streamlining its administration and progressing towards
meritocracy. The Group insists on building a team that is robust
and strong with mechanisms like comprehensive trainings, humane
care, etc. Internal trainings, regular position transfer, external part-
time study and other measures can enhance overall performance
and provide talents for important positions of the Group steadily.
Meanwhile, priorities are given to internal promotion over external
recruitment while, performance evaluation and other measures
are implemented to keep the current management personnel
ambitious and strong. To achieve the Group’s annual goals, the
Group has set up performance bonuses and incentive schemes
to commend and encourage employees at all levels that make
outstanding contributions to the Group’s business performance.
Performance bonuses are distributed on the basis of the Group’s
overall and business units’ earnings and profits objectives, as well
as employees’ performance reviews.

% — > %¥ EZE R B R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
Annual Report 2017 £ &

2/



EEENWRE D

Management Discussion & Analysis

AEEHEBRREBERENEFNERR &
BE-FRBAZEN THALLEHNRAKE
MERBELLOR - FRAKREMSERRN—
R ASEREEEIVEANERAL &
P RITE HERERMN TESMRE
REERR BEMTOREETARK L

R -

AFEE - RETINA (BREZENE) BAR
#3,025.28 BT (20169 : AR #3,176.8

e —

BEL) °

The Group’s remuneration policy rewards employees and
directors based on their performance, qualifications, demonstrated
capabilities, market comparable information and the performance of
the Group. As part of the Group’s remuneration policy, the Group
has entered into employment contract with each of its employees,
which covers wages, social security benefits, workplace safety and
hygiene environment, trade secrets confidentiality obligations and
termination conditions.

During the Year, total staff costs (including directors’ remuneration)
were RMB3,025.2 million (2016: RMB3,176.8 million).
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Report of the Directors

The board (the“Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Uni-
President China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) is pleased to
present its report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group comprise the manufacturing and sales of
beverages and instant noodles in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”). The principal activities of its subsidiaries as of 31
December 2017 are set out in Note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by business
segments is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 106 of the annual report.

DIVIDENDS

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of
RMB14.23 cents per share of the Company for the Year amounting
to a total dividend of RMB614.8 million. The payment of the final
dividend is subject to the approval of the shareholders of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Details are
set out in Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements. There
was no arrangement with any shareholder of the Company under
which he/she/it has waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in Note 7 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in the investment properties of the Group
during the Year are set out in Note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in Note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 108 of the annual report and Note 20
to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2017, the Company’s distributable reserves
calculated under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands
comprise the share premium, contributed surplus, fair value
reserves and retained earnings totalling RMB7,602,021,000.

FIVE YEARS’ FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 4 of the
annual report.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of the borrowings of the Group are set out in Note 23 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the Year
amounted to RMB1,434,740 (2016: RMB741,999).
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of
the annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (Chairman)
Mr. Liu Xinhua (President)
(appointed with effect from 25 March 2017)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui (redesignated with effect from 1 July 2017)
Mr. Su Tsung-Ming

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Sun-Te

Mr. Chen Johnny

Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony
Mr. Lo Peter

In accordance with Article 130 of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles of Association”), each of Mr. Su Tsung-
Ming, Mr. Chen Johnny and Mr. Chen Sun-Te will retire by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. Each of
Mr. Su Tsung-Ming, Mr. Chen Johnny and Mr. Chen Sun-Te being
eligible, will offer himself for re-election. There is no service contract
entered into between each of Mr. Su Tsung-Ming, Mr. Chen Johnny
and Mr. Chen Sun-Te, and the Company which is not determinable
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 52 to 56 of
the annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
were as follows:

Long positions in the shares of the associated
corporation

ROHE
Number of shares
R20174F
12A31HZ
185% EREAL
UTFFash Percentage of
ZEEBR BBz ER shareholding
HERREZHS BAER Interest of NRIER as at
Name of corporation and Personal child under Corporate #%5 31 December
name of its relevant shareholder Interest 18 or spouse Interest Total 2017
(#49)
(Approximate)
H—1¥RM  Uni-President
BERADE Enterprises
Corporation*
BEL Lo Chih-Hsien 4,059,095 93,182,918 - 97,242,013 1.71%
M AT TSI R2017F12831H #f  Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the

BARREFTHIBTHRABEA EME
RARAIRE 7 KB RO £36216 5 € #
FzERMA KREFETRAMNEARR
A N Bt S P 2 T 7R R 3 CE o] AR Bt R
(EERBFEME GO EXVER) A - 48
AR REF  EmIRE -
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Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO), which were recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Equity-linked
Agreements — Share Option Scheme” in this Report of the
Directors below, none of the Company, any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries was a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors or their respective associates
(as defined under the Listing Rules) to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate at the end of the Year or at any time during
the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND
SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract/letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years and may
be renewed upon expiry of their term.

Except for the service contracts/letters of appointment with the
Company, during the Year, no other contracts of significance,
transaction and arrangement to which the Company, any of its
holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the Year or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at the date of the annual report, none of the Directors and
directors of the Company’s subsidiaries, or their respective
associates had interests in businesses, other than being a Director
and/or a director of its subsidiaries and their respective associates,
which competes or is likely to compete either directly or indirectly,
with the businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries as
required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ OR OTHERS’
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2017, so far as are known to any directors or
chief executive of the Company, the following parties (other than
directors or chief executive of the Company) had interests in the
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

L5} Long positions
R20174F
12A31H
ZERBEDH
VNN Percentage of
ZEREE shareholding
Number of as at
£ 514 ordinary shares 31 December
Name Capacity of the Company 2017
(B4Y)
(Approximate)
Uni-President Enterprises Corporation* Interest of controlled 3,046,953,983 70.54%
corporations (Note)
Bm—rERMERAR EEHEEER (M3E)
Cayman President Holdings Ltd. Beneficial owner 3,044,508,000 70.49%
EmlEAA
5T Note

AR A R3,046,953,983K Ik ([ ]) &
7+ 3,044,508,0008% % 17 A Cayman President
Holdings Ltd. ([Cayman President ] * £ — b %
BROBRAR (SR Z—REEZEM
BAR)EAE M2,4459830% A% 1 M President
(BVI) International Investment Holdings Ltd.
([President (BVI)] & — > ¥R # 5 H69.37%
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Out of 3,046,953,983 shares of the Company (the “Shares”), 3,044,508,000
Shares were held by Cayman President Holdings Ltd. (“Cayman President”),
which is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Uni-President Enterprises
Corporation* (“UPE”) and 2,445,983 Shares were held by President
(BVI) International Investment Holdings Ltd. (“President (BVI)"), which is
indirectly owned by UPE as to 69.37%. Accordingly, UPE was deemed to
be interested in all the Shares respectively held by Cayman President and
President (BVI) by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, no other
substantial shareholder or person had an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares in the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the Year.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” of this Report of the Directors, (i) no contract of
significance was entered into by, and/or subsisted between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries with the controlling shareholder
or any of its subsidiaries during the Year; and (i) there is no contract
of significance in relation to provision of services by the controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
its Directors and senior management arising out of corporate
activities. During the Year and up to the date of this annual report,
permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 9 of the
Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the
Laws of Hong Kong)) was or is being in force for the benefit of the
Directors.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

UPE is the holding company of Cayman President which in turn is
a substantial shareholder of the Company. As Cayman President
is a connected person of the Company and UPE is an associate
of Cayman President, UPE is also a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules.
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Details of the continuing connected transactions entered into by,
and/or subsisted between, the Group and UPE, its subsidiaries and
associates (excluding the Group) (for the purpose of this Report of
the Directors, hereinafter referred to as “UPE Group”) during the
Year and which are not exempt under Rule 14A.73 of the Listing
Rules are set out below:

() Framework Sales Agreement dated 24 October
2014 and 24 March 2017

On 24 October 2014, the Company entered into a framework
sales agreement (the “2014 Framework Sales Agreement”)
with UPE, pursuant to which the Company agreed to sell or
procure the sale of, on a non-exclusive basis, to UPE Group
certain beverages, instant noodles and bakery products and
such other products as may be agreed by the Group and
UPE Group for a term from 1 January 2015 to 31 December
2017. The pricing basis and the other terms of the sales
transactions contemplated under the 2014 Framework Sales
Agreement shall be subject to the terms and conditions
contained therein and determined in accordance with the
internal control procedures of the Group, which, in principle,
shall be no less favourable to the Group than those offered
to independent third parties by the Group in comparable
transactions of the same period. Further details of the
2014 Framework Sales Agreement were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 24 October 2014.

The 2014 Framework Sales Agreement expired on 31
December 2017. To cater for the continual demand for the
Group’s food and beverages products from UPE Group,
on 24 March 2017, the Company entered into a framework
sales agreement (the “2017 Framework Sales Agreement”)
with UPE, pursuant to which the Company agreed to
sell or procure the sale of, on a non-exclusive basis, to
UPE Group certain beverage, instant noodles and bakery
products and such other products as may be agreed by the
Group and UPE Group for a term from 1 January 2018 to
31 December 2020. The terms and conditions of the 2017
Framework Sales Agreement (including the pricing policies)
are substantially similar to those of the 2014 Framework
Sales Agreement. Further details of the 2017 Framework
Sales Agreement were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 24 March 2017.

Holdings Ltd.
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Framework Purchase Agreement dated 24 October
2014 and 24 March 2017

On 24 October 2014, the Company entered into a framework
purchase agreement (the “2014 Framework Purchase
Agreement”) with UPE, pursuant to which the Company
agreed to purchase or procure the purchase of, on a non-
exclusive basis, from UPE Group certain raw materials,
packaging materials, finished goods, low-cost consumables
and such other goods as may be agreed by the Group and
UPE Group for a term from 1 January 2015 to 31 December
2017. The pricing basis and the other terms of the purchase
transactions contemplated under the 2014 Framework
Purchase Agreement shall be subject to the terms and
conditions contained therein and determined in accordance
with the internal control procedures of the Group, which,
in principle, shall be no less favourable to the Group than
those offered to the Group by independent third parties in
comparable transactions of the same period. Further details
of the 2014 Framework Purchase Agreement were disclosed
in the announcements of the Company dated 24 October
2014, 23 December 2014 and the circular of the Company
dated 5 December 2014.

The 2014 Framework Purchase Agreement expired on 31
December 2017. Foreseeing the continual demand for the
raw materials and other goods by the Group, on 24 March
2017, the Company entered into a framework purchase
agreement (the “2017 Framework Purchase Agreement”) with
UPE, pursuant to which the Company agreed to purchase
or procure the purchase of, on a non-exclusive basis, from
UPE Group certain raw materials, packaging materials,
finished goods, low-cost consumables and such other goods
as may be agreed by the Group and UPE Group for a term
from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020. The terms and
conditions of the 2017 Framework Purchase Agreement
(including the pricing policies) are substantially similar to those
of the 2014 Framework Purchase Agreement. Further details
of the 2017 Framework Purchase Agreement were disclosed
in the announcements of the Company dated 24 March 2017
and 19 May 2017 and the circular of the Company dated 26
April 2017.
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October 2014 and 24 March 2017

On 24 October 2014, the Company entered into a framework
logistics service agreement (the “2014 Framework Logistics
Service Agreement”) with UPE, pursuant to which UPE
agreed to provide or procure the provision of, on a non-
exclusive basis, to the Group transportation and logistics
service (including, but not limited to, storage and design of,
and the provision of support service to, logistics application
systems and such other logistics related ancillary and support
services as may be agreed by the Group and UPE Group)
for a term from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2017. The
pricing basis and the other terms of the transportation and
logistics service transactions contemplated under the 2014
Framework Logistics Service Agreement shall be subject to
the terms and conditions contained therein and determined in
accordance with the internal control procedures of the Group,
which, in principle, shall be no less favourable to the Group
than those offered by independent third parties suppliers to
the Group in comparable transactions of the same period.
Further details of the 2014 Framework Logistics Service
Agreement were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 24 October 2014.

The 2014 Framework Logistics Service Agreement expired
on 31 December 2017. Considering the continual needs of
the Group for the transportation and logistics services, on 24
March 2017, the Company entered into a framework logistics
service agreement (the “2017 Framework Logistics Service
Agreement”) with UPE, pursuant to which UPE agreed to
provide or procure the provision of, on a non-exclusive basis,
to the Group transportation and logistics service (including,
but not limited to, storage facilities, design of, and the
provision of support service to, logistics application systems
and such other logistics related ancillary and support services
as may be agreed by the Group and UPE Group) for a term
from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020. The terms
and conditions of the 2017 Framework Logistics Service
Agreement (including the pricing policies) are substantially
similar to those of the 2014 Framework Logistics Service
Agreement. Further details of the 2017 Framework Logistics
Service Agreement were disclosed in the announcement of
the Company dated 24 March 2017.
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(iv) Framework Technical Support Service Agreement

dated 24 October 2014 and 24 March 2017

On 24 October 2014, the Company entered into a framework
technical support service agreement (the “2014 Framework
Technical Support Service Agreement”) with UPE, pursuant
to which the Company agreed to provide or procure the
provision of, on a non-exclusive basis, to UPE Group
technical support services (including, but not limited to, the
human resources management services and such other
technical support services as may be agreed by the Group
and UPE Group) for a term from 1 January 2015 to 31
December 2017. The pricing basis and the other terms of the
technical support service transactions contemplated under
the 2014 Framework Technical Support Service Agreement
shall be subject to the terms and conditions contained therein
and determined in accordance with the internal control
procedures of the Group, which, in principle, shall be no less
favourable to the Group than those offered to independent
third parties by the Group in comparable transactions of
the same period. Further details of the 2014 Framework
Technical Support Service Agreement were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 24 October 2014.

The 2014 Framework Technical Support Service Agreement
expired on 31 December 2017. In view of the continual
demand from UPE Group of the Group’s technical support
services, on 24 March 2017, the Company entered into a
framework technical support service agreement (the “2017
Framework Technical Support Service Agreement”) with
UPE, pursuant to which the Company agreed to provide or
procure the provision of, on a non-exclusive basis, to UPE
Group technical support and management services (including,
but not limited to, the human resources management
services and such other technical support services as may
be agreed by the Group and UPE Group) for a term from
1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020. The terms and
conditions of the 2017 Framework Technical Support Service
Agreement (including the pricing policies) are substantially
similar to those of the 2014 Framework Technical Support
Service Agreement. Further details of the 2017 Framework
Technical Support Service Agreement were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 24 March 2017.
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RRABBIERAERARRERE (18 The maximum aggregate annual value (the “Annual Cap’)
BAME) ZAFEZEREHFERE approved by the independent shareholders of the Company
B(TFELR]) RIBE2014FELH or set by the Company (as the case may be) and the
B 2014FELRFBEIHZE 20145F aggregate annual transaction value actually recorded
HEZR ) i AR 75 5 2 22014 HE 2 #21ly pursuant to the 2014 Framework Sales Agreement, the
XERBHE (5 [2014F 5B 02 2014 Framework Purchase Agreement, the 2014 Framework
RH5WEIEBRBEZAFTFERS Logistics Service Agreement and the 2014 Framework

BESKINDT:

Technical Support Service Agreement (collectively, the “2014
CCT Agreements”) for the Year are set out below:

BERRZEH
Actual
5 04 HEBERZ =R Transaction FELR
Transaction 2014 CCT Agreements Amount Annual Cap
(ARBEETL) (AREBET)
(RMB million) (RMB million)
20144FHEZR 8 &% 2014 Framework Sales Agreement
HIHEER Total sales value 85.3 950.0
2014 FIEZRIREEWEE 2014 Framework Purchase Agreement
BEEEE Total purchase value 3,487.0 7,500.0
2014FHEZRYR 2014 Framework Logistics Service Agreement
Pk 75 h = Total transaction value
B HEE 15.6 62.0
2014 fEZR R Mlg 2014 Framework Technical Support Service
IR R i Agreement
B HEE Total transaction value 43.1 128.0
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Report of the Directors

When determining whether the above transactions have
been conducted in accordance with the pricing policies
under the above framework agreements, the management of
the Company would obtain sufficient market intelligence to
ascertain the relevant prevailing market rate, payment terms
and practices, as well as the latest market and independent
third party information. For example, the management would
review quotations from at least two independent suppliers
or service providers and evaluate them from a commercial
perspective, so as to ensure that the products or services to
be procured from the UPE Group are of comparable prices for
such products or services being offered by the independent
third parties. Where there are no sufficient comparable
transactions available, the prices of such products or services
would be determined on arm’s length basis with reference to
historical prices and cost analysis. Likewise, the management
would also determine the prices of the goods to be provided
to the UPE Group by reviewing market information to ensure
that they are of comparable prices for such products being
offered to independent third parties by the Group.

The internal audit team of the Company has reviewed the
continuing connected transactions based on the relevant
documentations and internal control procedures and have
provided findings to the independent non-executive Directors.

The independent non-executive Directors consider that the
methods and procedures established by the Company were
sufficient and effective to ensure that the transactions were
conducted on normal commercial terms and not prejudicial to
the interests of the Company and its minority shareholders,
and that appropriate internal control procedures were in
place. In the opinion of the independent non-executive
Directors, the above transactions pursuant to the 2014 CCT
Agreements were carried out in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the Group, on normal commercial terms and
were in accordance with the relevant 2014 CCT Agreements
and the pricing policies of the Company, and on terms that
were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Group and
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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The Company’s auditors were engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditors have issued their unqualified letter containing
their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions of the Group in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

The auditors of the Company have confirmed that regarding
the continuing connected transactions of the Group, nothing
has come to their attention that causes them to believe that:

- the disclosed continuing connected transactions have
not been approved by the Board;

- for transactions involving the provision of goods or
services by the Group, such transactions were not, in
all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group;

- the transactions were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions; or

- the transaction amount of the disclosed continuing
connected transactions as mentioned above have
exceeded the annual cap set by the Company.
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Report of the Directors

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Board confirms that the related party transactions with
the subsidiaries and/or associates of UPE during the Year as
disclosed in Note 34(a) to the consolidated financial statements
fall under the definition of “connected transactions” or “continuing
connected transactions” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that the Company has,
where applicable, complied with the disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Save as
aforesaid, the Board confirms that the related party transactions
conducted during the Year as disclosed in Note 34(b) and Note
34(c) to the consolidated financial statements do not fall under
the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

NON-COMPETITION CONFIRMATION

The Company has received a written confirmation from UPE
confirming that UPE Group has not breached any of the terms of
the non-competition deed entered into between the Company and
UPE on 23 November 2007.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the Year, the aggregated sales attributable to the five
largest customers represented less than 30% of the Group’s total
revenue and the aggregated purchases attributable to the five
largest suppliers represented less than 30% of the Group’s total
purchases.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed below, during the Year, the Company has not
entered into any equity-linked agreement (as defined in section 6 of
the Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the
Laws of Hong Kong)).
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Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
pursuant to a written resolution passed on 23 November 2007.
The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the Company with a
flexible means of retaining, incentivising, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to employees, directors
or non-executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) of any member of the Company, any holding company,
subsidiaries or affiliates of the Company or other companies
or associated companies of the Company which the Board
determines will be subject to the Scheme.

The Scheme expired on 16 December 2017 pursuant to its terms.
No further option can be granted pursuant to the Scheme after
its expiration. Before its expiration, the total number of shares of
the Company which may be issued under the Scheme must not
exceed 352,681,000 shares of the Company, representing 10%
of the total number of shares issued by the Company as at 17
December 2007 (i.e. the listing date of the shares of the Company
on the Stock Exchange) and approximately 8.17% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of the annual report.
Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in the manner as
set out in the Scheme, the total number of shares of the Company
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options to be granted
to each eligible person (including exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the shares
in issue at the date of grant of the option.

The exercise price shall be the price determined by the Board and
notified to the option holder which shall not be less than the highest
of: (a) the average closing price of the shares of the Company for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant
of the option as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets; (b) the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated
on the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant of the option; and (c) the nominal value of the shares of the
Company. No amount will be payable for the acceptance of an
option.
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Unless otherwise specified by the Board in the offer, the options
granted under the Scheme shall generally be vested in five
tranches with each of the 20% of the options vested on the first,
second, third, fourth and fifth anniversary dates of the date of grant
respectively. An option may be exercised to the extent that it has
vested and any performance conditions or targets set by the Board
have been met.

The option period will not be more than 10 years from the date of
grant.

The Scheme expired pursuant to its terms on 16 December
2017. As at 1 January 2017 and 16 December 2017, there was
no outstanding share option. No share option has been granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Scheme.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association, although there are no restrictions against such rights
under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
the shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the
shares of the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

The Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem
any of the listed securities of the Company during the Year.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules
during the Year and as at the date of the annual report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Board reviewed with management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters
including the review of the audited financial statements for the Year
and has recommended their adoption by the Board.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who shall retire and, being eligible, shall
offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

There has been no change of auditors of the Company in any of the
preceding three financial years.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Below is a business review as required by Schedule 5 to the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
The discussion on a fair review of the Group’s business, financial
key performance indicators and performance and indication of
future development of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017 can be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”
and “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report.
Those discussions form part of this Report of the Directors.
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Report of the Directors

Principal risks and uncertainties

A number of factors may affect the results and business operations

of the Group, some of which are inherent to beverages and instant

noodles business and some are from external sources. Major risks

are summarized below.

()

(i)

Consumer preferences risk

The Group’s success depends on its ability to anticipate the
tastes and dietary habits of consumers and to offer products
that appeal to their preferences. Consumer preferences
change and the Company’s failure to anticipate, identify
or react to these changes could result in reduced demand
for the Group’s products, which would, in turn, cause
excessive inventory levels and lower sales volume. The
Group will continuously introduce new products throughout
the season and will further shorten the product development
cycle in order to improve our portfolio of products to satisfy
consumers’ changing preferences.

Competition risk

The industries in which the Group operates in the PRC are
highly competitive. The Group’s ability to compete is, to
a significant extent, dependent on its ability to distinguish
its products from those of the Group’s competitors by
providing high quality products at reasonable prices that
appeal to consumers’ tastes and preferences. The Group’s
competitors have varying abilities to withstand changes
in market conditions. Some of the Group’s competitors
have larger market shares in the PRC with respect to
beverages or instant noodles products, have operated their
respective businesses longer than the Group has, have
wider geographical coverage for its products and/or stronger
distribution networks in the PRC, may have substantially
greater financial and other resources than the Group has and
may be better established in the market. Should the Group’s
competitors manage to seize a larger market share, the
Group’s sales volume may be adversely affected. To manage
competition risks, the Group will continue to research and
develop new technology, introduce new products as well as
maintain a high level of quality of its existing products for a
better competitive edge.
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(i)

(iv)

Economy and financial markets risk

The food and beverage industry in the PRC is impacted by
fluctuations in the global economy and financial market. The
slowdown of the worldwide economy, including that of the
PRC, caused a drop in consumer confidence and the level
of disposable income, which translated into lower demand
for the Group’s products, affecting the Group’s results of
operations. As a result, the global and local economies,
including the PRC economy, could continue to experience
significant volatility. Significant volatility or another downturn
in the PRC and global economy in the future could have an
adverse effect on the food and beverage industry in the PRC
and the demand for the Group’s products, which may affect
the Group’s business, results of operations and financial
condition. With a relatively stable cash flow in the food and
beverage industry, the Group will continue to launch new
products to boost revenue, strictly control costs, and maintain
a stable and appropriate capital structure to reduce the
impact from global economic and financial market volatility.

Supply chain risk

All of the packaging materials used in the manufacture of the
Group’s instant noodle products and a large percentage of
packaging materials used in the production of its beverage
products are supplied by independent third party or related
party suppliers. In the event these independent third party
or related party suppliers fail to continue to supply or cannot
meet the Group’s demand for such packaging materials, or
the Group is unable in the future to reach agreement upon
reasonable terms with them in relation to such continued
supply, the Group may be unable to find a comparable
substitute supplier of packaging materials, which may lead
to delays in the delivery of its products to customers. Such
delays may affect the Group’s results of operations. The
Group strives to maintain stable and cooperative relationships
in the procurement of important raw materials, develop long-
term strategic partnerships and productivity strategies with
three or more suppliers to reduce the risk on being over
dependent on a single supplier.
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Seasonal and weather conditions risk

The Group experiences seasonal fluctuations in its revenue
and operating income for its beverage and instant noodle
products. The Group generally records lower turnover for its
beverage products during the fourth quarter, while turnover
for its instant noodle products is generally lower during the
second quarter. The seasonal nature of the Group’s products
causes specific production lines to operate at uneven levels.
Sales and operating results for any particular period will not
necessarily be indicative of the Group’s results for the full
year or future periods. Cold weather conditions in the areas
in which our suppliers and customers are located could
adversely affect our beverage sales results and financial
condition. To reduce the risk on seasonal fluctuations, the
Group launched iconic brand of summer noodles to turn the
traditional consumption pattern of instant noodles in summer
session. On the other hand, the Group launched hot-drinks
products to renovate the warm and mild taste of Chinese-
style drinks and have established a new model hot beverage
in developing winter hot-drinks market.

Key Relationships

The Group’s success also depends on the support from key
relationships which comprise employees, suppliers, distributors and
customers.

()

Employees

Human resources are one of the greatest assets of the Group.
In view of the huge market opportunities for beverages
and food products in the PRC, the Group is continuously
recruiting talented professionals. In respect of the new lower-
level staff, the Group devotes considerable resources in staff
training and monitor their development and progress in a
timely manner in order to familiarise them with the working
environment and build up team spirit. Meanwhile, the Group
recognises the value of its key personnel in maintaining
team morale and competitiveness. Both internal promotion
and external recruitment are applied to select and promote
outstanding personnel for vacant positions and attract
qualified candidates to join the Group. On the other hand, the
Group ensures the continuity of the senior management by
grooming management talents with various measures, such
as continuous internal training and appropriate job rotation as
well as external on-the-job training.
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(i) HED (i)  Suppliers
AEFERHZRHEFELIRENE The Group has developed long-standing relationships with a
EEFR YR NEEMNEREETES number of suppliers and take great care to ensure that they
NigrhE &G - A ERBAEER 2 understand the Group’s commitment to quality and ethics. To
FHAFRZNER ~&EKR[=8 achieve the objective of fair trade and win-win situation with
fFar] (BEEEZ BIGTERRE® suppliers, the Group carefully selects suppliers in conformity
ZE2EH)NRREEREESREREH with the food safety requirements of “three lines of defense”
EE -AEEPBFHERME mE- (i.e qualification audits, on-site evaluation, food safety testing),
2 MR 77 ] /E B B FE 3R through inviting quotations from suppliers to be procured to
HRE FELBEEHER- the extent that those products are of comparable nature,

quality, quantity and condition via open tender.

(i) ZEER (iii)  Distributors
REBBBE=FDHEERAKBEPH The Group sells products to end customers through third-
EEm - AEEEDHESIE BOF party distributors. The Group works with distributors like
mBWEBEY  FRERRS Rk business partners with the same interest, specifically focusing
BEPUHEDHEER ANEEERD on attracting and retaining customers in order to drive sales
HERADHEEETAEENEE & growth. The Group requires distributors and sub-distributors
FEIARRAEnTEEB HEITILR to comply with its policies, including but not limited to
—FRAAEENRES- retail selling price, promotional activities and standardised

application of the Group’s system.
vy &F (iv) Customers
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The Group is committed to offer tasty, differentiated and
trendy products to customers. The Group provides safe,
healthy and delicious beverages and instant noodles to
consumers. The Group also stays connected with customers
to keep abreast of the changing consumer preference
through various channels like the Company’s website,
customer hotlines, marketing materials and social media.
In the instant noodles and beverages industry, the Group’s
vast number of customers are from modern channels
(including but not limited to food and groceries stores, stalls
and department stores) which are scattered and separated.
Therefore, the Group does not have major customers which
account for a significant part of the Company’s revenue.
The credit terms and subsequent settlement for customers
have been disclosed in the paragraph headed “Analysis of
operating efficiency” in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.
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Report of the Directors

Environmental Policies

Environmental protection is not only the responsibility of the
Group’s business, it is also the responsibility of each of us. The
Group initiates and strives to minimize environmental impact by
using water-saving facilities, saving electricity and encouraging
recycle of office supplies and other materials. The Group also
requires factories of original equipment manufacturer (OEM)
to operate in strict compliance with the relevant environmental
regulations and rules and possess all necessary permission and
approval from the PRC regulators. A further discussion of the
environmental policies of the Group can be found in the section
headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this
annual report, the discussion of which forms part of this Report of
the Directors.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group’s operations are carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in the PRC while the shares of the Company are
listed on the Stock Exchange. Our operations are regulated by
Hong Kong and PRC laws. During the year ended 31 December
2017 and up to the date of this report, we have complied with
the relevant laws and regulations that have significant impact in
the PRC and Hong Kong. In particular, as a food and beverage
manufacturer, the Group’s operation are regulated by the food
safety and environmental protection laws and regulations in the
PRC. During the year under review, the Group did not have any
material non-compliance with such laws and regulations.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no significant events after the reporting period of the
Group.

On behalf of the Board
Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Lo Chih-Hsien
Chairman
Taipei, Taiwan
27 March 2018
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Executive Directors

Mr. LO Chih-Hsien (#%55C), aged 61, is the chairman and
executive director of the Company. Mr. Lo is also a director and/
or the chairman of the board of directors of most of the wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lo joined the Group
in September 1998 and is responsible for the overall strategic
planning and management of the Group. He has over 32 years
of experience in the food and beverage industry and is currently
the chairman of President Chain Store Corporation (%5 — #3%
BB AT, Ton Yi Industrial Corp. (55— B XD AR A
7)), TTET Union Corporation ( K&z D BR A &), Prince
Housing & Development Corp. (K FERFERHBFRAF]) and
ScinoPharm Taiwan, Ltd. ( & E1#ERGKH AR AR, al of which
are listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation. He is also
the director of Tait Marketing & Distribution Co., Ltd. ({E&2/%F1T
B2 R]), a company listed on the Taipei Exchange. He is
also the chairman and group chief strategy officer of Uni-President
Enterprises Corporation (£ — 2 B R 2 7)) (‘UPE"),
the substantial shareholder of the Company (as defined in the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)), and the director of 111 companies associated with UPE
and its subsidiaries. Mr. Lo holds a master’s degree in business
administration from the University of California, Los Angeles, U.S.A.
His spouse is Mrs. Shiow-Ling Kao, a director of UPE.

Mr. LIU Xinhua (257%) , aged 47, is the president of the Group
and the general manager of Uni-President Enterprises (China)
Investments Ltd. (i —>% (R E)EEBRAE) (“Uni-President
China Investments”). He has been appointed as an executive
director of the Company with effect from 25 March 2017. He has
over 24 years of experience in strategic marketing in the food and
beverage industry. Mr. Liu joined the Group in July 1994 and since
then has been involved in sales and marketing for the Group. He
acted as the sales general manager for the Sichuan province of
Chengdu President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd.* (X #s— D ¥R
fB R A F]) from November 2006 until August 2008. From August
2008 to September 2014, he acted as the general manager of the
food business department of Uni-President China Investments.
From October 2014 until June 2016, he acted as a general
manager of the marketing planning office and convener of strategic
marketing committee of Uni-President China Investments. Mr. Liu
holds a doctoral degree in business management from Southwest
Jiaotong University ( 75 Fg 22 i K £ ) in the PRC.

#i— ¥ EER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Non-Executive Directors

Mr. SU Tsung-Ming (#f52%%), aged 60, is a non-executive
director of the Company. Mr. Su joined the Group in August
2007. He joined UPE Group in August 2000. He is currently the
vice-president of UPE and a director of President Chain Store
Corporation (# —# & & 17 B BR 2 &) and ScinoPharm Taiwan,
Ltd. (B E@ERHDBMR AR, al of which are members of UPE
Group and are listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation.
Mr. Su is also a director of 24 members of UPE Group. He has
over 32 years of experience in banking and financial management.
Before joining UPE Group, he was the vice-president of the Taipei
branch of Citibank. Mr. Su was the financial specialist of Seibu
Department Store in Tokyo, Japan in 1988 and the senior specialist
of Nortel Networks Asia/Pacific in Tokyo in 1990. Mr. Su holds a
master of business administration degree from the University of
lowa, the U.S.A.

Mr. CHEN Kuo-Hui (FRE /&), aged 49, is a non-executive
director of the Company. Mr. Chen joined the Group in May 2011
and was appointed as an executive director of the Company in
August 2013. Mr. Chen was also the chief financial officer of the
Group until July 2017. Since July 2017, Mr. Chen has left his post
and was re-designated as the chief financial officer of UPE. He has
over 21 years of experience in financial management. Mr. Chen also
acts as a director and/or supervisor of part of the Group’s wholly-
owned subsidiaries in the PRC. Mr. Chen is also the supervisor of
United Advisor Venture Management Co., Ltd. (#f /1 T 2E &=
AR EE® AR AR and Min Fu Management Consultancy
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (REEIEZR (L/B)BRAF]), in which
the Group holds 50% interests, and a director of Heilongjiang
Wondersun Dairy Co., Ltd. (BB TETEILAERNDBRAT)
a company in which the Group has an interest. Mr. Chen holds
a master’s degree in business administration from University of
Strathclyde in the United Kingdom.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. CHEN Sun-Te (fRE272), aged 63, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in August
2007. Mr. Chen has over 34 years of experience in the banking
and financial industry and is currently the Chairman of Taipei Fubon
Commercial Bank. He is also an independent director of China
Telecom Corporation, and Lion Travel Services Co., Ltd. and also
the director of Fubon Financial Holdings. Prior to that, Mr. Chen
served as the president of Fullerton Financial Holdings Pte. Ltd.
(North Asia and Greater China regions) between 2005 and 2012,
the president of Chinatrust Financial Holdings Co., Ltd. (now
known as CTBC Financial Holding Co., Ltd) in 2005, the chairman
of Chinatrust Securities Co., Ltd. between 2003 and 2005, the
country officer and country head of the corporate bank in Taiwan
of Citigroup between 2001 and 2003 and the regional head of
financial markets in Asia Pacific of Citigroup between 1998 and
2001. He gained extensive financial management experience from
various positions held with Citibank and Citigroup and has acquired
general knowledge about the food and beverage industry through
dealing with clients from that industry. Mr. Chen holds a master’s
degree in business administration from University of Missouri, the
U.S.A. and a bachelor’s degree in political science from National
Chengchi University, Taiwan.

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Mr. CHEN Johnny (fRE7% ), aged 58, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in December
2015. Mr. Chen Johnny is currently an Adjunct Associate Professor
of Department of Finance and Department of Management, Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology. Mr. Chen Johnny
joined the management of Zurich Insurance Group (“Zurich”) in
2005. He worked in Zurich from March 2005 to February 2015 in
multiple senior managerial roles in the Asia-Pacific region. His last
position in Zurich was the chairman of the life and general insurance
business in China. Prior to joining Zurich, Mr. Chen Johnny was an
executive member of the Greater-China Management Board and
the Operating Committee of PricewaterhouseCoopers (‘PwC”), as
well as a managing partner of PwC’s Beijing office.

Mr. Chen Johnny is also the chairman and an executive director
of Convoy Global Holdings Limited (stock code: 1019), an
independent non-executive director of Stella International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1836), Alibaba Pictures Group Limited (stock
code: 1060), China Minsheng Financial Holding Corporation
Limited (stock code: 245) and China Dongxiang (Group) Co.,
Ltd. (stock code: 3818), all of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange; and Viva China Holdings Limited (stock
code: 8032), the shares of which are listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange. From 2005 to January 2014, Mr. Chen Johnny was a
non-executive director of New China Life Insurance Company Ltd.
(stock code: 1336), the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chen Johnny holds a Master
of Science Degree in Accounting from the University of Rhode
Island, the U.S.A. and a Bachelor Degree of Accounting from the
Johnson & Wales University, the U.S.A. and is a U.S. certified public
accountant.
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Mr. FAN Ren-Da, Anthony (5B{Z3% ) , aged 57, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company in August
2007. Mr. Fan is the chairman and managing director of AsialLink
Capital Limited and also an independent non-executive director of
Technovator International Limited (stock code: 1206), Raymond
Industrial Limited (stock code: 229), Shanghai Industrial Urban
Development Group Limited (stock code: 563), Renhe Commercial
Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 1387), Tenfu (Cayman)
Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 6868), Citic Resources
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1205), China Development Bank
International Investment Limited (stock code: 1062), Hong Kong
Resources Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 2882), Neo-
Neon Holdings Limited (stock code: 1868) and CGN New Energy
Holdings Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1811). Mr. Fan was an independent
non-executive director of LT Commercial Real Estate Limited
(stock code: 112) from March 2013 to June 2017 and of Guodian
Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited (stock
code: 1296) from September 2011 to August 2017. All of the said
companies are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr.
Fan holds a master’s degree in business administration from the
U.S.A.

Mr. LO Peter (3% £), aged 62, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in November
2007. Mr. Lo is currently a director of China Enterprise Capital
Limited. He is also the chairman and an executive director of China
Outfitters Holdings Limited (stock code: 1146) and an independent
non-executive director of Ajisen (China) Holdings Limited (stock
code: 538), both of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Lo has over 24 years of experience in the business
field and holds a bachelor’s degree in mathematical economics and
econometrics from the London School of Economics and Political
Science, the United Kingdom.
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Senior Management

Mr. LIU Xinhua (2/37% ), aged 47, was appointed as the
president of the Group since 1 July 2016 and an executive
director of the Company with effect from 25 March 2017. Mr. Liu’'s
biographical details are set out in the section headed “Directors’
Profile” of this annual report.

Mr. LIU, Tzu-Chiang (%|73%), aged 48, is the chief financial
officer of the Group. Mr. Liu joined the Group in April 1998. He has
over the years served as the manager of the finance department
at Uni-President Enterprises (Xinjiang) Food Co., Ltd. (#5845 —
PERMAMR AT, Nanchang President Enterprises Co., Ltd.
(AE#H—1EAMAT), Shenyang President Enterprises Co.,
Ltd. CEB G — D2 AR A7), Chengdu President Enterprises
Food Co., Ltd. (K& & — X R MAER AR F)) and Zhengzhou
President Enterprises Co., Ltd. (Ef/#H— D EBR A F), all
being the subsidiaries of the Group. From August 2007 to May
2012, he was also the administrative director of the Northeast
region and Southwest region. Since 2014, he has been the chief
accountant of the Group. From July 1994 to April 1998, he had
served in UPE Group. He has over 24 years of experience in
financial management. Mr. Liu holds a bachelor degree in business
administration from National Cheng Kung University, Taiwan.

Mr. ZHANG Ling (&%) , aged 49, joined the Group in October
1994. During the period from 1994 to 2009, Mr. Zhang was
responsible for management of marketing in different subsidiaries
of the Company, such as Nanchang President Enterprises Co., Ltd.
(AE#H—1EAMRAR), Shenyang President Enterprises Co.,
Ltd. GBS — AR A ) and Wuhan President Enterprises
Food Co., Ltd. (RE#H —TERMABEMRAF) . In January
2010, Mr. Zhang served as the Brand Manager of Instant Food
Department of the Group and was promoted to the position of
General Manager in October 2014. Mr. Zhang has over 23 years
working experience in the food industry. Mr. Zhang graduated from
Huazhong University of Science and Technology, the PRC, Hankou
with a bachelor degree of engineering. He is currently pursuing an
EMBA master degree in Wuhan University, the PRC.
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Mr. HUANG, Wei (=#), aged 36, joined the Group in June
2004. From June 2006 to October 2009, he was responsible for
the planning and brand marketing of the food product business.
From 2010 to 2013, he served as the manager of the marketing
department at Beijing President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. (4t
RiFE—RBMBAEMAA) and Kunshan President Enterprises Food
Co., Ltd. (BIU#ZE—RMEMRAF]) . From 2013 to 2014, he was
responsible for brand management of the Instant Food Department
of the Group. From 2014 to 2016, he was employed as the
general manager of the E-commerce Department of the Group and
concurrently served as the strategic development director of the
marketing strategy office. Since September 2017, he has been the
general manager of the business unit of the Life and Food Business
Department and the E-commerce Department of the Group. Mr.
Huang holds a master degree in business administration (MBA)
from the School of Management, Fudan University, the PRC.

Mr. ZHAO Nianen (5 2 ), aged 41, joined the Group in
April 1999. He had acted as the head of marketing, the head of
operation and the head of dairy drink department of Kunshan
President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. (BILG— ¥ ERBRE A
A]) from March 2000 to October 2008, and has been appointed
as the head of bottled water business of the Group since October
2006. He has been a general manager of the combined drinks
business of the Group since October 2014. He has more than 19
years of experience in the food and beverage industry and holds a
bachelor’s degree in economics from Shanghai Maritime University,
the PRC.

Mr. WEI Chih-Chung (25 14), aged 49, joined the food
product business (Taiwan) of UPE and the Group in 1999 and 2003
respectively. Prior to 2010, Mr. Wei served as product manager
of food product business, combined drink products business
and juice business and as manager of the investment planning
unit. In 2010, he served in the PL (Private Label) OEM business
new business unit. In 2011, he was transferred to a subsidiary,
Uni-President (Shanghai) Private Label Marketing & Trading Co.,
Ltd., as general manager. In 2012, he was the general manager of
the trading business unit. He has been the general manager of juice
business of the Group since 2013. He has more than 24 years of
experience in the food and beverage industry. Mr. Wei graduated
from Drexel University in Pennsylvania, U.S.A. (EEE N EEALZ)
with a master’s degree in business administration.

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Ms. CHEN Jui-Fen ([RI5%%), aged 45, joined Guangzhou
President Enterprises Corp. (EMHKE—XBR A A), a
subsidiary of the Group, in February 2009 and was responsible
for the management of marketing functions of Guangzhou
President Enterprises Corp. ([EM & — 12 AR A a]) and Wuhan
President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. (REHFE—CERBARA
7]) , subsidiaries of the Group, prior to October 2011. She was
re-designated as the deputy general manager of the head office
of the Group’s tea business in October 2011 and was promoted
to the position of general manager in July 2013. Before joining the
Group, she has engaged in marketing in various companies such
as Wyeth Nutrition, Taiwan Branch, Ting Hsin International Group
(TBFBEEERE) and YFY (5kZ£) and has 21 years of experience
in the food and fast moving consumer goods industries. In 2006,
she started to work in Mainland China when she joined Wei Chuan
Foods Corporation (k2R m T ZE KM BR A F]) of Ting Hsin
International Group (TE#TEIFR £ #) and has since gained 12
years of work experience in the Mainland. Ms. Chen holds both
master’s degree in nutrition and health sciences from Taipei Medical
University in Taiwan and EMBA program (Shanghai) of Taiwan’s
National Chung Hsing University.

Company Secretary

Mr. PANG Ka-Fai Angus (X&), aged 48, is the company
secretary of the Company. Mr. Pang has previously served the
Company from February 2008 to April 2014 and rejoined the
Company since September 2014. Mr. Pang is a director of Gowise
Corporate Services Limited. He has 26 years of experience in
financial management, corporate finance, corporate restructure
and corporate secretarial work. He holds a master’s degree
of Corporate Governance and a bachelor degree of Business
Administration in Accounting from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University, is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators in the United Kingdom, and is a regulatory
committee member of The Hong Kong Independent Non-Executive
Directors Association.
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Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, “Group”) is committed to ensure a high
standard of corporate governance practices and procedures and
appreciates that good corporate governance is crucial to enhancing
investors’ confidence in the Company. In the opinion of the board
(the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company, the
Company has complied with all code provisions of the corporate
governance code (the “Corporate Governance Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) during the year ended 31 December 2017 (the
“Year”), except for the deviation as disclosed below:

Code Provision A.2.7 of the Corporate Governance Code requires
the Chairman of the Board to hold meetings at least annually with
the non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) without the executive Directors present. As Mr. Lo Chih-
Hsien, the Chairman of the Board, is also an executive Director,
the Company has deviated from Code Provision A.2.7 as it is not
applicable.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the Year, the composition of the Board was as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (Chairman)
Mr. Liu Xinhua (President)
(appointed with effect from 25 March 2017)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui (redesignated with effect from 1 July 2017)
Mr. Su Tsung-Ming
Mr. Hou Jung-Lung (retired on 19 May 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Sun-Te

Mr. Chen Johnny

Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony
Mr. Lo Peter

#i— ¥ EER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The term of office of the Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) is three years. In accordance with the Corporate
Governance Code, any new Director appointed to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall submit himself/herself
for re-election by shareholders of the Company at the first general
meeting of the Company after the appointment. In accordance with
the articles of association of the Company, at each annual general
meeting of the Company (the “AGM”), one-third of the Directors
for the time being or, if their number is not three or a multiple of
three, the number nearest to, but not less than, one-third, shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director (including
those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. The Directors’ remunerations
are determined with reference to their duties, responsibilities and
experience, and to the prevailing market conditions.

Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, investment and
strategic decisions, maintaining the effectiveness of risk management
and internal control systems, and monitoring the performance of
the Group. There are currently four committees established under
the Board, being the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”),
the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the
investment, strategy and development committee (the “Investment,
Strategy and Development Committee”). Each committee has its
terms of reference and reports to the Board regularly.

The Company does not have a chief executive officer, whose role is
instead performed by the president of the Group (“President”). The
roles of the Chairman of the Board and President of the Company
are performed by separate persons. The Chairman of the Board
is responsible for ensuring that the Directors perform their duties
properly and ensuring discussions on material matters take place
on a timely basis. The power and authority to carry out day-to-
day operations and implementation of the strategies and directions
set by the Board are delegated to the management team of the
Company (the “Management”) which is led by the President. The
Management assumes full accountability to the Board for the
operation of the Group.

% — ¥ FEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 6»]
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board has at all times during the Year met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of the minimum
required number of independent non-executive Directors
which shall be at least one-third of the Board with at least one
independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

Pursuant to the provision A.4.3 of the Corporate Governance
Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules: (a) having served
the Company for more than nine years could be relevant to the
determination of a non-executive Director’s independence, and (b)
if an independent non-executive Director has served for more than
nine years, his further appointment should be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by shareholders of the Company. Each of
Mr. Chen Sun-Te, Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony and Mr. Lo Peter have
served as the independent non-executive Directors for more than
nine years since 2016, and the shareholders of the Company have
approved their appointment under separate resolution at the AGM
held on 20 May 2016.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors his respective confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Board considers
each of them to be independent under the aforesaid Rule 3.13. Mr.
Chen Sun-Te, Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony and Mr. Lo Peter have in-
depth understanding of the Company’s operations and business,
and since they are not involved in the daily management of the
Company nor are they in any relationships or circumstance which
would interfere with the exercise of their independent judgments,
the Board is of the opinion that each of them has the required
integrity and independence to continue fulfilling the role of an
independent non-executive director.

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has not established a corporate governance committee.

Instead, the full Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance function such as developing and reviewing the
Company’s policies, practices on corporate governance, training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, etc. During the Year, the
Board reviewed the Company’s status of compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code.

Every Board member has full access to the advice and services of
the company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable
rules and regulations are followed and they are also entitled to have
full access to Board papers and related materials so that they are
able to make informed decisions and to discharge their duties and
responsibilities.

SUPPORT AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

The Company is responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training for the Directors. All Directors have been given
relevant guideline materials regarding the roles, the duties and
responsibilities of being a Director, the relevant laws and regulations
applicable to them, duty of disclosure of interests and business of
the Group and they have been updated on the latest development
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of
good corporate governance practices. There is a procedure agreed
by the Board to ensure the Directors, upon reasonable request, to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstance,
at the Company’s expenses. The Directors confirmed that
they have complied with code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate
Governance Code on directors’ training. During the Year, all of
the current Directors have participated in continuous professional
development by attending seminars/in-house briefing and/or
reading materials on the following topics to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills and provided a record of training to the
Company.
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TRERME

FREEEIER (M)

EEMA Topics on training covered
Name of Directors (Note)
BEERE (FE) Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (Chairman) a,c
RIS A (ABAFHE) Mr. Liu Xinhua (President) a,c
PeR B 42 St A Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui a
BReRSE Mr. Su Tsung-Ming a
PREEfE S A4 Mr. Chen Sun-Te a b, c
PG 7R ST A Mr. Chen Johnny a b
Bl ELAE Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony a, b
BEELE Mr. Lo Peter a
BT E Note:

(a) TEESREE (a)  corporate governance/regulatory

(b) g (b)  finance

() HEITE (c)  industry-specific

ESERESZEEESER BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS

EFTeTHRTEE HPeE BERRAER
P REBEEE WEERBRAKRNRAREE
BRI - BLE2017E12A31 B IEEE
EEERTTHAEH

Board meetings are held at regular intervals for, among other
matters, reviewing and approving the financial and operating
performance, and considering and approving the overall strategies
and policies of the Company. The Board met four times during the
year ended 31 December 2017.
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The attendance of individual Board members at the Board and
Board committees meetings during the year ended 31 December

BERINART & 2017 are set out in the table below:
dE/ETEERE (M)
Number of meetings attended/held (Note 1)
RE BER
EKZE® R#ZB® HWZEE®  ¥RZE§
FE3-4F &3 &3 &3 8% RRBEAE RRGAIXE
Investment,
Strategy and
Audit  Nomination Remuneration  Development Annual  Extraordinary
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee General General
meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting Meeting Meeting

HiTEE Executive Directors

BREEE Mr. Lo Chin-Hsien 44 - 3/3 3/3 22 il N

YHERE (Hi2) Mr, Liu Xinhua (Note 2) 33 - - - il 01 0

FHEF Non-executive Directors

BEBRE () Mr. Chen Kuo Hui (Note 3) 4/4 - - - 7 17 17

RRERA (i) Mr. Hou Jung-Lung (Note 4) 1" - - - il 0 0

Bk M. Su Tsung-Ming 414 33 - - 22 1 il

BUHHTEF Indlependent Non-executive Directors

REELE Mr. Chen Sun-Te 44 13 - 3/3 212 0/1 01

REEAE Mr. Chen Johnny 3/4 23 303 - 202 01 0

BLERE Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony 414 33 - 33 202 1 il

REERE Mr. Lo Peter 44 3/3 3/3 - 22 il N

B 5 - Note:

1. RAEFENHEAB2BEZEESATHAL 1. Attendances during the Year were made by reference to the number
TEHEMIRE - of meetings held during the Directors’ respective tenures.

2. BIFELLERZABITESTRIRE BE 2 Mr. Liu Xinhua was appointed as an executive Director and a member
LERZEEMNKE MN2017F3H25H £ of Investment, Strategy and Development Committee with effect from
e 25 March 2017.

3. MRBEXEN2017F3A25HE ZT A 3. Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui was appointed as a member of Investment,
B BBEREREZEESKBIWN2017F7 A1 Strategy and Development Committee with effect from 25 March
HEBHARTESHERFERITES - 2017 re-designated from an executive Director to a non-executive

Director with effect from 1 July 2017.
4, FEREBEEBREFENTEERIRE EHE 4. Mr Hou Jung-Lung retired as a non-executive Director and ceased to

LEBERZEQKE MR2017F58198 &£
e

be a member of Investment, Strategy and Development Committee
with effect from 19 May 2017.

% — ¥ EE R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
Annual Report 2017 £ &

65



TRERME

Corporate Governance Report

EREES

RAFEE BEZZECRBYUFATESES
CELEE RERELE RERELE B&R
ERE UR—(IFRTESTHREHEER
RoBEEERERBERZBEIR

EVZEQZTERBER/MINEZBEINE
EhERRNEETSRERZ HENBZH
BDEY BN R B K BRI B AR REE
MBERBERIABEERF BE%ZZEE
MBS ERELEE ATAARRRELTEN
EFRBHERERARARBR A2 @UE
3] o

BERZBERNAFERITZRGH UEH
AEBEFENRTRAMBRRAMABEZEE
BHNAYE BEREZEENAFEETHNT
EREHIT

() EsHEREERMBEER HINE
ZHMBRTAEBMRA 2 g5 RA
KEM  NFEEREZE2017F6 A30H
1F6ME A 2 FE R B 3Rk 2 R
MR 2T

iy SRINERHA BITEBEAFEZ
FEERTIERER UAREZBREZ
U

(i) BERERMBEERSAEERR
EENMAREZERR R A EZBE
2B

(V) BAEEAFEZFRLBEBER
DTSR

(v) H#EEZ2018F12A31HILFEZFE
ZetEl

(vi) teEINERXBAD 2 Bt - fESNIE IR
R 2 2 RBLINE X BRED 2 S )
ExeRttEs:

AUDIT COMMITTEE

During the Year, the Audit Committee comprised Mr. Fan Ren-Da,
Anthony, Mr. Chen Johnny, Mr. Chen Sun-Te and Mr. Lo Peter, who
are independent non-executive Directors and Mr. Su Tsung-Ming,
who is a non-executive Director. The Audit Committee is chaired by
Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on appointment and removal of the
external auditors, approving the remuneration and terms of engagement
of external auditors, reviewing financial information and overseeing the
financial reporting system and internal control procedures. The specific
written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available for
inspection upon request at the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong and on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the Year to review
the annual and interim financial statements and the effectiveness of
the internal control practices of the Group. A summary of the work
performed by the Audit Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

(i) reviewed with the senior management and finance-in-charge
and/or the external auditors the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, the accuracy and fairness of
the annual and interim financial statements for the Year and
for the six months ended 30 June 2017 respectively;

(i) met with the external auditors and reviewed their work and
findings relating to the annual audit for the Year and the
effectiveness of the audit process;

(i)  reviewed with management and finance-in-charge the
effectiveness of the risk management, internal control
systems and the internal audit function of the Group;

(ivy conducted an annual review of non-exempt continuing
connected transactions of the Group for the Year;

(v)  approved the audit plan for the year ending 31 December
2018;

(vi)  reviewed the external auditors’ independence, approved the
engagement of the external auditors and recommended the
Board on the re-appointment of the external auditors; and

— ¥ P EERAFR 2 8 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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(vii)  reviewed the Company’s progress in implementing the
corporate governance requirements as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code and terms of reference of Audit Committee.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

During the Year, the Nomination Committee comprised Mr. Chen
Johnny and Mr. Lo Peter, who are both independent non-executive
Directors, and Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien, who is an executive Director. The
Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Lo Peter.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board, identify individuals
suitably qualified to become members of the Board, assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors and make
recommendations to the Board on any proposed changes to
the Board, or select individuals nominated for directorships and/
or appoint or re-appoint Directors. The specific written terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee are available for inspection
upon request at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong

and the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange.

The Board from time to time considers replenishing the composition
of the Board whenever the Company needs to meet the business
demand, opportunities and challenges and to comply with the
applicable laws and regulations. The nomination procedure basically
follows the Articles of Association, which empowers the Board from
time to time and at any time to appoint any person as a Director
either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. The
Nomination Committee will base on objective criteria with due regard
to the benefits of diversity, as set out in the Board Diversity Policy of
the Company, to identify and recommend the proposed candidate(s)
to the Board for approval of appointment(s), and where a candidate
is proposed to be appointed as an independent non-executive
Director, his/her independence will be assessed in accordance
with, among others, the factors as set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules, subject to any amendments as may be made by the
Stock Exchange from time to time. Where applicable, the totality
of the candidate’s education, qualifications and experience will
also be evaluated to consider whether he/she has the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise for filling the office of an independent non-
executive Director with such qualifications or expertise as required
under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

— ¥ EER AR 2 F Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
Annual Report 2017 £ &

o/



TRERME

Corporate Governance Report

RAFE REZEERT2RgE UR
NEFEMNHAREE - BREZEEERIE
TR BRI SR 14T E D EE A ST Bl Z ST RE
NAASBEZREBELAE BLELERKES
EREMNBIE MESERAAFETE
VR TESBNF - REZEENRENK
HEB)N2017F3ARZTRIHELRE R
MITESR THHE2017F3A25H £20204F
SHC24Bit A= (@ FEEEZEg
BI4ERK : (iiNF201797 A1 8 B MRBEIE L £ A
BITEEHATRIERTES  AHH2017F
7H1HZ2020F6A30Hst BHH=F N £
HEE=eEM-

EEEILEE

ARAB—EBRRAEFTEREREFREK
FhExER ULRRLBEEETENES
T2 R -BEFERMNEFTE S TTILEK
BT RERTRZTRIRXAL6 - EE
SEETLEBRRE R AR RBIEARIHER -

ARRFREZESZHRCNER A AKEZ S
EORARZE - 825 (BETRR) XL - bR
TTHEER EEHFER BE MRIRE
R E - EETZ T E AR R IR E
REAGHNEBRALBFEREEZERERE

ExerHRdEAs ERNMEETE #®
REZERE-HULAEBAERPRH XK
DRE R TRIREA A AEFTSHRANEH
RETRBRZTES RAESEFHIES
ZEEHE UURAREREE -EFEK
EHRAEEFSZITCBR  ABREFERK
H-REEEUBREELRE (BREABNR
BEZRERER) BN AFR [EFEE] —

ffie

08

Annual Report 2017 F#§

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held three meetings to
review the composition and structure of the Board. The Nomination
Committee have reviewed the independence of Mr. Chen Sun-
Te, Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony and Mr. Lo Peter who have served
more than nine years as an independent non-executive Director
at the Company pursuant to the provision A.4.3 of the Corporate
Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The
Nomination Committee also nominated and recommended (i) the
appointment of Mr. Liu Xinhua as an executive Director with effect
from 25 March 2017, for a term of office of three years from 25
March 2017 to 24 March 2020; (i) the change in composition of the
Board committees; (iii) the re-designation of Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui from
an executive Director to a non-executive Director with effect from 1
July 2017 for a term of office of three years from 1 July 2017 to 30
June 2020, all of which were accepted by the Board.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness
of the Board and to maintain the highest standards of corporate
governance and recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity
in the Board. The Board adopted a Board Diversity Policy to comply
with code provision A.5.6 of the Corporate Governance Code. The
Board Diversity Policy is available on the website of the Company.

The Company believes that a diversity of perspectives can be
achieved through consideration of a number of factors, including
but not limited to skills, regional and industry experience, cultural
and educational background, race, gender and other qualities. In
informing its perspective on diversity, the Company will also take
into account factors based on its own business model and specific
needs from time to time.

The composition, experience and balance of skills on the Board are
regularly reviewed to ensure that the Board retains a core of members
with long-standing knowledge of the Group alongside new Director(s)
appointed from time to time who bring fresh perspectives and diverse
experiences to the Board. The process for the nomination of Directors
is led by the Nomination Committee, which has been made on a merit
basis. The Board will review the Board Diversity Policy on a regular
basis to ensure its continued effectiveness. The names of the current
Directors and their biographies (including their role as well as their
skills and experience) are set out in the section headed “Directors’
Profile” of this annual report.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee comprised two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chen Sun-Te
and Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony; and one executive Director, namely
Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr.
Chen Sun-Te throughout the Year.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendation to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure of the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management and the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management. Details of the
remuneration of each of the Directors for the Year are set out in
Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements. The specific
written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available for inspection upon request at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong and on the websites of the Company and
of the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee held three meetings during the Year.
A summary of work performed by the Remuneration Committee is
set out as follows:

(i) reviewed and recommended to the Board on the fees of the
non-executive Directors;

(i) assessed the performance of executive Directors, reviewed
the current level and remuneration structure/package and
approved the specific remuneration package of the executive
Directors; and

(i)  reviewed the current level and remuneration structure/
package of the senior management.

REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

During the Year, the remuneration payable to the 4 members of the
senior management (other than the Directors) of the Group ranged
from RMB1.3 million to RMB1.8 million.
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INVESTMENT, STRATEGY AND
DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

The Board also established the Investment, Strategy and
Development Committee. Up to 24 March 2017, The Investment,
Strategy and Development Committee comprised Mr. Lo Chih-
Hsien who is an executive Director, Mr. Hou Jung-Lung and Mr. Su
Tsung-Ming, who are non-executive Directors, and Mr. Chen Sun-
Te, Mr. Chen Johnny, Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony and Mr. Lo Peter,
who are independent non-executive Directors. On 25 March 2017,
Mr. Liu Xinhua, an executive Director, and Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui, a
non-executive Director were appointed as additional members of
the Investment, Strategy and Development Committee. Mr. Hou
Jung-Lung ceased to act as a member of the Investment, Strategy
and Development Committee on 19 May 2017. The Investment,
Strategy and Development Committee is chaired by Mr. Lo Chih-
Hsien.

The Investment, Strategy and Development Committee held two
meetings during the Year. The primary functions of the Investment,
Strategy and Development Committee are to review the investment
and development plan and policies of the Group and to review
investment proposals and make recommendations to the Board.
The specific written terms of reference of the Investment, Strategy
and Development Committee are available for inspection upon
request at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong.

AUDITORS’ INDEPENDENCE AND
REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor the
independence of the external auditors of the Company to
ensure objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process
in accordance with the applicable standards. Members of the
Audit Committee were of the view that the Company’s external
auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”), is independent and
have recommended the Board to reappoint PwC as the external
auditors of the Company subject to the shareholders’ approval
at the forthcoming AGM. During the Year, the remuneration paid/
payable to all external auditors engaged by the Group for their audit
services amounted to RMB7.3 million. No significant remuneration
was paid to PwC for the provision of non-audit related service to
the Company during the Year.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS
OF LISTED ISSUERS (THE “MODEL CODE”)

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules to regulate the Directors’ securities
transactions. All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry
by the Company, that they have fully complied with the required
standards as set out in the Model Code during the Year and up to
the date of the annual report.

Senior management who, because of their office in the Company,
are likely to be in possession of inside information, have also been
requested to comply with the provisions of the securities dealing
code adopted by the Company, which is no less exacting than the
Model Code when dealing in the Company’s shares.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound
and effective risk management and internal control system of
the Group. The Board has not established a risk management
committee. Instead, the full Board is responsible for performing the
risk management function,
the overall risk management strategies of the Group from time to

including establishing and approving

time, overseeing senior management’s implementation of those
strategies to align with the Company’s overall business objectives,
determining the Group’s risk profile, overseeing risk management
framework structure, reviewing key risks and mitigation strategies
and ensuring risk management effectiveness.

A bottom-up and top-down approach is utilised to ensure a holistic
risk management process. The bottom-up approach is supported
by key business units to identify and prioritise risks while the top-
down approach reviews and assesses if risks are comprehensively
identified, prioritised, and properly addressed by key business units
to accomplish the Group’s objectives. The management team is
regularly monitoring emerging risks for continuous risk assessment
purpose and for building the risk-management based internal audit
plan and periodically assess the adequacy and effectiveness of
risk management and internal controls for ongoing risk assurance
purposes. This enhances the effectiveness of the Group’s risk and
control framework.
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The Group’s risk management and internal control system is
designed to reduce risks, safeguard the Group’s assets, prevent
and detect fraud and protect shareholders’ investment as well
as to ensure that proper accounting records are maintained and
applicable legislation and regulations are complied with. During the
Year, through discussions with the management, the internal audit
team and external auditors and with reference to a report submitted
by the internal audit team, the Board has conducted assessments
and reviews of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control system in various perspectives, including,
among others, financial control, operational and compliance
controls and risk management. The risk management and internal
control systems are reviewed by the Board annually and each
review covers a whole financial year.

The internal audit unit of the Company, which is subordinated to
the Board, formulates the internal audit plan of the Group based
on the strategic objectives analysis, business flow analysis, risk
assessment and performance evaluation and the self-inspection
mechanism with comprehensive risk management functions under
the authority of the Board, the guidance of the Audit Committee
and co-ordination with the external auditors. It regularly reports
to the Audit Committee and the Board for its audit findings and
recommendations on internal control. The system is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss, and to manage rather than eliminate risks of
failure in the Group’s operational systems and in the achievement of
the Group’s business objectives.

During the Year, the internal audit unit of the Company continuously
optimised job responsibilities and functions of different departments
according to the annual audit plan approved by the Board. Such
audit work covered food safety, financial, operation, statutory
compliance and risk management of the Group at all levels and
functions, taking into account of the manpower cost-effectiveness.
During the Year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and material internal controls system
and is of the opinion that the resources for and qualifications of
staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function
are adequate and sufficient. Based on information furnished to it
and on its own observations, the Board is satisfied with the present
risk management and internal control systems of the Group and
considers them effective and adequate. During the Year and up
to the date of this annual report, nothing has been found which
requires substantial improvement.
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The Company adopted a policy for the Directors, senior
management and other employees of the Group on disclosure of
inside information to ensure that inside information is handled and
disseminated properly. During the Year, the Company regarded
information of an event as inside information if it is assessed that
such event might impact the price or trading volume of the shares
of the Company. Should public disclosure of inside information be
required, announcements in relation to inside information, being
approved by the executive Directors under powers delegated by
the Board from time to time, would be published by the Company
as soon as reasonably practicable pursuant to Rules 13.09 and
13.10 of the Listing Rules and the Inside Information Provisions
under Part XIVA of the SFO.

The Group has also adopted an internal policy for certain
employees who, because of their office in the Company, may
from time to time encounter inside information (as defined in the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong)).

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company is committed to ensure that the Group complies
with disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules and other
applicable laws and regulations. The Company communicates with
the shareholders of the Company mainly in the following ways:
(i) the holding of the AGM and extraordinary general meeting(s)
(the “EGM”"), if any, which may be convened for specific purpose
and provide opportunities for the shareholders of the Company
to communicate directly with the Board; (i) the publication of
announcements, annual reports, interim reports and/or circulars
as required under the Listing Rules and providing updated
information of the Group on the website of the Stock Exchange
“http://www.hkexnews.hk”; and (iii) the availability of latest
information of the Group and, if appropriate, press releases of the
Company at the Company’s website “www.uni-president.com.cn”.
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The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for constructive communication between the shareholders of the
Company and the Board. During the Year, the AGM was held on
19 May 2017. Members of the Board, namely Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien
(Chairman), Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui, Mr. Su Tsung-Ming, Mr. Fan Ren-
Da Anthony and Mr. Lo Peter, were present at the AGM to answer
questions raised by the shareholders of the Company at the AGM.
The Company’s external auditors and Company Secretary also
attended the 2017 AGM.

During the Year, an EGM was held on 19 May 2017 for approving,
among others, certain non-exempt continuing connected
transactions of the Company and the estimated maximum
aggregate annual transaction values for the years commencing 1
January 2018 and ending on 31 December 2020, details of which
have been summarised in the section headed “CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS” in the Report of the Directors and
disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 24 March
2017 and 19 May 2017 and the circular of the Company dated 26
April 2017. In addition, two executive Directors, one non-executive
Director, and two independent non-executive directors (namely, Mr.
Lo Chih-Hsien (Chairman), Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui, Mr. Su Tsung-Ming,
Mr. Fan Ren-Da Anthony and Mr. Lo Peter), were present at the
EGM to answer questions raised by the independent shareholders
of the Company. The independent financial advisor appointed
for the said continuing connected transactions and Company
Secretary also attended the EGM.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
(1) Procedures for shareholders to convene an EGM

According to the Articles of Association, any two or more
members of the Company or any one member of the
Company which is a recognised clearing house (or its
nominee(s)) may request for an EGM to be convened upon
depositing at the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong a written requisition specifying the objects of the
meeting and signed by the requisitionist(s), provided that as
at the date of deposit of the requisition, such requisitionist(s)
hold not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company which carries the right of voting at a general
meeting of the Company.

#i— ¥ EER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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3)

If within twenty-one days of such deposit, the Board fails
to proceed to convene the EGM, the requisitionist(s) or any
of them representing more than one-half of the total voting
rights of all of them, may themselves convene an EGM, but
any meeting so convened shall not be held after three months
from the date of the original deposit and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
Board’s failure to convene an EGM shall be reimbursed to
them by the Company.

Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders’ enquiries about their shareholdings can
be directed to the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited. Other shareholders’ enquiries can be directed to the
Company Secretarial Office by post to the principal office of
the Company in Hong Kong or by fax to +852 2893 1150.

Procedures for putting forward proposal at general
meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders of the
Company to put forward proposals at the general meetings
under the Memorandum of Association (the “Memorandum”)
and Articles of Association or the Companies Law of the
Cayman lIslands. If shareholders of the Company wish to
do so, they may request to convene an EGM as stipulated
above and specify the proposals in such written requisition.
Pursuant to Article 116 of the Articles of Association, no
person shall, unless recommended by the Board, be eligible
for election to the office of director at any general meeting
unless during the period, which shall be at least seven days,
commencing no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the
notice of the meeting appointed for such election and ending
no later than seven days prior to the date of such meeting,
there has been given to the Company Secretary notice in
writing by a member of the Company (not being the person to
be proposed), entitled to attend and vote at the meeting for
which such notice is given, of his intention to propose such
person for election and also a notice in writing signed by the
person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, the Company had not amended its constitutional
documents.

ACCOUNTABILITY

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the
preparation of financial statements for each financial period which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
of the results and cash flow for that period. A statement from
the auditors about their reporting responsibilities is set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditor’'s Report” of the annual
report. In preparing the financial statements for the Year, the
Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied
them consistently and have made prudent and reasonable
judgements and estimates and have prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The role of the Company Secretary is currently performed by Mr.
Pang Ka Fai, Angus (“Mr. Pang”). Mr. Pang is serving as an external
service provider to the Company and the primary contact person
of the Company with Mr. Pang is the chief financial officer of the
Company. According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Pang
has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the financial year ended 31 December 2017.
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FOREWORD

Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) attach great importance to
safeguarding and balancing the interests of stakeholders. In the
face of the changing and challenging business environment,
the Group pursues the objective and strategy of its sustainable
development while achieving growth, while actively fulfils its
corporate social responsibilities by ensuring its business operation
creates social, human and natural capital in areas of product
safety, energy saving and environmental protection, disaster relief,
community charity, product quality and employees caring.

It is the responsibility of the Board of the Company to assess
the environmental, social and governance risks, formulate the
environmental, social and governance strategy, ensure the
establishment and maintenance of an effective internal control
system on environmental, social and governance aspects as well
as perform regular analysis and independent assessment on the
adequacy and effectiveness of the said system through the internal
audit function.

As a renowned enterprise in the fast-moving consumer goods
industry, the Group shoulders the responsibility of upholding food
safety and quality assurance, continually optimises its regulatory
mechanism and risk prevention system by monitoring food safety
thoroughly, and ensures product quality and safety, in order to
deliver safe and healthy food to our consumers.

The Group generates revenue and conducts its principal business
in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”). This Environmental,
Social and Governance Report (“ESG Report”) mainly covers
information of the principal business of manufacturing and sale of
instant noodles and beverages of the Group in the PRC for the
period from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017, and excludes
information of the Group’s associates and joint ventures.
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ENVIRONMENT

The Group primarily engages in the manufacturing of instant
noodles and beverages, which is closely linked to the usage of
natural resources and environmental protection. The Group places
equal emphasis on economic benefit and environmental protection,
strictly abides by environmental laws and regulations, incorporates
energy conservation and emissions reduction initiatives in
operational activities. The Group demonstrates its commitment to
environmental protection through continuous upgrade of production
techniques and product quality, introduction of technology
on energy saving, emissions reduction, clean production and
pollution treatment enhancement, and recycling of water and other
resources. In 2017, the Group invested a total of RMB10 million in
energy saving and environmental protection.

GAS EMISSION CONTROL AND WASTE
TREATMENT

Emission of wastewater, gas and solid waste from operation by
factories of the Group is in compliance with national standards and
requirements of the local environmental authorities of the PRC.
The Group has formulated “Operational Standards on Sewage
Treatment” and “Operational Standards for Boilers”, which are
internal policies applied across operational units of the Group, to
control the pollutant emissions. In addition, the Group has in place
a daily inspection system for the pollution treatment facilities and
implemented monthly and annual maintenance to ensure pollution
treatment equipment is under normal operation and that the
emission of various pollutants meets the relevant standards. With
increasingly stringent environmental protection requirements, the
Group actively aligns with the energy conservation and emissions
reduction measures of the government, such as replacing coal-fired
boilers, centralising heat supply implantation, retrofitting low-NOx
combustion boilers and optimising the online monitoring system,
which facilitates emissions reduction and real-time control.
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In terms of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes, the Group
actively responds to the environmental-friendly requirements of
waste reduction, resource utilization and contamination reduction,
develops and implements the “Working Standards for Scrap
Materials” internal control system, facilitates resources recycling
and reusing, and reduces waste treatment volume through daily
production process management and effective waste separation.
Meanwhile, it closely monitors on the qualifications of hazardous
wastes treatment service providers, so as to supervise the entire
process of the production, collection, storage and disposal of
hazardous wastes effectively.

The below table sets out the total emission from the operation of
the Group in 2017:

B Emission 2017 2016
K (W) Wastewater (tonnes) 5,521,339.3 5,641,140.6
fvBEFa=E (M) Chemical oxygen demand (tonnes) 348.1 354.0
REY (W) Nitrogen oxide (tonnes) 150.1 208.7
BERE Greenhouse gas 437,216 598,375
(BE_frixsE (tonnes of carbon dioxide)
BEEEWES (H) Total amount of hazardous waste (tonnes) 141.9 157.1
mEREEYESE (TH) Total amount of non-hazardous waste 49.0 48.2

(thousand tonnes)

WERA~ BOERENERENELRE
RLBEMTR - BEASEBRARBLEE
BAKECREEXRBHRENEEZE -

As shown on the above table, the total production of certain
identified wastes has generally dropped when compared with
last year. Despite the large production scale of the Group, it has
mitigated the negative impact of its operations on the environment.
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The Group strictly complies with relevant environmental laws and
regulations of the PRC. To reduce damages to the environment,
it also reviews improvement measures on an ongoing basis and
ensures systematic management and optimization. As the Group
is engaged in the manufacturing industry, it generates emissions
which is strictly censored by environmental regulations. Thus, the
Group is required to strictly comply with the following relevant
national laws, regulations and requirements:

“Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of
China”

“Environmental Impact Assessment Law of the
People’s Republic of China”

“Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution Law of the
People’s Republic of China”

“Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s
Republic of China”

“Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by
Solid Waste Law of the People’s Republic of China”

“Environmental Noise Pollution Prevention Law of the
People’s Republic of China”

“Regulations on the Safety Administration of
Dangerous Chemicals”

“Emission Standard of Atmospheric Pollutants from Boilers”

“Comprehensive Sewage Discharge Standards”

“Provisional Regulations for the Administration of
Pollutant Discharge Licenses”

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with such
laws and regulations in 2017.
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Reduced nitrogen oxide emissions

AREELETHRI THSGE HEEDS
TR LERFAAERBHEREE A
W42 R I o

The following are examples of reduction of greenhouse gas
emissions through system upgrades.

Reduced carbon dioxide emissions

The Akesu factory of the Group replaced the coal-fired boilers
with natural gas boilers in October 2017. The Harbin factory and
Nanning factory introduced centralised heating in August 2017. It
is expected to reduce coal consumption by over 16,000 tonnes
per year.

The Shaanxi factory of the Group upgraded and renovated the
natural gas boilers for low-nitrogen combustion in November
2017. It is expected to reduce emission of nitrogen oxides by 3.38
tonnes per year.

REZ YOk E A

Waste recycle and reuse

The Group sets up storage units for scrap materials and waste
sorting at its manufacturing factories to manage waste separation.
It engages qualified service providers for recycling and treatment,
which significantly promotes resources recycling.
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USE OF RESOURCES

As a part of its commitment to corporate social and environmental
responsibility, the Group strictly complies with laws and
regulations in relation to the use of resources during the course
of production and operation. To meet the government’s target of
energy saving, the Group develops energy management platform
system to regulate energy utilization and statistical methods,
adopts comprehensive approach in resources exploitation and
utilization, explores new ways of resources conservation and
continuously facilitates the utilization of recycled resources such
as water resources and waste heat. At the same time, it promotes
innovation, actively evaluates and introduces new energy saving
technology, and continuously provides training on energy-
saving knowledge to raise staff awareness of energy-saving
and environmental protection while enhancing effective use of
resources.

The table below sets out the total consumption of certain resources
from the operation of the Group in 2017:

EiRfER Use of resources 2017 2016

K (WE) Water (tonnes) 8,543,173 10,352,899

K= E Water intensity 482.2 579.3
(Mg, BBITARE) (tonnes/RMB million)

BN (REE) Electricity (MWh) 316,940 362,573

KAR (JKFLE) Natural gas (MWh) 386,530 427,982

B (JKERF) Coal (MWh) 52,961 103,681

SNEEEE T (K ELRF) Purchased steam (MWh) 654,916 713,584

HEEREE Direct energy intensity 25.69 30.59
(KEF /"BETARE) (MWh/RMB milion)

MEZERZE Indirect energy intensity 54.85 60.22
(KEF, /" BAETARE)  (MWh/RMB milion)

SR MATABREMEEE  Total packaging materials for finished 32.3 32.4
(&ng) products (ten thousand tonnes)

T K EREREEREREEREEMC (B
BTARE] KER[EE]FTE-

WM ERMR AEBEERENSEREIRRIKH
MEEEZFHELARRD ETHENK
RAEEBEBNEELEBRRIRK
i AHIE B RO M B E R

Note: Water, direct energy and indirect energy intensity are presented in
“RMB million” based on “product value”

As shown on the above table, the total amount of various energy
sources, and water consumed by the Group has significantly
reduced when compared with last year. With these encouraging
results, the Group will continue to explore and adopt new
technology in its operations to use resources more efficiently.
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The following examples illustrate the Group’s installation of new
equipment to achieve such purpose.

Waste water recycling and treatment

The Xinjiang factory of the Group constructed the
advanced sewage treatment facilities, of which
the sewage discharge to meet the standards for
landscaping and greening purposes. The annual
annual recycling capacity was over 70,000
tonnes.

Nine factories of the Group added
secondary reverse osmosis units
for recycling of concentrated
water after primary reverse
osmosis, with the aim of saving
water resources.

Use of photovoltaic energy

The use of idle rooftops to generate photovoltaic energy by four
factories of the Group generated electric power of 6,790 MWh
annually.
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The Group attaches importance to water resources recycling
and maximises the recycle of water resources, such as collecting
reusable water from bottle washing, reverse osmosis concentrated
water, condensed water from steam and other recyclable water
resources. Meanwhile, the Group works in line with local government
plans and performs deep treatment on processed waste water
before it is applied for municipal and factory greening, with an
annual recycle capacity of approximately 2.15 million tonnes. The
Group advocates e-offices and diversified communication channels
to reduce community resources consumption. The Group has
not encountered any issues in sourcing the suitable sources of
water. The Group uses proper water sources for production and
engages external parties to examine the quality of water used in the
production process, so as to ensure compliance with the “Hygiene
Standard of Drinking Water”.

ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

In the course of production and operation, the Group sets up
collection and treatment facilities for each type of pollutants at
the factories, thereby ensuring sufficient treatment is available
for pollutant emission to meet or outperform the state and local
standard of discharge. As illustrated in the previous sections in this
ESG Report, the Group has effective green initiatives and plans
in place to continuously assess the compliance of green facilities
with environmental protection requirements. Apart from that, it
positively responds to government planning and strictly complies
with the requirements in respect of the use of clean energy. It also
makes great efforts to support and promote sustainable social and
environmental development.

The Group cares about the environment and resources
conservation. As illustrated in the previous sections in this ESG
report, the factories of the Group attach importance to innovative
operation and technology and process optimisation to minimise
the environmental impact of the production process. The Group
arranges regular training on environmental protection and organises
energy saving activities to raise the green awareness of its
employees with the commitment to developing an environmental-
friendly and resources-saving enterprise. Meanwhile, the Group
keeps abreast of and stringently complies with state and local
laws and regulations relating to environmental protection. It has
developed and optimised the internal rule and regulation of the
Company, namely the “Environmental Safety Operating Standard”.
It has also established an environmental safety team and regularly
organised contingency drills, and linked environment management
with performance appraisal to ensure the is in place. The Group
is not aware that any activities in the course of its production and
operation has any significant impact on the environment and natural
resources.
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EMPLOYMENT

The Group strives to build an efficient, effective and highly-
disciplined team. Not only does it aim at creating an excellent
working environment with active and positive atmosphere, it also
makes efforts to establish and a career platform and a diversity of
communication channels for employees to realise their full potential,
which include staff seminar, employee representative meeting and
mediation committee of the trade union. The Group recruits talents
who meet its strategic needs through open recruitment, career
events at campuses and headhunters on an equal and fair basis.
Adhering to the recruitment and employment principle of “Ability,
integrity, and meritocracy”, the Group sets up a competitive and fair
compensation and bonus system based on employees’ positions
and abilities, and offers performance bonus, incentives, gifts, trave
allowance and supplementary medical care on top of their basic

salary. Through performance

evaluation, management
recruitment measures and
promotion measures, it provides
employees with opportunities
of internal promotion. In order
to enrich the leisure life of
and to show care towards the
Group’s employees, various
culture and sports activities were
organized, through which team
spirit and sense of belonging
among the employees were also
strengthened.
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The Group protects employees’ right to work. Regardless of
gender, race, religious belief, age, disability, sexuality, nationality,
political orientation, veteran background and ethnicity, all staff
members receive equal treatment at work in terms of job
opportunity, remuneration, promotion, disciplinary treatment,
dismissal and retirement. The employment contract that
each employee signs with the Group clearly defines rights,
responsibilities and obligations of employees and employers,
including remuneration, working hours, employee benefits, leaves
etc. Every employee is entitled to terminate an employment with
the relevant Group member. The entering into, amendment,
cancellation and termination of the relevant employment contract
are strictly subject to the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC.

The Group strictly complies with
relevant national laws and regulations,
including the “Labour Law of the
People’s Republic of China” and the
“Labour Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China”, while it takes
initiatives to improve and continuously
enhance the management of labour
relationship. The Group is not aware
of any material non-compliance with
such laws and regulations in 2017.
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HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group maintains strict compliance with relevant national
laws and regulations for the health and safety of its employees. It
adheres to the principle of safe production and people-oriented
approach, and abides by laws and regulations including the
“Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China”, “Fire
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China”, “Special
Equipment Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China” and
“Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases of the People’s
Republic of China”. It also formulated and issued a set of internal
production safety rules and systems, thereby supervising all
aspects of safe production. Meanwhile, it continued to step up
investment in production safety, with the aims of creating a healthy
and safe workplace for employees and safeguarding their health
and safety. There were no general or above production safety
accidents, fire accidents or occupational health hazards in 2017.

The Group adopts the Environmental, Health and Safety (“EHS”)
system and fulfils the corporate commitment on environmental,
health and safety management and protection. It has achieved
systematisation and standardisation of safety management,
and raised employees’ awareness on laws and regulations of
environment, occupational health and safety, which established and
implemented an effective prevention mechanism.
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The Group implemented the safe production responsibility system,
and signed a safe production undertaking which defined the
management duties and work requirements of safety officers,
while implementing multi-dimensional and all-round safety and
prevention system with respect to procurement, production,
logistics, construction and transportation. It has established various
internal control standards such as the “Working Practices of
Production Safety Management Committee”, “Working Practices
of Production Safety Accidents Prevention”, “Working Practices
of Special Equipment Operation” and “Working Practices of
Production Safety Accident Report and Investigation and Treatment
”. At the same time, it actively promotes and continuously
enhances safety standardisation and optimises safety production
objective, indicators, rules and system and operational procedures
in accordance with the evaluation result of production safety
standardisation and production safety alert. The Group pays great
attention to employees’ occupational health, in strict compliance
with the “Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Treatment of Occupational Diseases”, it has formulated and
implemented various preventive measures, regularly conducted
occupational physical examinations for employees and identified
and assessed existing occupational disease hazards to ensure
employees’ occupational health is being safeguarded.

The Group cares for its employees and their happiness. It optimises
back-of-the-house auxiliary services for employees such as
canteen, quarters and recreational facilities, with the aims to reduce
turnover rate and strengthen employees’ risk prevention ability
through expressing care for them. At the same time, the Group
improves working environment by introducing smart devices with
innovative technology and optimises working procedures through
innovative management to ease labour intensity.
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DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group encourages staff members to participate in on-job
trainings and provides training subsidies to eligible employees.
In accordance with the Group’s “Operational Standards on
Management Training” and “Standards on Employees Secondment
Project Management” and based on job nature, the Group offers
trainings of different types and levels to newly recruits, junior
supervisors, senior supervisors and key personnel, and specialized
trainings for management trainees, so as to enhance their business
skills and management level in terms of corporate culture, safety
education, professional skills, general skills and leadership. In 2017,
staff of the Group spent an average of approximately 15 hours on
trainings.
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LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group has set up a well-established mechanism and stated in
its “Staff Manual” that the minimum age of employees is 18 years.
The selection, employment, training, compensation, promotion
and deployment of staff of the Group is not biased against any
particular race, skin color, religion or gender, so as to ensure equal
opportunities. The Group obeys and follows the labour laws and
regulations as it adheres to a fair and equitable employment policy
that forbids child and forced labour. The Group is not aware of any
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations on preventing
child or forced labour in 2017.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group adheres to the principle of “food safety as the first
priority (RRZ 2 AFE—1ESL) " all the time. In accordance with
national regulations, it has established stringent internal operating
procedure. The Group conducts comprehensive credit risks
assessment on its suppliers in areas of food safety, environmental
protection, taxation, financial and abnormal credit standing based
on information published by the state. The Group will terminate
cooperation with suppliers who have not complied with national
standards. The raw materials and formulae of the Group’s
food products are subjected to the food safety monitoring and
management system of the food industry. Thus, the selection
of good suppliers and supply chain management mechanism
are of great significance for the smooth transition in the course
of upstream and downstream cooperation, so as to protect
consumers from food safety risks, increase operational efficiency
and achieve a win-win situation for both upstream and downstream
partners in the supply chain.
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In order to avoid issues such as inconsistent product quality and
lack of standardised materials in use throughout the supply chain,
the Group implements “unified tender evaluation mechanism ( £t
—HFHE) " for selecting suppliers, that is, to evaluate well-known
enterprises in the industry based on the principles of fairness,
justice, openness and credibility through procedures such as
visiting the manufacturers’ factories, and inspecting the suppliers’
goods and materials by the Group’s internal department or a
third-party testing organization. Review assessments are being
conducted from time to time every year in order to ensure that the
suppliers comply with the measures formulated by the Group.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

The Group puts food safety as its priority and provides safe,
healthy and delicious food to consumers. To enhance food safety
management, it has set up the food safety committee and food
safety centre, dedicating to the construction of the food safety
protection system, formulation of food safety policy and further
development of risk assessment, alert and monitoring with an
aim of ensuring food safety. The Group is also committed to
managing the quality assurance system as well as establishing
and implementing the product quality maintenance policy, so as to
ensure product quality.

The Group strictly complies with the “Advertisement Law of the
People’s Republic of China” and “Provisional Regulations on
Food Advertising” and other relevant laws and regulations in all
of its product branding and marketing events. There was no non-
compliance within the relevant advertising laws identified in 2017.
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In mass production process, all materials must go through sampling
tests before warehousing to prevent inappropriate materials from
being used in production. All finished products must go through
scanning and inspection by specialists or metal detection devices
to ensure there is no metal scrap or sharp objects. The packaging
for all inspected products is carried out under the supervision of
trained staff so that no dangerous items can be placed into the
packages during delivery. The Group also established a consumer
service centre to handle consumer complaints, enquiries and
comments on product quality and services. Inspections will be
conducted on products being complained against, while the quality
and safety of the same batch of products will also be assessed. A
“Consumer Satisfaction Research Control Procedure” is in place
for the Group’s distributors to conduct random survey on the
satisfaction level on the Group’s product quality and services once
every quarter. The Group is satisfied with the result of the consumer
satisfaction survey in 2017.

In addition to strict compliance with relevant national requirements,
the Group also established internal control standards, for instances,
the “Product Specification Standards” and “Safety Specification
Standards for Food Products” which stipulate the compliance
in relation to product quality and safety. The Group also has the
“Procedure for Handling Substandard Delivered Products” in place
which deals with products delivered to customers that are unsafe
or potentially unsafe or may harm the Group’s image. All factories
of the Group will perform a product recall drill annually to test the
effectiveness of such policy on handling substandard delivered
products. At the same time, the Group observes closely the
national food laws and regulations and other food safety standards,
including the “Food Safety Law”. There was no non-compliance in
this respect in 2017.

#i— ¥ EER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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The Group keeps a close business relationship with its distributors
and strictly protects their privacy and commercial secrets.

The Group has adopted reasonable packaging and displayed
detailed product information for its products, including product
details, packaging materials, ingredients and instructions. The
Group’s marketing activities for its products are conducted by
subcontractors based on the Group’s privacy protection policies
and operation strategies, and in accordance with “National Food
Safety Standards — General Rules for Labelling of Prepackaged
Food” and “Standards on Nutrition Labelling of Prepackaged
Foods”, the “Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China”,
“Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China”
and “Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China”.

In 2017, the Group strictly complied with the above rules and
regulations in its course of production and operation.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group has established standards for relationships with
suppliers and government authorities. It has also set up ethical
standards and code of conduct for dealing with business partners,
suppliers and customers, which require its employees to uphold
professional ethics. The internal audit unit and internal control
system are responsible for reinforcing the efforts in anti-corruption
and bribery monitoring within the Group. Furthermore, the
reporting mechanism, together with the incentive and disciplinary
mechanism, have been set up to improve management, training
and promote compliance, so as to prevent the risk of corruption in
all aspects of operation and management.

The Group strictly observes the provisions in the “Anti-Unfair
Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China”, “Criminal Law
of the People’s Republic of China” and other laws and regulations.
The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with such
laws and regulations in 2017.
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Donation to
earthquake-stricken
area in Jiuzhaigou
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group entered the PRC market for more than 25 years. Over
the years, it has been catering to consumers’ diverse needs and
making active contribution to society under the guidance of the
corporate social responsibility policy of its parent company. With
reference to the public welfare practices in China, it aims at “giving
back to the community”. The Group has formulated the internal
standards of “Procedures of Donation for Natural Disasters” and
“Code for Group Activities under the Name of the Company”, which
are evolving with times. It encourages the public to be “optimistic,
ambitious and nature-loving” by organizing and participating in a
wide range of community activities to promote charity, cultural and
sports education, and environmental protection.

In 2017, the Group joined various community activities in the PRC,
including flood and earthquake relief, blood donation, the “1st
August celebration”, the “First Changbai Mountain Mineral Water
Culture and Tourism Festival”’, while creating jobs for university
graduates and offering pick-up/drop-off service at back-to-school
season. It also held the “Plant Tree with QR Code” greening
campaign with SEE Foundation, which incorporated the Group’s
philosophy of “safety first, healthy life and environmental protection”
and showcased its commitment to corporate social responsibility.

R B W E AR R R

Flood relief donation to

Participating in the “First Changbai Mountain

Mineral Water Culture and Tourism Festival”
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To the shareholders of Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Uni-President China
Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 104 to 236, which comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2017;

° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended;
and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Rl T A BT - B R TR
Hat : +852 2289 8888  fHE : +852 2810 9888 » www.pwchk.com

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

o Revenue Recognition: Sales of goods

° Deferred income tax assets

#— ¥ B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNESONEERRETSE

Revenue Recognition: Sales of goods

Wz iBs BamHE

Refer to Note 2.25 (a) and Note 5 to the
Group‘s consolidated financial statements.
E2H ESEGEMBmMKMT2.250 %
M]L u£5 °©

During the year ended 31 December 2017,
the Group has recognised revenue from sales
of goods amounted to RMB21 ,297 million.
B ZE2017F12A31B ILFE - EER5
721 on 86 B WA 5T AR #6521 2975?%7%0

Revenue is recognised when the amount
and the related costs are reliably measured,
and the risks and rewards of the underlying
products have been transferred to the
customers.
EHERAURBAKAGEHREAE - Bk
EmNEERBMBMNEERREE SR
7 Al HERAE R R S E WA o

We focused on this area due to the huge
volume of revenue transactions generated
from sales of numerous kinds of products to
a large number of customers, including direct
customers and distributors in many different
locations.

B BEREXRENEMIEERSBRARIR
RABERZHNEFRESEER B
AR 8 B B % 5 P A S5 78 o B Ut 3 AP
KR miHERANERIESBRBET R

We understood, evaluated and validated management’s controls
in respect of the Group’s sales transactions from customer order’s
approval, goods delivery, sales recording, reconciliation of cash
receipts and customer’s records through to subsequent settlement
of trade receivables. In addition, we tested the general control
environment of the Group’s information technology systems and
the automatic controls that were related to revenue recording.
BAMTLERFARR S EURERREER S 2 A
BEINHEXRIGWATEEM AmEL WARSE WHERTFT
BozE BEHERKEFNEE 2 TBIBIE I HEHES
Rz —MESIRFETAS  WARBRKABREHE 2 R4 E
Bl o

We conducted testing of revenue recorded covering different
locations and customers, using sampling techniques, by examining
the relevant supporting documents including customer orders,
goods delivery notes and customer’s receipt notes. In addition,
we confirmed customers’ balances and transactions on a sample
basis, by considering the amount, nature and characteristics of
those customers.

BREARMRARAN A HTEER R TNRABEE 2 WAS
BETAS Bt B EBRAZTR XA NER

s
JENEENT

BERWCHFEELETAA - &tﬁlﬁﬁzf%ﬁ?ﬁﬁ%ﬁi%ﬁ TEE A
THZEE LMEEME‘HEEHX#—?EX%;H%;T% T8N EY

RIENMRBEATEITAE

Furthermore, we tested sales transactions that took place shortly
before and after the balance sheet date, by reconciling recognised
revenue with the goods delivery notes and customers’ receipt
notes, to assess whether revenue was recognised in the correct
reporting periods.

AN B HEEBERBARREHBEANHEER 5ETA
B ARRELEES R EWCHRICE AT EEESA
EBEEE HAERY -

Based on the work performed, we found the Group’s revenue
from sales of goods being tested were recognised in a manner
consistent with the Group’s revenue recognition accounting policy.

REBERPIFFATOET TE RMARS EXERAREERAZR
FIEREE IR AR Z R B
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN ETOMEEARETSE

Deferred income tax assets

EEFEHEE

Refer to Note 2.22 and Note 12 to the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
w20 ESREFA B ®RENT2.22 %
2.

As at 31 December 2017, deferred income
tax assets of approximately RMB138
million were recognised for tax losses that
can be carried forward, to the extent that
realisation of the related tax benefits through
the availability of future taxable profits is
probable. On the other hand, the Group did
not recognise deferred income tax assets of
approximately RMB123 million in respect of
tax losses that can be carried forward against
future taxable income.

R2017F12A310 - BEEEREARREM
REFEERMNEMAT TS ST RREARE
AAREH 2 R B EERRLERENEE
SREHBARBABBEE L BN HREKK
HE A ENEATMSENTEEE &
SERERARELEMEREENCRORA
R¥1236 8T -

Significant judgements are required in
determining the recognition of deferred
income tax assets, considering whether future
taxable profit will be available against which
the accumulative tax losses can be utilised.
FHURFERTIS B E SRS Kk B E FIE
FERIRRERALESE AN BN NS
AR KRB RTS8 -

We focused on this area due to the inherent
complexity and judgements on the forecast
of the availability and timing of future taxable
profits, including the key assumption of
revenue growth rates and gross margin.
ZRIZGA A RIRAEM W EZH
By R AR REART TSRO BRELERE
B FER R B E W AR R R R ERMEK
SHRMER WEMIERBRETFE-
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As part of our risk assessment in this area, we compared the
current year actual results with the prior year forecast to consider,
with hindsight, whether key assumptions included in that forecast
had been subject to management bias.

ERERFEN —HD BALBAFEEREERURFEZ
BMIER ARERAGRMNTBAT 2 EARBRECSFEERERE
fmR e

We then evaluated and challenged management’s profit forecasts
for the next five years of individual entities that have accumulated
tax losses. Our assessment focused on certain key assumptions,
such as revenue growth rates and gross margin, by comparing
them to these entities’ historical operating results and future
operating plans, together with economic and industry forecasts.
We also considered the potential impact of reasonably possible
downside changes in these key assumptions.
BATEREREREEUEEANBERNE R FRRMENR
REFBAMERZEBE -ERMNFETERBIZLEER
RIER  PINE AR REXRNENE T 2RBLEBAB T LAINE
EHIBRAKREETE WESHLBERITRZ A S50 F
it P ERRRAREEN TRBEH R R EEMERNE
R BET

The existence and amounts of tax losses, together with their expiry
dates, and the income tax rates applicable to the entities have
been verified by examining the tax returns submitted by the relevant
entities and reviewing the correspondences with the tax authorities.
BMBABERS FRARAEE FHREARETIENBHAZBR -
NBRERBEBRNFE SFERY FBHNERARZDEE
REPTISTIR X

Based on our work performed, we found that management’s
judgement and estimation for the recognition of deferred tax assets
were supported by the evidences that we gathered.
BREBEZMFAAMTHET TE BMR R EREHHELHMEHE
ERRAZHEG REFTAERRER#F-
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

#— ¥ B R B R 2 F Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise

professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.
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° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,

and whether the consolidated financial statements represent

the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such commmunication.
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The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor's report is Dou Wang, Angel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 March 2017

#— ¥ P EZERAR 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. /] OS
Annual Report 2017 £ &



REEEBEER

Consolidated Balance Sheet
72017F 124318 As at 31 December 2017

2017 2016
Bt & AR®BTRT ARETT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
aE ASSETS
FRBEE Non-current assets
T b fE Land use rights 6 2,103,701 2,221,526
VI S KRR Property, plant and equipment 7 10,504,391 11,097,233
REYHE Investment properties 8 353,123 365,384
BVEE Intangible assets 9 18,959 29,645
BEREARNIEE Investments accounted for using
the equity method 10 719,716 730,474
AEESREE Available-for-sale financial assets 11 222,093 225,528
RIEFTISREE Deferred income tax assets 12 286,972 349,727
H b Uk sk18 —JEBNEAESS  Other receivables — non-current
portion 16 7,117 11,280
14,216,072 15,080,797
REBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 14 1,159,373 1,214,527
FEWE 5 R Trade receivables 15 562,952 542,934
FEAFRIA Prepayments, deposits and
e RE A RURIA other receivables 16 1,255,424 1,453,968
BERAFEERERIER S Financial assets at fair value
TREE through profit and loss 17 60,000 =
& RIBITHEER Cash and bank balances 18 2,782,731 2,463,201
5,820,480 5,674,630
wmEE Total assets 20,036,552 20,705,427
= EQUITY
RKAREZFEAELER  Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company
(LN Share capital 19 39,764 39,764
%15 5 1B AR Share premium account 19 4,829,899 4,829,899
H b f# Other reserves 20 2,384,476 2,236,765
{REB & F| Retained earnings 20 5,561,338 4,933,683
B Total equity 12,815,477 12,040,111
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_ GOEERESR
Consolidated Balance Sheet
2017412 A31H As at 31 December 2017

2017 2016
B o ARETT ARBTT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
=L LIABILITIES
kREBERE Non-current liabilities
BEFSTH AR Deferred income tax liability 12 174,175 191,802
P Borrowings 23 500,000 500,000
HibpEftz0E—JEENEAEE S Other payables — non-current portion 22 251,319 430,879
925,494 1,122,681
REEE Current liabilities
ETE SRR Trade payables 21 1,396,000 1,138,154
HEibETRIB R BT EF Other payables and accruals 22 4,025,729 4,044,333
= Borrowings 23 834,768 2,100,169
EHIFTERAasE Current income tax liabilities 39,084 259,979
6,295,581 7,542,635
HweE Total liabilities 7,221,075 8,665,316
EEREERAEE Total equity and liabilities 20,036,552 20,705,427

FINME26E 2 MEBRAKREPBHRRZ

— 55

F104E236 B i A B HERER2018F3AH
7THIEESR e E WE TIALTRERES

= 25
= K2

consolidated financial statements.

were signed on its behalf.

EEL
LO Chih-Hsien
HiTER

Executive Director

% — ¥ FEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
Annual Report 2017 £ &

B
LIU Xinhua
HITEZE

Executive Director

The notes on pages 111 to 236 are an integral part of these

The consolidated financial statements on page 104 to page 236
were approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2018 and
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mEBEER
Consolidated Income Statement
HZE2017%12 8318 IFFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

2017 2016
B 5 AR%¥TR ARETT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
U 2= Revenue B 21,296,534 20,985,532
SHE KA Cost of goods sold 24 (14,245,011)  (13,757,732)
EF Gross profit 7,051,523 7,227,800
Hih (BE), B %58 Other (losses)/gains — net 25 (31,526) 298,193
HAth g A Other income 26 383,777 409,172
H R Other expenses 24 (75,682) (128,762)
SHE M MisHERER Selling and marketing expenses 24 (5,153,798) (5,849,868)
THHAX Administrative expenses 24 (987,683) (999,024)
BERF Operating profit 1,186,611 962,511
BE KA Finance income 113,484 107,898
A& KA Finance costs (51,774) (95,584)
BEWA —FRE Finance income — net 28 61,710 12,314
EREARZ Share of profits of investments
FEAE I & S5 accounted for
using the equity method 10 28,503 93,147
Br FT 88 A0 % Profit before income tax 1,276,824 1,067,972
FriS & > Income tax expense 29 (398,608) (460,643)
FERAQTER Profit for the year and
BB AEMER attributable to equity holders
of the Company 878,216 607,329
FEAQNTERFTEA Earnings per share for profit
EiERzEREF attributable to equity holders of
(ANEBRAREZE) the Company during the year
(expressed in RMB per share)
—EARREE — Basic and diluted 30 20.33 cents &+  14.06 cents 5

£111 2036 H 2 BB A R & SRR 2

— %5 -

The notes on pages 111 to 236 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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| FAZEBEE
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
H ZE2017512 A31 B L Z For the year ended 31 December 2017

2017 2016
Bt 5E AR%®TR ARKTT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FEEHER Profit for the year 878,216 607,329
Hit2mWhzE (BHE) : Other comprehensive income/
(loss):
B EEEm B Items that may be reclassified
to profit or loss
AHEESHEEY Fair value losses on
NEEBE-KRRFE available-for-sale financial assets,
net of tax 11 (3,435) (1,496)
AL ECHEERE Impairment of available-for-sale
financial assets 11 20,419 —
FEHMEEWKE  (EIB) Other comprehensive
—BREFHE income/(loss) for the year,
net of tax 16,984 (1,496)
FERADTERZEFTEA Total comprehensive income
Bitz2HER=EEE for the year and attributable
to equity holders
of the Company 895,200 605,833

FI11 2236 B 2B AGE T BwMEK 2 The notes on pages 111 to 236 are an integral part of these
— &R e consolidated financial statements.
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T ReNEenz
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HZ=20178F12 A31 8 ILFZ For the year ended 31 December 2017

RRAEREEAEL
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
Bt zE B R4 5B Hitr ke REEF G
Share Share Other Retained
Note capital premium reserves earnings Total
RN2016F1 810 2 &8 Balance at 1 January 2016 39,764 4,829,899 2,274,569 4,458,171 11,602,403
2HRE Comprehensive income
ER R Profit for the year - - - 607,329 607,329
Hi 2 Ekes Other comprehensive income
—AHHESREEL ~ Fair valug gains on available-for-sale
RTEFNG-RIFE financial assets, net of tax 11 - - (1,496) - (1,496)
Hit2HRELHE Total other comprehensive income - - (1,496) - (1,496)
FEZZAKGZAE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - (1,496) 607,329 605,833
RETAETZRS Transaction with owners
BRELERE Appropriation to statutory reserves - = 131,817 (131,817) -
EHO015F B 2R E Dividends relating to 2015 20(c) - - (168,125) - (168,125)
H2016F12A31B 248  Balance at 31 December 2016 39,764 4,829,899 2,236,765 4,933,683 12,040,111
R2017F1R18 2 &8k Balance at 1 January 2017 39,764 4,829,899 2,236,765 4,933,683 12,040,111
2EKH Comprehensive income
FEmH Profit for the year - - - 878,216 878,216
Hih2Eas Other comprehensive income
- EH#\ HESREEL ~ Fair value losses on available-for-
AEEEE-RIFHE sale financial assets, net of tax 11 - - (3,435) - (3,435)
ARHESREAERE - Impaiment of available-for-sale
financial assets 1 - - 20,419 - 20,419
Htt2 AN HEE Total other comprehensive income - - 16,984 - 16,984
FEZEEKRAE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - 16,984 878,216 895,200
BETANETZRS Transaction with owners
BAEETEHE Appropriation to statutory reserves - - 130,727 (130,727) -
EH2016F B 2R E Dividends relating to 2016 20(c) - - - (119,834) (119,834)
R2017F12A31B 248  Balance at 31 December 2017 39,764 4,829,899 2,384,476 5,561,338 12,815,477

F111E236H 2B AGAFFRE 2 The notes on pages 111 to 236 are an integral part of these
— &8 o consolidated financial statements.
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| GEBERES
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
H ZE2017512 A31 B L Z For the year ended 31 December 2017

2017 2016
B 5 AR¥TR ARETT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
EETHZRERE Cash flows from operating
activities
EEELECZRSE Cash generated from operations 32 3,114,670 2,555,362
BTS2 Interest expenses paid (93,562) (146,541)
B ATER Income tax paid (568,345) (269,995)
BEESELECFRS Net cash generated from
operating activities 2,452,763 2,138,826
REZBH2EHESRE Cash flows from investing
activities
WE—XMBAR] Acquisition of a subsidiary,

HEBREERE R net of cash acquired - (28,654)

T RIBN LM AEFIE  Payment and prepayment for

land use rights - (63,874)
HE L HFRAEZTSFIE  Proceeds from disposal of

land use rights 39,445 =
BEYE WELE&E Purchases of property,

plant and equipment (994,012) (944,163)
HEWE  WE & Proceeds from disposal of property,

RS IRIE plant and equipment 32 10,296 7,156
BERAEMZE Purchases of investment properties (6,331) (34,070)
BEENEE Purchases of intangible assets (462) (15,111)
Bl —R& BB ERAK Proceeds from capital reduction of

"E 2B RIA investment in a joint venture 10(a) 35,766 =
HER—KBEAFHREZ Proceeds from disposal of

Fr 1S 8 investment in an associate - 1,291,324
BEATEERERTERZ Payment for financial assets at

TREE R fair value through profit or loss (60,000) =
HESMEEMSRKIEA Proceeds from sale of financial assets 25 4,663 188
SR HIRITIE SRR A Decrease/(increase) in restricted bank

(3 hn) deposits (500) 4,220
ZIEAR R = R A Decreases in time deposits with

EHER 2D maturity more than 3 months 185,481 55,430
BEERER Dividends received from

— K2 N BE 2 iR B joint ventures and an associate 10 3,495 4,199
wEES (FrA),/ Net cash (used)/received in

gz FRe investing activities (782,159) 276,645

% — ¥ FEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
Annual Report 2017 £ &
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SABERER
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
HZE2017%12 8318 ILEFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

P
e

2017 2016
Bt 5 AREBTRT AREBTT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
RETBZHERE Cash flows from financing
activities
RITEEMGHIA Proceeds from bank borrowings 11,062,327 12,801,142
BERITEER Repayments of bank borrowings (12,326,829) (14,456,387)
ARG FEEA Dividends paid to equity holders
SRR B of the Company (119,834) (168,125)
BMEFREFAFRS Net cash used in financing activities (1,384,336) (1,8283,370)
HERBRLSEEYEMELE  Net increase in cash and
cash equivalents 286,268 592,101
FOZHeRREEED Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of the year 2,076,839 1,473,317
RekBeEEBY2 Exchange (losses)/gain on cash and
&5 (F518) ke cash equivalents (6,757) 11,421
FRZBERBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents
at end of the year 18 2,356,350 2,076,839

F111E236E 2B AL E T BiREK 2 The notes on pages 111 to 236 are an integral part of these
— & e consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

—REH

G- ERBEZERBERAA(IARA
A1) R2007F7A4BRIE (F = B
EREE) EREHNEAMK L AE
BEERAF - ARAZMFHER 2
H ik A P.O. Box 309, Ugland House,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman
Islands

ARRRREZERAR - MENEB R A
(BEARBGHE [ AEE]) TBERE
ARAMBE ([HFERERERHEE
FR R BERSE ([FERKBESE
MEH]) -

AATEEREEHERARRE K
2l ) 2007412 A17 B 72 & 4 Bt
ERGERART ([BRZ])ERE
m(lEml) -

BRBHAIN RRAMBHREAAR
BT (TARET T2

EESTREME

AMEINERREZEEAVHERE
BRARAZEIZRABR -REARB
S ZERREBERRAZ A
FE-

GENERAL INFORMATION

Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4 July 2007 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands. The address of the Company’s
registered office is P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged in
the manufacturing and sale of beverages and instant noodles
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) (the “PRC
Beverages and Instant Noodles Businesses”).

The Company completed its global initial public offering
and its shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on
17 December 2007 (the “Listing”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Renminbi (“RMB’000”), unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 EESTTHREE (&)

2.1

112

mRE®E

AEBZEAVBRERTIZRA
BERBEEMBREEA(IF
B EWELEL])RE - ZFK
EMBHBRERELKNAREELR
2 -UREGHATHIESHEE "
URBAFEEBRERLEZE
REERERAGB(BREITETL
B)FHERT ARRE VIEAF
B 58

RENEEEWHREEI 2
BHRRFEERETHEARSE
B-ENFREEECERAARE
GRS BIZ T R HIH -

21.1 Bt HRR I FEZHE

@@ AEEFANRRTE] RAMSGTE
A

LA E] R &8 E 7T 22 Bl 201 74F

1TATERBROFBFEE &R

AR

BB G ERNETE (BF]) R
EREXRIN2017F1 1B 2
BFARNTEREER - ZFERT
SIAFEINEEE @M EHmKERE
A EREETEEEENE
1t -

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (the
“HKFRS”). They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
available-for-sale financial assets, and financial assets
and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments)
at fair value through profit or loss, which are carried at

fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgment in the process of applying the

Group’s accounting policies.

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(@  New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The following new and amended standards are
mandatory for the first time for the financial year

beginning 1 January 2017:

HKAS 7 (Amendments) “Statement of cash flows”
is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2017. The amendments introduced an
additional disclosure that will enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from

financing activities.

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Annual Report 2017 F#§



e B R M R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 EESTTHREE (&)

2.1

mREE (F)

21.1 Bt BERBEECHEE
(4

@) AEEFAAIFE] RASIEETE
A (%)

BB G ERE125% (BFT) AT
GBI R2017FE1A1B 2 &R
SRV E B AW - SR E R ER
ERELEHIAEE ZHBIERE
BEATEFENEB AR
EIR T TR IR B B R AN ] A B

BEMBGHREERE 125 (BF])
[EEMEEFIEZNERE]R
20171 A1 2R FE
MR AR - ZIEF = BB BWmE
# 82014-201618 H F & 0 # 5
BN —HD - ZIETBBETHRTH
BERRMEIN BBV HRELR
FI2HRNBERERTCHERRESD
ERBAEFEN B ER -

BB RABTEHAE
BE SRS MR EE
HEKBERTE -

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

@  New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(Continued)

HKAS 12 (Amendments) “Income taxes” is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.
These amendments on the recognition of deferred tax
assets for unrealised losses clarify how to account
for deferred tax assets related to debt instruments
measured at fair value.

HKFRS 12 (Amendment) “Disclosure of interest in other
entities” is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2017. The amendment is part of the
annual improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 cycle. It
clarifies that the disclosure requirement of HKFRS12
is applicable to interest in entities classified as held for
sale except for summarized financial information.

Amendments and interpretations as mentioned
above are not expected to have a material effect on
the Group’s operating results, financial position or
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 EESTTHREE (&)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

21 HEHEEE () 2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1

(b)

ERRRREZEE
(#)

T3l B E B IER2017FE 1
A 1H F15 8981 B JE 5 R
R B IR BHIEBTIRAN B FTET
BRI #ERZ FTaR FERIEET
Ra2FE:

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)  The following new standards, new interpretations
and amendments to standards and interpretations
have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2017 and have
not been early adopted:

HUTRSS
LRERN
EESmLY
REUEREEN  ENRBEENE WN18E1A1R
EalACH)) FEED
AAUEREEN  RARARL N18E 1A
E7AUH) MERiTE
BRUEREEN  RRAD WN18E1A1R
EACH)
AAUERLEN  fRIA N18E 1A
205
ERUERLEN  EZFZRNAR N18EI 18
Falii Etnka
BE(ABHERE MERFREN N18E1A1R
2EZEE) KE
REENS
BhaiEd NBELIRAE W18 18
EE(BE)  LEBRE
BReEl 20Nz N18E1A1R
BA0% (537
AEEgLEN  fig NI9E1ATR
£16%
Ak (AREERE FEHREL N19F1A1H
2EZ3E) TRt
REENR
ARMERLEN  REREEEE BRER
FI0ERES DAsARLE
SiERENE  JENAENE
(#57) Ehi
BRUEREEN  RRAL NNE1FIRH
Ealg NEREANERE
EHZ5ERAAYE
HEENZ0RE

114

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on
or after
HKFRS 1 First time adoption of 1 January 2018
(Amendment) HKFRS
HKFRS 2 Classification and 1 January 2018
(Amendments) measurement of
share-based payment
transactions
HKFRS 4 Insurance contracts 1 January 2018
(Amendments)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments 1 January 2018
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts 1 January 2018
with customers
HK (IFRIC) 22 Foreign currency 1 January 2018
transactions and

advance consideration
HKAS 28 Investments in 1 January 2018
(Amendment) associates and joint
ventures
HKAS 40 Transfers of investment 1 January 2018
(Amendments) property
HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019
HK (IFRIC) 23 Uncertainty over income 1 January 2019
tax treatments
Amendments to Sale or contribution of ~ To be determined
HKFRS 10 and assets between an
HKAS 28 investor and
its associate or
joint venture
HKFRS 17 Insurance contracts 1 January 2021 or
when apply HKFRS
15 and HKFRS 9
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 EESTTHREE (&)

2.1

mREE (F)

21.1 Bt BERBEECHEE
(#4)

(b) T REBEMER2017F]
A 18 F1E 8981 B F R A
- A IR BIERTERANEIZTET
BRI #ER 2 BT FERIEET
R2FE: ()

() BETBMEERFE £
BT A

B

BB RE LR ET MM S B
EEREBBENS R FERK
ILHER - RE TR REREED
B ST AF AR B R R E R 3 o

KW
1

AEBEEENECREERBEY
TR HAM20185F 1 A1 H R 4% % 5] %
ABELETIFE:

AEEBRMAYBEAAHLE (TH]
HHE ) AR HRAREHTE
DEREAFESFAREMEERA
(MERAFEFAEMBZEEALD
ERM AR EEEN ST RE
5 B B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)  The following new standards, new interpretations
and amendments to standards and interpretations
have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2017 and have
not been early adopted: (Continuead)

(i) HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments

Nature of change

HKFRS 9 addresses the classification, measurement
and derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities, introduces new rules for hedge accounting
and a new impairment model for financial assets.

Impact

The Group has reviewed its financial assets and
liabilities and is expecting the following impact from the
adoption of the new standard on 1 January 2018:

The majority of the Group’s equity instruments that are
currently classified as available-for-sale (AFS) will satisfy
the conditions for classification as at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCI) and hence there
will be no change to the accounting for these assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 EESBEME(H) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

21 REEE(F) 2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

116

21.1 Bt KRR EZEE
(#4&)

()  T5IEEEMER2017F
A 1H F15 8981 B JE 5 R
R A IR BIEBTERAN B FTET
BRI #ERZ FR FERIEET
R (&)

) FEUBRSEYFS 2
BIA (&)

AEERENEMSREESER
R AT EEARS ((RATE
HARR]) MRAIRE  H ISR
B B 1 5 B O A R )
—HEHE

Bt REBBEAFIESITEHE
ZESREENDERFTE-A
- HERATFEFTAEMEEK
AR & B E EFT# IR e sl 18
BTIEEEEHENER MEK
BEREAFEFAEMEZERAR
BEFTHBEEZRBR/FTHEE -RN
20176 BRASETHLEESH
B ERBEBEARE20,419,000
—-

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)  The following new standards, new interpretations
and amendments to standards and interpretations
have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2017 and have
not been early adopted: (Continued)

(i) HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments (Continued)

Impact (Continued)

The other financial assets held by the Group include
equity investments currently measured at fair value
through profit or loss (FVPL), which will continue to be
measured on the same basis under HKFRS 9.

Accordingly, the Group does not expect the new
guidance to affect the classification and measurement
of these financial assets. However, gains or losses
realised on the sale of financial assets at FVOCI will
no longer be transferred to profit or loss on sale, but
instead reclassified below the line from the FVOCI
reserve to retained earnings. During 2017, impairment
loss of RMB20,419,000 was recognised on the
available-for-sale financial assets of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 EESTTHREE (&)

2.1

mREE (F)

21.1 Bt BERBEECHEE
(#4)

(b) T REEMER2017F]
18 F1E 8981 B R A
- A IR BIERTERANEIZTET
BRI #ER 2 BT FERNIEET
R2FE: ()

() BBUBHRELELFES 2
T A(E)

e (&)

RRFTAREER B ERAFER
ABENERAENEHRE M
AEBY A HAEERNZFEE
- AEEERAENEHEIES
TEXFE -RILEIANFRACH
FEEERFEIRERM T A E
RNEFTEBEBENEZE)-

e GRS R TANS
AAEREABREEROASENER
EEFER-FER/EEMA ARZ
RIS EEARRNSEENTE -
BrAIGEAE 2 A EMEMAEIREst
JTRRE R B4R o AN B3 E AT ]
T A - SIRHIY & SR+
StRAELAEAZE-

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)  The following new standards, new interpretations
and amendments to standards and interpretations
have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2017 and have
not been early adopted: (Continuead)

(i) HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments (Continued)

Impact (Continued)

There will be no impact on the Group’s accounting for
financial liabilities, as the new requirements only affect
the accounting for financial liabilities that are designated
at fair value through profit or loss and the Group
does not have any such liabilities. The derecognition
rules have been transferred from HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and have
not been changed.

The new hedge accounting rules will align the
accounting for hedging instruments more closely with
the Group’s risk management practices. As a general
rule, more hedge relationships might be eligible for
hedge accounting, as the standard introduces a more
principles-based approach. The Group does not have
any hedge instrument. Therefore, the Group does not
expect any impact on the new hedge accounting rules.
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2 EESTTHREE (&)

2.1

118

mELEYE ()

21.1 Bt BRRFBEZRE
(#)

() TSI BEEMER2017F
A 1H F15 #9581 B JE 5 R
R A IR BHIEBTERAN B FTET
BRI #ERZ FTR FERIEET
R (&)

) FEHBRS
BTA (&)

AR5 2

M ERIEEAERERER
([TRHERER])  mMIEEEGT
ZRIFEI9RIA MEUNEELERE
BRERBERE - 2R EEANIEZ
BHEKADBNEREE BAT
EBEff ARt EEBANEE LA
BAEMBRELFISHFARP
ZEHNERELENBARTHEL
BE RWEE SEFAERET
MBRRAN - RBESETHF
it AEEBHRYKE SRR E
BRETEBENEES-

FRTZERI TR 5| AGEfR R TR R E I
ENHAEY ZEREREHE
Hih A KB ERE SR T AR
BOMEREE CLEER A
RIEAMER)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)  The following new standards, new interpretations
and amendments to standards and interpretations
have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2017 and have
not been early adopted: (Continueq)

(i) HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments (Continued)

Impact (Continued)

The new impairment model requires the recognition of
impairment provisions based on expected credit losses
(ECL) rather than only incurred credit losses as is the
case under HKAS 39. It applies to financial assets
classified at amortised cost, debt instruments measured
at FVOCI, contract assets under HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers, lease receivables, loan
commitments and certain financial guarantee contracts.
Based on the assessments undertaken to date, the
Group does not expect material change to the loss
allowance for trade debtors.

The new standard also introduces expanded disclosure
requirements and changes in presentation. These
are expected to change the nature and extent of the
Group’s disclosures about its financial instruments
particularly in the year of the adoption of the new
standard.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)  The following new standards, new interpretations
and amendments to standards and interpretations
have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2017 and have
not been early adopted: (Continuead)

(i) HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments (Continued)

Date of adoption by Group

The Standard must be applied for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2018. The Group
will apply the new rules retrospectively from 1 January
2018, with the practical expedients permitted under the
standard. Comparatives for 2017 will not be restated.

iy HKFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

Nature of change

The HKICPA has issued a new standard for the
recognition of revenue. This will replace HKAS 18 which
covers contracts for goods and services and HKAS 11
which covers construction contracts and the related
literature.

The new standard is based on the principle that
revenue is recognised when control of a good or service
transfers to a customer.

The standard permits either a full retrospective or a
modified retrospective approach for the adoption.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
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Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

©®)

(Continued)

The following new standards, new interpretations
and amendments to standards and interpretations
have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2017 and have
not been early adopted: (Continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

Impact

When applying HKFRS 15, revenue shall be recognized
by applying following steps:

identify the contract with customer;

identify the performance obligations in the
contract;

determine the transaction price;

allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contracts; and

recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies
a performance obligation.

The Group is engaged in the manufacturing and sale
of beverages and instant noodles business. The Group

does not have any customer loyalty programme which
is likely to be affected by the new HKFRS 15.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

()

(i

(Continued)

The following new standards, new interpretations
and amendments to standards and interpretations
have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2017 and have
not been early adopted: (Continuead)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

Impact (Continued)

Management has assessed the effects of applying the
new standard on the Group’s financial statements and
has identified the following areas that will be affected:

% — ¥ EE R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Payment to customer — the application of HKFRS
15 may result in the consideration payable
to a customer recorded as a reduction of the
arrangement’s transaction price, thereby reducing
the amount of revenue recognized, unless the
payment is for a distinct good or service received
from the customer.

Rights of return — HKFRS 15 requires separate
presentation on the balance sheet of the right to
recover the goods from the customer and the
refund obligation. The Group’s historical goods
return rate was very low and the financial impact
of applying new HKFRS 15 is not expected to be
material.

Presentation of contract assets and contract
liabilities on the balance sheet — HKFRS 15
requires separate presentation of contract assets
and contract liabilities on the balance sheet. The
Group has assessed the adoption of this standard
and concluded that it will not have a significant
impact on the Group’s results and financial
position, except that certain new disclosures are
introduced.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

21 REEE(F) 2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
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2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)  The following new standards, new interpretations
and amendments to standards and interpretations
have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2017 and have
not been early adopted: (Continued)

(il  HKFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

Date of adoption by Group

Mandatory for financial years commencing on or after 1
January 2018.

(iiy  HKFRS 16, Leases

Nature of change

HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will result
in almost all leases being recognised on the balance
sheet, as the distinction between operating and finance
leases is removed. Under the new standard, an asset
(the right to use the leased item) and a financial liability
to pay rentals are recognised. The only exceptions are
short-term and low-value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly change.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)  The following new standards, new interpretations
and amendments to standards and interpretations
have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2017 and have
not been early adopted: (Continuead)

(i)  HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

Impact

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for
the Group’s operating leases. As at the reporting
date, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of RMB157,349,000 as at 31 December
2017.

However, the Group has not yet assessed what other
adjustments, if any, are necessary for example because
of the change in the definition of the lease term and the
different treatment of variable lease payments and of
extension and termination options. It is therefore not yet
possible to estimate the amount of right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities that will have to be recognised on
adoption of the new standard and how this may affect
the Group’s profit or loss and classification of cash
flows going forward.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)  The following new standards, new interpretations
and amendments to standards and interpretations
have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2017 and have
not been early adopted: (Continued)

(iiy  HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

Date of adoption by Group

The standard is mandatory for first interim periods within
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019. At this stage, the Group does not intend to
adopt the standard before its effective date. The Group
intends to apply the simplified transition approach and
will not restate comparative amounts for the year prior
to first adoption.

The Group is assessing the full impact of other new
standards, new interpretations and amendments
to standards and interpretations. According to the
preliminary assessment, other than the assessment
results of HKFRS 9, 15 and 16 stated above, none of
these is expected to have a significant effect on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

There are no other standards that are not yet effective
and that would be expected to have a material impact
on the entity in the current or future reporting periods
and on foreseeable future transactions.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2 EESTTHREE (&)

2.2 MEBAF 2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 ZREHRHE

MEAREAREAGRGRZE
B(BREHER) AEEM2H
ZERBZAZOBRAZEARIES
A UHRENBRUZERLE
ENFeEENRE NBHZE
BEEHE-MBLARmEHEE
BEAEEERMGEE AR X
RAREEHIRE BRI T E&RE
BEo

SEARAE IR BN RS FIE
EZEBRRARERNEGEH T AH
HoRBREBEBRTTHH -MBL
AIfERESECRFRFELHE
PARE (R BN SR (8 2 B 5T BUR R FF —
B o

@ RBEEH

AEERABESDEBEL AN
AfR-RWE—RINEARE R
RERMEREE FELRER
AEBABITHRENAFE S
FRERBRIARRERAELT
MEEXABENQATFE -REKS
PRl ER R BRI EE A ENE
BERIARAE VT RKEERN
RFEFE - ARBIARFEHIE
2 R R AR RE B 0 Al R R
BEMCHERSENLLY REIA
Weis EERRERRN B E I
PR -

2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have
been adjusted to conform with the Group’s accounting
policies.

(@  Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method of
accounting to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the
Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or
at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of
the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net
assets.

% — ¥ EE R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Annual Report 2017 F & ’] 25



e MR R MR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 EESTTHREE (&)

22 MIEBAT (&)

126

221 5&58KE (&)
@ FHEEG (&)
Ust 8 A8 B B AN TR EE A B S 8K ©

HWEBaHFHOREEEN AIBE
T RRIFTRRE R T S A 8
BBt EERBHENAFE.

HERAEEEENTALARES
RWBHN R FERER RELSE
ESBENIARERFENEER
2 HIRBEB G ERAIF395
REBmERAER S M2 E RS
MY DEAEDNOIARKED
FEFE MEREESNER
AARR

Fregm 8 R E D 2 (T IEeE
P e 2 < BR S () SE AT A MR B 77
Z DR R B A ERSRA
WE Rl B E EFEN A FER
HERAREIIR LR EREM
T OMEEAE DERIFIERE
@ KRR A 2 R R IR P I
BHEARNEEFEZAFE H
ERRERERARPER-

#i— ¥ EER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Annual Report 2017 F#§

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)
(@)  Business combinations (Continued)

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date
through profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit
or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured
is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognised directly in the income
statement.
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2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)
(b)  Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 Associated companies

An associated company is an entity over which the
Group has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associated
companies are accounted for using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount
is increased or decreased to recognise the investor's
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date
of acquisition. The Group’s investment in associated
companies includes goodwill identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associated company
is reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to the consolidated income statement where
appropriate.

The Group’s share of associated companies’ post-
acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements
in other comprehensive income is recognised in
other comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment.
When the Group’s share of losses in an associated
company equal or exceed its interest in the associated
company, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associated company.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3

2.4
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Associated companies (Continued)

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment
If this is the
case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment

in the associated company is impaired.

as the difference between the recoverable amount of
the associated company and its carrying value and
recognises the amount adjacent to ‘Share of profit of
investments accounted for using equity method’ in the
income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and its
associated companies are recognised in the Group’s
financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor’s interests in the associated companies.
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associated
companies have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in
associated companies are recognised in the income
statement.

Joint arrangements

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint
arrangements as at 1 January 2012. Under HKFRS
11 investments in joint arrangements are classified as
either joint operations or joint ventures depending on
the contractual rights and obligations each investor. The
Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements
and determined them to be joint ventures. Joint
ventures are accounted for using the equity method.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4

2.5

Joint arrangements (Continued)

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint
ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements in other
comprehensive income. When the Group’s share of
losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds its interests
in the joint ventures (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the joint ventures), the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of the joint ventures have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors
that makes strategic decisions.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.6 Foreign currency translation

(@) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“the functional currency”). The functional
currency of majority of the Group’s entities is Renminbi
(‘RMB”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB, which is the Company’s functional
and the Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions of each of the Group’s
entities are translated into the functional currency using
the applicable exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions or valuation where items are re-
measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the income statement within ‘finance
income or cost’. All other foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in the income statement within
‘other (losses)/gains — net’.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets such as equities classified as available-for-
sale are included in the fair value reserves in other
comprehensive income.
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Foreign currency translation (Continued)

©

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the

U

date of that balance sheet;

(i)  Income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions); and

(i) All resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items.
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Construction-in-progress (“CIP”) represents buildings,
plant and machinery under construction or pending
installation and is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes the costs of
construction and acquisition and capitalised borrowing
costs. No provision for depreciation is made on CIP until
such time as the relevant assets are completed and
ready for intended use. When the assets concerned are
available for use, the costs are transferred to property,
plant and equipment and depreciated in accordance
with the policy as stated below.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the income statements during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate the cost less impairment loss of each asset
to its residual value over its estimated useful life, as

follows:

Buildings 20 years
Machinery and factory equipment 10 years
Vehicle, other equipment and fixtures 3-5 years

Leasehold improvements 5 years or shorter

of lease terms
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Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within ‘other (losses)/gains — net’, in the
income statements.

Investment properties

Investment properties are defined as properties (land
or a building — or part of a building — or both) held (by
the owner or by the lessee under a finance lease) to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both, rather
than for: (a) use in the production of supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes; or (b) sale in the
ordinary course of business.

Investment properties are initially recognised at cost
and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is calculated using a straight-line method
to allocate the depreciable amounts over the estimated
useful lives of 40 years. The residual values and
useful lives of investment properties are reviewed, and
adjusted as appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

Intangible assets

Acquired computer software is capitalised on the basis
of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. These costs are amortised over the
estimated useful life of 2 — 5 years.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill or intangible assets not ready to use - are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

Financial assets
2.11.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale. The classification
depends on the purposes for which the financial
assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

2.11.1 Classification (Continued)

(@) Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset
is classified in this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives
are also categorised as held for trading unless they
are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected to be settled
within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-
current.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included in
current assets, except for maturities greater than 12
months after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group’s loans
and receivables comprise ‘trade receivables’, ‘other
receivables’, ‘pledged bank deposits’ and ‘cash and
bank balances’ in the balance sheet (also refer to Notes
2.16 and 2.17).

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are
included in non-current assets unless management
intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months
of the end of the reporting period.



e B R R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 EESTHEBE(H) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

211 E®EE (&) 2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

2.11.2 BER i E

EMBARLENSREEERS
AR AKEAEBARLE
ZEEZH FIAYIFRATES
BRGELEZEREERENTEZ
RNFEMZZRAER - RFE
BRBRBRRERIEREEVTIER
FEER XFUARBRRAX
Ho BERBBERBIR S REMER
RoMggoEs MAKEC
A R P R A [ R B R
EN SREERKIEER - AIH
HESMEEMEATFEERER
LR EREERRZRAFETD
R o Bk M RGN R B RR R RO
R SHA AR BR o

[RAFEBEBRGECKRZERE
EIBZ R VFEESMEEZHE
FEERELHRAERER [H
fi (B518) /FiS—FE] "7 -
R AN 5% 18] 2 e <7 MR R0R 2 R R
® BRAVEEEBRELEZISH
BEZREBAREBRR AR
EREMBAZ —BD -

IR (A 1 O R B M RIS
KEHATERBIEL S K
R

2.11.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss is initially recognised
at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the
income statement. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans
and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss’ category are presented in the income statement
within ‘other (losses)/gains — net’ in the period in which
they arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised in the income
statement as part of other income when the Group’s
right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

% — ¥ EE R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Annual Report 2017 F & ’] 87



e MR R MR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 EESTTHREE (&)

211 EMEE ()

211.2FZRE (&)

ENEARMHEEZESFHERS
AR NERPHERZRFT QT
ERBIABERIERTEAM (&
1B)/FIE—F8E] -

ERAHEERETANKE R©
7K & [B W ER A 68 5% IR B 4 A BE E
o RS RARERS [EBUA
B —&B

212 £ MEERE

138

(@ HUBHEXLTRIEE

AEEESERSHRFEES
EOEBRERAREXKATRHEE
HERBE REEFERBRI RS
ARERBEREREEREE—F
HEREHFEHHRBE([BX
M) MR (RZF)BRE
7 AN Z A SR EEMNEER
RIBeMEEKOZEA LG ER
A AR ASREET B1F
3R RN (B K BE AR (E RS 18

MEREEETITR: BRZ
2 —HEBABEEANKRE
BoERANEHATS BEALE
EXETHMOMBESR BEIUE
RYBE AT AR RIB 2 REAR
fFa—JEJrE'WJZZDéﬁL%’ME%%E’\JRM

Z*Z
o AR AR L

#i— ¥ EER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Annual Report 2017 F#§

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

2.11.2 Recognition and measurement (Continued)

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold
or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the income
statement as ‘other (losses)/gains — net’.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the income statement as part of ‘other
income’ when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

2.12 Impairment of financial assets

(@) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.
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(a) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

For loans and receivable category, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the income statement. If a loan or
held-to-maturity investment has a variable interest rate,
the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined under
the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair
value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised (such as an improvement in the
debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously
recognised impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement.

(b) Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.12 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(b) Assets classified as available for sale
(Continued)

For debt securities, if any such evidence exists the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity and
recognised in profit or loss. If, in a subsequent period,
the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available
for sale increases and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is
reversed through the consolidated income statement.

For equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost
is also evidence that the assets are impaired. If any
such evidence exists the cumulative loss — measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss
— is removed from equity and recognised in profit or
loss. Impairment losses recognised in the consolidated
income statement on equity instruments are not
reversed through the consolidated income statement.

2.13 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently re-measured at their fair value.
The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss
depends on whether the derivative is designed as a
hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of item being
hedged. Derivative instruments held by the Group do
not qualify for hedge accounting and are accounted for
at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in fair value
of these derivative instruments that do not qualify for
hedge accounting are recognised immediately in the
consolidated income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.14 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.

2.15 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based
on normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing
costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses.

2.16 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.17 Cash and bank balances

In the consolidated statement of cash flow, cash and
cash equivalents include cash at bank and on hand and
deposits held at call with banks. Time deposits with
maturity more than three months and pledged bank
deposits are excluded from cash and cash equivalents.

2.18 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.19 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

2.20 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.20 Borrowings (Continued)

2.21

% — > %¥ EZE R B R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

143

Annual Report 2017 £ &



/

/ 4‘44_44‘ .

/

=

Ut 85 ¥ Ak MY &

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 EESTTHREE (&)

2.22 EHRIEE FT 5%

144

AHRM R IES B E HAEE
K -HBEEBRaRTHER B
HEHMPE RS R EREER
REEREIA R AREERIBRIN - Ut
BT BRIBT D BIR E b 2 E K
SR RE KRR PR

@ EFFEH

B RS BAR R AR B R E
BRB - EXRBERREE
FTE REL BRI AZ BRI
EHERMAEE LCBEM 2B
EPIEE - EIR E R E R BED
REMRR ZIERNE BHERT R
ZAR - EEERE R MRETAS
7B [R) 70 745 6 B S AN 22 T R AR TE
e

(b) EZPEH
A 2 £

EEFTEEA R A EAEREEM
BENREEEEME BEM KR
ROFEEENEZRMEENE R
ER-RM BREEABHREE
RP(TERBREKEH)PHEE
FEEHRTER MEXSET
FESHBRAaNERRANBEHIE
K BIPVERSER BRI FTS B ER A
EEERRMCEMAELE LOR
h TEEBNECMESHEEER
BRLEMEHAESEREDRK
SEANBE (FOAR) METE °

#— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Annual Report 2017 F#§

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

(@) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements. However, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.
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(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)
Inside basis differences (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

Qutside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except
for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the
group is unable to control the reversal of the temporary
difference for associates. Only where there is an
agreement in place that gives the group the ability to
control the reversal of the temporary difference not
recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is probable the
temporary difference will reverse in the future and there
is sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
income tax assets against current income tax liabilities
and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxed levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the balances
on a net basis.

2.23 Employee benefits

(@) Pension obligations (defined contribution plan)

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays contributions into a separate
fund. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations
to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits
relating to employee service in the current and prior
periods. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due.

The Group has participated in defined contribution
plans administered by the relevant authorities in the
PRC, Taiwan and Hong Kong for its employees. The
Group is required to pay monthly contributions to these
plans at certain percentages of the relevant portion of
the payroll of the employees to fund the benefits. The
relevant authorities undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations payable to the existing and future
retired employees of the Group under these plans and
the Group has no further obligation for post-retirement
benefits beyond the contributions made.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.24 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

2.25 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for goods supplied, stated net of
discounts returns and value added taxes. The Group
recognises revenue when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured; when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity; and
when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group’s activities, as described below. The Group
bases its estimates of return on historical results, taking
into consideration the type of customer, the type of
transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.25 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(@) Sales of goods

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised when
the risk and reward of the goods has been transferred
to the customer, which is usually at the date when a
group entity has delivered products to the customer,
the customer has accepted the products, and there is
no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s
acceptance of the products.

(b) Consultation service income

Consultation service income is recognised in the period
when the services are rendered.

(c) Operating lease income (as a lessor)

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease
unless another systematic basis is more representative
of the time pattern in which use benefit derived from the
leased asset is diminished.

(d) Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method. When a loan and receivable is impaired, the
Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable
amount, being the estimated future cash flow
discounted at the original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as
interest income. Interest income on impaired loan and
receivables are recognised using the original effective
interest rate.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.25 Revenue recognition (Continued)
(e) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

2.26 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the income statement over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to land use rights and
property, plant and equipment are included in non-
current liabilities as deferred government grants and
are credited to the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

2.27 Operating leases
(@) The Group is the lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.27 Operating leases (Continued)

(@) The Group is the lessee (Continued)

All land in Mainland China is state-owned and no
individual land ownership right exists. The Group made
upfront payments to obtain operating leases of land
use rights. The upfront payments of the land use rights
are recorded as assets and amortised over the lease
periods varying from 20 to 70 years on a straight-line
basis.

(b) The Group is the lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease
unless another systematic basis is more representative
of the time pattern in which use benefit derived from the
leased asset is diminished. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

2.28 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed
in the financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is
probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.28 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
(Continued)

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from
past events and whose existence will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain events not wholly within the control of the
Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually
certain, an asset is recognised.

2.29 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price risk, and
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management program
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimize potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

Financial risk factors
(@) Market risk
() Foreign exchange risk

Most of the Group entities’ functional currency is RMB
since majority of the revenues of these entities are
derived from operations in Mainland China. Foreign
exchange risk arises from the future borrowings from
overseas companies and recognised assets or liabilities,
such as trade receivables (Note 15), cash and bank
balances (Note 18) and borrowings (Note 23), part of
which are denominated in United States dollar (“USD”)
and Hong Kong dollar (“HKD”).

As at 31 December 2017, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against USD and HKD with all
other variables held constant, the post-tax profit for
the year ended 31 December 2017 would have been
approximately RMB241,000 lower/higher (2016:
RMB3,979,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result of
foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of USD
and HKD denominated borrowings and cash and bank
balances.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@) Market risk (Continued)
() Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Exposure

The Group’s major exposure to foreign currency risk at
the end of the reporting period, expressed in RMB, was
as follows:

2017
TR T AREWTR HtERTx
USD’000 HKD'000 ~ RMB'000  Others'000

Be Cash 14,375 3,297 - 2,402
ERE SER Trade receivables 218 2,434 - =
RITIRE Bank borrowings (13,068) - - -
2016
TEx Thr ARETT EpE%Tr
UsD’000 HKD'000 RMB'000 Others'000
Be Cash 82,052 6,701 - 5,066
EREZER Trade receivables 1,706 3,401 - -
RIEEER S Amounts recognised in profit or loss
FRERERER T2 MNERR During the year, the following foreign-exchange related
BEE amounts were recognised in profit or loss:
2017 2016
AR¥T T AR¥ET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEWA—F5E Finance income — net
— R EEENE — Foreign exchange (losses)/gains
(E18) F1E on financing activities (5,857) 12,461

% — ¥ EE R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. z] 58
Annual Report 2017 £ &



e
_—

//
QE_—A
II\IZ/E

Ut 85 ¥ Ak MY &

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 MBERERE (&)

3.1

154

BsEEEE ()
@ mEEE (&)
(i) EEELR

AEEKAZETRENEERRE
KPP DBRAHHE (HRE1)
REBEL AR IRATE S 2 BIRE
B o AN SR B30 R 3 LR IR 75
CREECREEL ZERER-

IARERBERTHOERIZAF
BEEBEmCRMA AHEE 2K
AEEMS R FETI2EMSH
BmEE -

R2017812 318 - WA E b &
BRFLE BRATHLEEZE
EHE LT, TE10%  AREETA]
AHBBEZAIHEESREERE
IR S BEAABIRERE I, R
# AR #1,000,0007T (20164 : A
R #1,400,0007T ) ° fidl BT A H fib &
BRETE BEABRAFEEB
Bk ESFMELA T
10% AFEAEBAAHERE Y
BRAFEEBRBELEZEME
ERmMSERREIE R BERR
B3, 5 4 A K #6,000,0007T
(20165 : ) -

RAEESIEAREBEBNRAR
B RFEZEWAERTISER
BABHZBEMEE -MmHE2
EETLRHABEERAINMAR-

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@) Market risk (Continued)
(i) Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk
because of certain investments held by the Group are
classified on the balance sheet either as available-for-
sale (Note 11). The Group has not hedged its price risk
arising from investments in equity securities financial
assets.

For the Group’s equity investments that are classified
either as available-for-sale or at fair value through
profit or loss and are publicly traded, the fair value is
determined with reference to quoted market prices.

As at 31 December 2017, if the market prices of the
securities classified as available-for-sale had increased/
decreased by 10% with all other variables held
constant, the carrying amounts of the Group’s publicly
traded available-for-sale financial assets and total equity
would be approximately RMB1.0 million (2016: RMB1.4
million) higher/lower than the current value. If the market
prices of securities classified as at fair value through
profit or loss had increased/decreased by 10% with all
other variables held constant, the carrying amounts of
the Group’s publicly traded financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and post-tax profit for the year
would be RMB6,000,000 (2016: nil) higher/lower than
the current value.

For the Group’s equity investments that are not
publicly traded, the fair value is determined with
reference to valuations based on a combination of
income and market approaches. The market approach
takes reference to certain multiples of publicly traded
companies.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@) Market risk (Continued)
(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Except for cash and bank balances (Note 18) and
borrowings (Note 23) with interest charges, the Group
have no other significant interest-bearing assets and
liabilities.

The Group’s interest-rate risk arises from bank deposits
and borrowings. Bank deposits and borrowings at
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-
rate risk, and if at fixed rates expose the Group to fair
value interest-rate risk. The Group has not hedged its
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk. The interest
rates and terms of bank deposits and borrowings are
disclosed in Note 18 and Note 23 respectively.

As at 31 December 2017, if interest rates on bank
deposits and borrowings had been 100 basis points
higher/lower with all other variables held constant,
the post-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately RMB9,708,000 higher/lower (2016:
RMB15,619,001 lower/higher), mainly as a result of
higher/lower (2016: lower/higher) interest expenses on
borrowings which would offset interest income on bank
deposits.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

NTINUED)
Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit
risk. The carrying amounts of pledged bank deposits,
cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and
other receivables included in the consolidated financial
statements represent the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to its financial assets.

As at 31 December 2017, these bank deposits and
cash at bank were deposited in reputable financial
institutions which are considered with low credit risk,
the table below shows bank deposits and cash at bank

TH AR balances by counterparties:
2017 2016
AR® T ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000

RHH Counterparties

— KA MWER7T* - Big 4 PRC domestic banks* 228,583 304,467
—INERTT — Foreign owned banks 753,714 1,304,939
—H R A ERT — Other domestic commercial banks 1,799,639 853,738
2,781,936 2,463,144

#i— ¥ EER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

* Big 4 PRC domestic banks comprise Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China Limited, Agricultural Bank
of China Limited, Bank of China Limited and China
Construction Bank Corporation.

The Group did not have significant exposure to credit
risk before collateral held or other credit enhancements
as at 31 December 2017 (2016: nil).

Management does not expect any losses from non-
performance of these counterparties.

Majority of the Group’s sales are settled in cash or in
bills provided by its customers on delivery of goods.
Credit sales are made only to selected customers with
good credit history. The Group has policies in place to
ensure that trade receivables are followed up on a timely
basis.

(c¢) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and cash equivalents, the availability of
fund through adequate amounts of committed credit
facilities and the ability to close out market positions.
The Group’s objective is to maintain adequate
committed credit facilities to ensure sufficient and
flexible funding is available to the Group.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) mEEZEE (&) (c) Liquidity risk (Continued)
TRAREBRZERBESN % The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities
BEBREEBEANEEHAE 2% that will be settled on a net basis into relevant maturity
NHIEIREREAN A AR Hi 4B Bl A 45 groupings based on the remaining period at the
B - RAMIBRBESEAS YRR balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date.
HWERE The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual

undiscounted cash flows.

N3] Group PR-F —-EZME —2RE st
Less than Between 1 Between 2
1year and2years and 5 years Total
ARETT AREFT AREBTT AR®ETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
20175128318 As at 31 December 2017
B8 Borrowings 834,768 500,000 - 1,334,768
BB B Interest payments on borrowings 24,128 12,822 = 36,950
ENEZER Trade payables 1,396,000 - - 1,396,000
HivENFBREFER  Other payables and accruals,
(TrEEELBAR) (excluding non-financial liabilities) 2,179,064 = = 2,179,064
HiRHBEAFA Other long term payables - 251,319 - 251,319
4,433,960 764,141 - 5,198,101
M2016F12A31H As at 31 December 2016
EE Borrowings 2,100,169 = 500,000 2,600,169
EEFESNR Interest payments on borrowings 35,065 19,500 12,822 67,387
ERE SRR Trade payables 1,138,154 = - 1,138,154
HivENFBREFER  Other payables and accruals,
(TREELBAR) (excluding non-financial liabilities) 2,004,108 = = 2,004,108
At REETFE Other long term payables = 430,879 = 430,879
5,277,496 450,379 512,822 6,240,697
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

3.2

#— ¥ KRAR 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Interests payments on borrowings are calculated based
on borrowings held as at the balance sheet dates
without taking into account of future issues. Floating-
rate interest is estimated using the current interest rate
as at the balance sheet dates.

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital.
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Annual Report 2017 £ &



e MR ERR MR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 MBERERE (&) 3
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

The Group’s strategy is to maintain a gearing ratio
below 50%. The gearing ratios at 31 December 2017
and 2016 are as follows:

2017 2016

AR® T ARBFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

RIEE (M:E23) Total borrowings (Note 23) 1,334,768 2,600,169
AR e ME BfF R Less: cash and time deposits (Note 18)

(MIEE18) (2,782,731) (2,468,201)
B8,/ (Be) 38 Net debt/(cash) (1,447,963) 136,968
B Total equity 12,815,477 12,040,111
BB Total capital 11,367,514 12,177,079
BEAREEL K Gearing ratio -12.74% 1.12%

MN2017512A31H - BRBE & R
A ThHR2017TE BB EERME -

3.3 AFEMLKE

TRUEEESTIRAFEIIEZ
ERMIE-ZEBAEREWT:

e HABEXABBEGEEEM
BHRE (RERAR) (F1
B)-

s KBTHIEMBENREN
ZEBELRBEZABRZE
b A A S E & (B m
ER) M (AREER)
(F2E) -

The decrease of gearing ratio as at 31 December 2017
was due to the repayment of borrowings in 2017.

3.3 Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at
fair value by valuation method. The different levels have
been defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
is, derived from prices) (level 2).

/I 60 #— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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BERRERE (&) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)
3.3 AFEME (&) 3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

e EBESRBANFREAER .

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based

mSBEZBA (AIEAEE
BA) (E3E) -

TRERANEE SR E ER2017
FK2016F12A31Bst 22 A F
@o

on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s financial assets
that are measured at fair value at 31 December 2017
and 2016.

20175 R20164F
12A31H 12H31H
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
AR®T T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BE Assets
At EeMmEE Available-for-sale financial
(FFaE11) assets (Note 11)
—F1E — Level 1 10,428 13,863
— 3= — Level 3 211,665 211,665
222,093 225,528
AV EFHBEZRLE Y Financial assets at fair value
R EE (fE17) through profit or loss (Note 17)
— 3/ — Level 3 60,000 -

% — ¥ EE R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. »] 6»]
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there are no
transfers among levels of the fair value hierarchy used
in measuring the fair value of financial instruments, and
also no changes in the classification of financial assets
as a result of a change in the purpose or use of those
assets.

3.3.1 Fair value measurements using quoted prices
(Level 1)

The Group’s investments in level 1 mainly comprise
investments in shares which are listed on the Main
Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The fair
values of the investments are determined based on the
quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.

3.3.2 Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3)

There were no changes in level 3 instruments related to
available-for-sale financial assets for the year ended 31
December 2017 and 31 December 2016.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

3.3.2 Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3) (Continued)

For the Group’s equity investments that are not publicly
traded, the Group uses its judgment to select a variety
of methods and make assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at each balance
sheet date. In connection with the investments in
shares, the Group adopts a combination of income and
market approaches. The income approach adopts a
discounted cash flow method to assess the fair value
of the available-for-sale financial assets. Under this
methodology, fair value is determined by discounting
the projected cash flow of the investee company to
present worth based on profit and cash flows forecast
and other relevant information provided by the investee
company. The discount rate used for the investment
as at 31 December 2017 was 14% (2016: 14%) per
annum which was determined by the risk-free rate,
market return, estimated beta of the investee company
and firm specific risk factors. The market approach
adopts various sales/income multiples to assess the fair
value of the available-for-sale financial assets. Under
this methodology, fair value is determined by multiplying
various sales/income of the investee company to
multiple with regard to the risks and nature of the
business. In estimating the multiples, reference has
been made to the operating results of companies with
similar business nature, having their operating activities
in the PRC and whose ownership interests are publicly
traded.

As at 31 December 2017, if the discount rate and
the multiples used was 10% higher/lower from
management’s estimates (i.e. 15.40%/12.60%), the
carrying amounts of the available-for-sale financial
assets would be approximately RMB16,805,000 lower/
RMB21,598,000 higher than the current value.

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amounts of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
approximated their fair values.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below.

(@) Fair value and impairment of available-for-sale
financial assets

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market, such as equity interest
classified as available-for-sale financial assets (Note
11) is determined by using valuation techniques (Note
3.3). The Group uses its judgment to select a variety
of methods and to make assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at each balance
sheet date. The effect of the changes in one or more of
the inputs has been disclosed in Note 3.3 above.

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 to
determine when an available-for-sale financial asset
is impaired. This determination requires significant
judgment. In making this judgment, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent
to which the fair value of an investment is less than its
cost; and the financial health of and short-term business
outlook for the investee company, including factors
such as industry and sector performance, changes in
technology and operational and financing cash flow.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(Continued)

(@) Fair value and impairment of available-for-sale
financial assets (Continued)

The Group recognized an impairment loss of
approximately RMB20,419,000 in its 2017 financial
statements, being the transfer of the accumulated
fair value changes on the impaired available-for-sale
financial assets recognised in other comprehensive
income to the income statement.

(b) Income taxes and deferred income tax assets

The Group is mainly subject to income taxes in the
PRC. Significant judgment is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities
in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences and tax losses are recognised as
management considers it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilized.

Were the actual final outcome (on the judgment areas)
of expected cash flows is favourable/unfavourable by
10% from management’s estimates, the Group would
need to increase/(decrease) the deferred tax assets by
RMB13,769,000 (2016: RMB21,352,000).
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(c) Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment

Property, plant and equipment is reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations.
These calculations require the use of judgments and
estimates.

Management judgment is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an
event has occurred that may indicate that the related
assets values may not be recoverable; (i) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less
costs to sell or net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use
of the asset in the business; and (i) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections and whether these cash flow projections
are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing
the assumptions selected by management in assessing
impairment, including the discount rates or the growth
rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the net present value in the impairment
test and as a result affect the Group’s financial position
and results of operations. If there is a significant adverse
change in the projected performance and resulting
future cash flow projections, it may be necessary to take
an impairment charge to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the executive directors. The executive directors review the
Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance
and allocate resources. Management has determined the
operating segments based on these reports.

The executive directors consider the business from a
product perspective as over 90% of the Group’s sales
and business activities are conducted in the PRC. From a
product perspective, management assesses the performance
of beverages, instant noodles and others. The executive
directors assess the performance of operating segments
based on segment profit or loss. Other information provided,
except as noted below, to the executive directors is measured
in @ manner consistent with that in the financial statements.

The majority of the Group'’s sales are through distributors and
no revenues from transactions with a single external customer
account for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue.
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5 WakosBEH (&) 5

HE2017E K2016F12A31B ILFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

The segment information for the year ended 31 December

ZAEBERMT 2017 and 2016 is as follows:
2017
&R HEM Hitr AAE r5E
Instant
Beverages noodles Others Unallocated Group
ARETT AR¥TR AR¥Trn AR¥TR AR%®Tx
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AWEE Segment results
W Revenue 12,465,469 8,162,627 668,438 - 21,296,534
AEEH, (EE) Segment profit/(loss) 1,015,245 411,815 49,210  (289,659) 1,186,611
BEWA-FE Finance income - net - - - 61,710 61,710
gz EAR Share of profit of investments accounted
FEARRE R for using the equity method 18,971 - - 9,532 28,503
BR S8 A& FI Profit before income tax 1,276,824
FiEHAX Income tax expense (398,608)
F 5l Profit for the year 878,216
BEERAMIIE M Other segment items included
PHIEE in the income statement
mEREHE Depreciation and amortisation 966,893 265,738 70,424 98,450 1,401,505
ST BEERERE Segment assets and liabilities
BE Assets 10,263,188 3,665,027 630,157 4,758,464 19,316,836
BEREARNEE Investments accounted for
using the equity method 575,265 - - 144,451 719,716
BEE Total assets 10,838,453 3,665,027 630,157 4,902,915 20,036,552
afE Liabilities 3,378,047 1,717,052 573,274 1,552,702 7,221,075
BERE Total liabilities 7,221,075
EARYH Capital expenditure 623,483 114,872 624 11,779 750,758
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
2016
gt HEE HAf KA A&
Instant
Beverages noodles Others  Unallocated Group
ARETE ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMB'0O00O  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
PHEE Segment results
& Revenue 12,180,682 8,221,083 583,767 - 20,985,532
PEbEF/ (BE) Segment profit/(loss) 890,826 315,824 52,776 (296,915) 962,511
BERA-FE Finance income - net = = = 12,314 12,314
PR A AR 2 B Share of profit/(loss) of investments
RERH/ (B#B) accounted for using the equity method 81,925 = = 11,222 93,147
BRETEERDR A Profit before income tax 1,067,972
EERY Income tax expense (460,643)
FERF Profit for the year 607,329
BRERAMIIEM Other segment items included
2EEE in the income statement
nEREHE Depreciation and amortisation 974,597 300,621 72,559 84,993 1,432,770
PREERERE Segment assets and liabilities
BE Assets 10,578,788 4,118,180 589,972 4,688,013 19,974,953
BREZEARNRE Investments accounted for
using the equity method 559,788 - - 170,686 730,474
BEE Total assets 20,705,427
BE Liabilities 3,144,661 1,670,412 324526 3525717 8,665,316
Baf Total liabilities 8,665,316
EXYH Capital expenditure 854,603 143,512 55,877 72,004 1,125,996
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5 WakosBEH (&)

BERARNDEANcEETERREMH
BERMSHEE AHHESREE -
BATEEBERLEIEREE B
ERRTERARKREMENEB L
Hb A5 PR HE

BRARNEANZBETEBRRET
EhafE BEHMMEHAEREER-

BAXHBREABEL ERE WX
BELERE RKENDEURETLEE-

NRTRBRZIFERBEEBBLT

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Assets grouped under unallocated category consisted
primarily of deferred income tax assets, available-for-sale
financial assets, financial assets at fair value through profit
and loss, cash and banks, and investment properties and
related land use rights.

Liabilities grouped under unallocated category comprised
primarily of deferred income tax liabilities, current income tax
liabilities and borrowings.

Capital expenditure comprised additions to land use rights,
property, plant and equipment, investment properties and

intangible assets.

The total of non-current assets located in different countries is

as follows:
2017 2016
ARMET T AR®EF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ERBEE (TR The total of non-current assets other
ST A NIEE than financial instruments and
FriSfiEE)Bx deferred income tax assets
— - PRC 13,636,185 14,372,869
—gINE R — Overseas countries 63,705 71,393
SR TH Financial instruments 229,210 236,808
EEFTIST A E Deferred income tax assets 286,972 349,727
14,216,072 15,030,797
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+ i fE A 6 LAND USE RIGHTS
AREE T AR I TR T i The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid
FREZKEMERE EREFES operating lease payments for land use rights and their net
ManT : book amounts are analysed as follows:
2017 2016
AR®B T AR¥ET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
M1 A1H At 1 January 2,221,526 2,214,488
NE Additions - 63,874
k= Disposals (60,619) =
5 (P E24) Amortisation (Note 24) (57,206) (56,836)
Mm12H8318 At 31 December 2,103,701 2,221,526
DN Cost 2,472,221 2,534,501
25T 4 5 Accumulated amortisation (368,520) (312,975)
BRTEF R Net book amount 2,103,701 2,221,526
NEE 2 A i fE RS R A B3R All of the Group’s land use rights are located in the PRC and

m-EEBMT

are with the lease periods as follows:

2017 2016
AR®T R ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EHESEARE In the PRC, held on:

50%F PA 2 R #H B Original lease period of over 50 years 10,085 10,309

104 £504F 2 JR 78 HA Original lease period of
between 10 and 50 years 2,093,616 2,211,217
FARERMFE Closing net book amount 2,103,701 2,221,526
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6 ITERAE(HE)

AEEZ T ERERIEC B A8
RAHEKA]  [HE KT HHEER
X R TRAX ] KN T :

LAND USE RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Amortisation charges of the Group’s land use rights have
been charged to ‘cost of sales’, ‘selling and marketing
expenses’ and ‘administrative expenses’ in the consolidated
income statement as follows:

2017 2016

AREF ARBFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

$H 5 P AR Cost of sales 28,909 28,307
HERMSHERS Selling and marketing expenses 4,417 4,571
1T X Administrative expenses 23,880 23,958
57,206 56,836

R2017812 8318  AHARE19,012,000
JC(20164F : A R #19,012,0007T) B £
AN R ERAS L AR A%
EFERBEEES -

As at 31 December 2017, land use rights certificates for
land use rights amounting to RMB19,012,000 (2016:
RMB19,012,000) have not been obtained and the Group is in
the progress of applying for these certificates.
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Sz Y
M- BERRE 7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
HER ERIZ Hft
BT Ih#RE REREE HEXE ERIR fit
Vehicles,
Machinery other
and factory equipment Leasehold  Construction
Buildings equipment and fixtures  improvements in progress Total
ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
#2016%1A1R At 1 January 2016
A Cost 5,966,603 7,346,679 3,311,966 9,152 885,448 17,519,848
ZitE Accumulated depreciation (1,144,50) (2,818,289 2,002,755) 9152 - (6,064,699)
ZRERE Accumulated impaiment provision - (263) = S = (263)
REFE Net book amount 4,822,100 4,528,127 1,219.211 = 885,448 11,454,886
HE016512A31BLEE Year ended 31 December 2016
ERAFE Opening net book amount 4,822,100 4,528,127 1219211 - 885,448 11,454,886
HNE Additions 9,408 81,785 205,983 - 715,770 1,012,941
STEREEA Transfer upon completion 304,343 298,605 148,475 - (751,423) -
HE Disposals (329) (18,408) (13,536) - - (32,273)
& (04) Depreciation (Note 24) (281,438) (567,367) (469,516) = = (1,338,321)
EXFEEE Closing net book amount 4,854,079 4,302,742 1,000,617 - 849,795 11,097,233
2016512531 At 31 December 2016
A Cost 6,279,923 7,670,129 3,257,551 9,152 849,795 18,066,550
ZitE Accumulated depreciation (1,425,844) (3,367,124) (2,166,934) (0,152) = (6,969,054
RiTRERE Accumulated impairment provision - (263) - - - (269)
REFE Net book amount 4,854,079 4,302,742 1,090,617 - 849,795 11,097,233
HE0TE12AALEE Year ended 31 December 2017
ENRETE Opening net book amount 4,854,079 4,302,742 1,000,617 - 849,795 11,007,233
HE Addttions 9,049 40,643 351,627 - 343,108 44,427
TREEA Transfer upon completion 596,500 34,219 40,934 - (671,653) -
HE Disposals (2,087) (1,532) (19,091) - - (22,710)
e (Kiie) Depreciation (Note 24) (284,365) (600,694) (429,500) - - (1,314,559)
EREEFE Closing net book amount 5,173,176 3,775,378 1,034,587 - 521,250 10,504,391
#2017%125318 At 31 December 2017
A Cost 6,883,336 7,719,418 3,370,282 9,152 521,250 18,503,438
ZitE Accumulated depreciation (1,710,161) (3,043,777) (2,335,694) (9,152) - (7,098,784)
ZitHERE Accumulated impairment provision - (263) - - - (263)
EE Net book amount 5,173,175 3,775,378 1,034,588 - 521,250 10,504,391
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7 WME -BERZE(E) 7

FEERCASRABERMEBANT

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

Depreciation expenses have been charged to the
consolidated income statement as follows:

2017 2016

AR¥T T AR®ET T

RMB’000 RMB’000

HER AR Cost of goods sold 912,037 915,862
HERMGHEM X Selling and marketing expenses 232,931 257,512
TBA X Administrative expenses 169,591 164,947
1,314,559 1,338,321

AEEZEFR2MURPE-

R20174 K2016512 A31 B I 4 i ##
ERWE BB KEE-

REBFHEZHSZRALAR
¥35,700,0007T (2016 : AR
25,100,0007T) EFt A& BE@m KK
[E AL (F5E26) ©

FAN AEBMEBEEREENEE
AR ANR¥15,121,0007C (20164 © A
R #38,725,0007 ) BT E R fg B K
ADNERE—REENMEFHFERNE
3.94% (20164 : 2.80% ) BE TR E A ©
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The Group’s buildings are all located in the PRC.

There are no pledge of property, plant and equipment as at
31 December 2017 and 2016.

Rental income amounting to approximately RMB35.7 million
(2016: RMB25.1 million) derived from lease of buildings
is included in ‘other income’ in the consolidated income
statement (Note 26).

During the year, the Group has capitalised borrowing costs
amounting to RMB15,121,000 (2016: RMB33,725,000) on
qualifying assets. Borrowing costs were capitalised at the
weighted average rate of its general borrowings of 3.94%
(2016: 2.80%) per annum.
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REWE 8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
2017 2016
AR T AR T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
M1 A1H At 1 January 365,384 349,576
NE Addition 6,331 34,070
e (Misk24) Depreciation (Note 24) (18,592) (18,262)
M®12A31H At 31 December 353,123 365,384
M2 A31 8 #ypk A Cost as at 31 December 495,053 488,722
2EriE Accumulated depreciation (141,930) (123,338)
12 431 B &) AR EDF 58 Net book amount as at 31 December 353,123 365,384
WEMEMR EEF - THE WA R The investment properties are located in Shanghai, Jiangsu,
BRE  WERBBAE40FFM50F M L Sichuan and Guangdong Province and erected on land with
| o lease periods of 40 and 50 years.
AEBEREMECTECDTTALREE Depreciation of the Group's investment properties has been
mRH[HEMRAZ] - charged to ‘other expenses’ in the consolidated income
statements.
2017 2016
AR®B T AR¥ET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEHA Rental income 84,547 89,579
REELHSWAZYEZ  Direct operating expenses from property
BEELERX that generated rental income (13,548) (14,166)
70,999 75,413
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8 WREW= (&) 8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

BEYEZERBERAFESFHINNAT The carrying amounts and fair values of the investment
properties are set out as follows:

2017 2016
AR®BT AR¥ET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BREE Carrying amount 353,123 365,384
NEE Fair value 450,777 438,496
R20174% Kk2016F12H31H 2 R ¥ & The fair values as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 were
ThE IR E {5 A DA B K Al B % i) A B determined by management’s self-assessment using
(ZE3E) REEEIT ZAFIR S RIER discounted cash flow projection based on significant
FEBITRHEERE unobservable inputs (Level 3).
EREATAHRE ARE (FIE)# Information about fair value measurements using significant
TZAFEFENERIHINNAT : unobservable inputs (Level 3) is set out below:
T B R ARE

Unobservable inputs
M20175612831H

RS ATE HE BRIR =
Fair value at
Description 31 December 2017 Rental value  Discount rate
(AR¥T ) (AR¥T )
(RMB’000) (RMB’000)
= A
98,843 14,331 per annum 10%
Plant A
=B
109,014 S 418,112 per annum 10%
Plant B
5= C
99,914 # %13,732 per annum 10%
Plant C
5 D
13,918 S %12,378 per annum 10%
Plant D
N
] o 95,835 56,126 per annum 10%
Office building
JE &/
33,730 & F- Per annum 10%
Shops
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REWE (E) 8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
N AR A ) A BUR
Unobservable inputs
#2016F 128310 2
AR NEE HE RL IR &
Fair value at
Description 31 December 2016 Rental value Discount rate
(AR®EFT) (AR®FTT)
(RMB’000) (RMB’000)
B A
= 98,451 & 418,714 per annum 10%
Plant A
\D B
ks 99,047 15,522 per annum 10%
Plant B
BEC
97,224 & 13,068 per annum 10%
Plant C
\D, D
= 12,793 411,359 per annum 10%
Plant D
MAE
96,911 6,167 10%

Office building S8 (921 T °
e,

i 34,070 - Per annum 10%
Shops
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9 EFEE

9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

E B4
Computer
software
AREEF T
RMB’000
7A2016F1H1H At 1 January 2016
BN Cost 78,111
ZETHEE Accumulated amortisation (44,226)
BRMEERE Net book amount 33,885
B Z2016F12A31B L FEE Year ended 31 December 2016
FYEREFRR Opening net book amount 33,885
RNE Additions 15,111
B (M1sE24) Amortisation (Note 24) (19,351)
FRREFRE Closing net book amount 29,645
201612831 H At 31 December 2016
AR Cost 93,222
RETHE 5 Accumulated amortisation (63,577)
AR FRE Net book amount 29,645
HZE2016F12HA31B L FE Year ended 31 December 2016
FHAREF Opening net book amount 29,645
NE Additions 462
By (Mi3E24) Amortisation (Note 24) (11,148)
FRIREFRE Closing net book amount 18,959
A2017FE12831H At 31 December 2017
AR Cost 93,684
e e Accumulated amortisation (74,725)
BRTEDF R Net book amount 18,959

#— ¥ B R B R 2 F Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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BEEE (&) 9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)
BEREG 2 HEEDRE A TITHF The amortisation of computer software has been charged
XIRIHEEERTHSHEERX] & to ‘administrative expenses’ and ‘selling and marketing
ORI HARKS 568,000 & A expenses’ at the amounts of approximately RMB8,568,000
R 2,580,000 T (20164 : A R ¥ and RMB2,580,000 (2016: RMB9,127,000 and
9,127,000t X A R #¥10,224,000 RMB10,224,000), respectively.
JT) °
BESZEZIABRNEE 10 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD
FEEAGBEREROBERT The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:
2017 2016
AR®T T AREBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REE &R A 2 = (a) Interests in associate (a) 291,781 278,968
RELDLEZEZ(D) Interests in joint ventures (b) 427,935 451,506
M12A31H At 31 December 719,716 730,474
EESRERNEENT The amounts recognised in the income statement are as
follows:
2017 2016
ARET T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FE(L B2 A R () Share of profits of associate (a) 16,012 63,033
JE(h & & 1 2% 3 EE (o) Share of net of profits of joint ventures (b) 12,491 30,114
HE12ASIRALEFE For the year ended 31 December 28,503 93,147
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10 HERZEZARNKRE (F)

()

180

10

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

REEE QTR 2w (@) Interests in associate
REtE N R 2 ERZ 2 EEBHMT The movements in interests in associate are as follows:
2017 2016
AREBT AREEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
®1A1H At 1 January 278,968 1,199,333
JE {5 5 7 Share of profits 16,012 63,033
HE—KEtE QA Disposal of an associate (Note 25)
(BF7E25) - (980,199)
2R B Dividends received (3,199) (3,199)
MW12A31H At 31 December 291,781 278,968

MN2017512 8318 IR #2855

The particulars of the associate of the Group as at 31

R AEBB A QA F B December 2017, which is accounted for using equity
S method, are set out as follows:

AMRLER
PEEL: 8% A BREX/BRA AEEEGRE TEEH

Paid-up

Country/place and capital/ Equity interest

Company name date of incorporation Share capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
2017 2016

LHaa:

Listed:

BaltAREMNRT HEEA ARE 17.87% 1679%  REHERT AT HRE
RO AERADE 200146 A268 392,600,0007T R WHEEM EE
(I=EMRt]) (M) RiEE

(Yantai North Andre Juice Yantai, PRC, RMB392,600,000 The production and sales
Co., Ltd.*) (“Andre Juice”) 26 June 2001 of concentrated apple

(Note)

* EXEBNEARBERBERN
HEXAEBESL-

B & -

AEBHZRARTEEAFE S

TTHRASEZEET —REESH
HITESE-

juice, pear juice, apple
essence, forage etc.
products.

* The English name represents the best effort by
management of the Company in translating the Chinese
name.

Note:
The Group has significant influence over Andre Juice as one

of the board’s non-executive directors was appointed by the
Group.
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10 RERZEARNEKRE (F) 10 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

(@ REEQAT 2R (&) (a) Interests in associate (Continued)
AEEERBENREGTEE B A summary of the financial information of the Group’s
BREEZVEENBMENDT shares of the associated company’s assets, liabilities

and results in aggregate is as follows:

2017 2016
AREBT AREEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
REEEAER Summary of balance sheet

JEMENE E Non-current assets 149,755 153,920
mEh & E Current assets 205,011 209,060
MEE Total assets 354,766 362,980
EMEBBIE Non-current liabilities 157 129
mEBaE Current liabilities 62,828 83,883
FEN=R Total liabilities 62,985 84,012
FEE Net assets 291,781 278,968

BE2EERRK Summary of comprehensive income
& Revenue 159,989 675,394
R BB R A Post-tax profits from operations 16,012 63,033
H i 2EKA Other comprehensive income - =
2HE KA BZE Total comprehensive income 16,012 63,033
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10 RERZFEFARNEKE (F) 10 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

(b) REELEZERS (b) Interests in joint ventures
REELE IR 2 EFEHINT: The movements in interests in joint ventures are as
follows:

2017 2016
AR¥T AR®EF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
»1A18 At 1 January 451,506 422,392
HI B & 2 Capital reduction (35,766) =
FEAG & ) 8 Share of net profits 12,491 30,114
B AR B Dividend received (296) (1,000)
M12H31H At 31 December 427,935 451,506
REE2017F12H31H [EFE - The deductions to the interests in joint ventures
GENEERZAD  BEERRM during the year ended 31 December 2017 included
A% A Bl R A R #35,766,0007T © RMB35,766,000 of capital reduction of China F&B
R2017%F12A31H ' A& E (L Venture Investments. As at 31 December 2017, the
IR AR AEFF 15 E£39.74% o equity interest attributable to the Group remains 39.74%.
R2017F12A31H  ~AEBEE The particulars of the joint ventures of the Group as
¥ (2HEEHRETEAE at 31 December 2017, all of which are unlisted and
HRGIER) 2FEBEFNT accounted for using equity method, are set out as
follows:
EMEIER/
G e R A HRER ARERERE TEER
Country/place and Paid-up Equity interest
Company name date of incorporation capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
2017 2016
BNIXRREREE R B ER N ARE 50% 50%  REEERERRE
BRAERERATA 2008%7H 188 1,000,0007T
([E=RAEREERE])
BMNIXEREREXKE  Suzhou, PRC, RMB1,000,000 Investment management
EEARAA 18 July 2008 and advisory services

(United Advisor Venture
Management Co., Ltd.")
(“United Advisor Venture
Management”)
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10 REZZEARNRE (&) 10 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)
REELEER (B) (b) Interests in joint ventures (Continued)
EMRIER,
AEER wHRAH BRER AEBEGRE FTEEH
Country/place and Paid-up Equity interest
Company name date of incorporation capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
2017 2016
ERERRBIEBERAGE PEERK 19,060,0005 7T 42% 4%  EESESE Ak
(TEMHER]) 200947 A24H B RERE Rk &
BERERHBIEARARF  Guiin, PRC, USD19,060,000 Production of various types
(Guilin Ziquan Beverage 24 July 2009 of beverage including
Industries Co., Ltd.%) fruit, vegetable, tea and
(“Guilin Ziquan®) coffee etc.
Greater China F&B HERS 10,7003 T 50% 50% REERE
Capital Partners Ltd. 2008F4H16H
(“Greater China F&B”) Cayman Islands, USD10,700 Investment management
16 April 2008
REZIR—CEBRAR HEHE ARE 50% 50% AERBZBEM
(TREZI)) 201147 A29A 232,000,000
REZIH—LEAFRAR  Wuhan, PRC, RMB232,000,000 Production of various types
(Wuhan Zijiang President 29 July 2011 of plastic products
Enterprises Co., Ltd.")
(“Wuhan Zijiang”)
SMS Capital Co., Ltd. HEHS 500,000 T 50% 50% REER
(‘SMSCC”) 201211 H28H
Cayman Islands, USD500,000 Investment management
28 November 2012
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INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

REELEZERE (&) (b) Interests in joint ventures (Continued)
AMRLER
AREB Bk AH BRELR AEBESRE TEEH
Country/place and Paid-up Equity interest
Company name date of incorporation capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
2017 2016
SMS Investment RS 500,000 7T 50% 50% REEE
Management Co., Ltd. 20131 A28
(“SMS Investment Cayman Islands, USD500,000 Investment management
Management”) 2 January 2013
ERAmAERELE R B A AR 39.74% 39.74%  REER
([ZEeml) 20094 4138 426,500,0007T
ERRMAIERERE Suzhou, PRC, RMB426,500,000 Investment management
(China F&B Venture 13 April 2009
Investments®)
(“China F&B")
HE %‘iﬁkﬂl% HEEE 19,000,000% 7T 35% 3%  AERKEEHRH
BR 2013%7A23R
ﬂaa’iﬁAHI% Yichang, PRC, USD19,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
BRAT 23 July 2013 beverages
(Ziquan Beverage
industries CO., LTD.*)
SMS Consumer Fund L.P. HEHS 14,720,000 7T 23.44% 23.44% REER
(“SMSfund”) 2012412A18H
Cayman Islands, USD14,720,000 Investment management

18 December 2012

* RXERMDARAERERD
AP EEEEST

& & 1 X P 30 M (@ Bl B 55 B R
EREAKEEEERTE-

*

The English name represents the best effort by

management of the Company in translating the Chinese

name.

No individual financial information of joint ventures was

considered material impact to the Group.
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INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

A summary of the financial information of China F&B’s

ERMENT assets, liabilities and results is as follows:
2017 2016
AR T AREEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
REEEAER Summary of balance sheet
ERBEE Non-current assets 355,623 306,412
MEBEE Current assets 29,933 99,108
MEE Total assets 385,556 405,520
EREEE Non-current liabilities = -
mEBE Current liabilities 84 158,000
FEN=R Total liabilities 84 158,000
FEE Net assets 385,472 405,362
AEESEZED L Group’s share in % 39.74% 39.74%
AEEDEZ Group’s share in RMB
AREESE 153,187 161,091
REX2EEBERRE Summary of comprehensive income
A Revenue 74,277 31,889
KB ZBB%EER  Post-tax profits from operations 70,110 24,694
H b 4R A W Other comprehensive income = =
REm B Total comprehensive profits 70,110 24,694

% — > %¥ EZE R B R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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10 RERZFEFARNEKE (8F) 10 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

(b) REeEbLFzER (E&) (b) Interests in joint ventures (Continued)
RNERTIEE BERFEECYE A summary of the financial information of Wuhan
ERBMENAT Zijiang’s assets, liabilities and results is as follows:

2017 2016
AR®ET R AR®EF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEEEAGE Summary of balance sheet
ERBEE Non-current assets 102,087 124,969
MBEE Current assets 295,112 257,935
BREE Total assets 397,199 382,904
EmBEE Non-current liabilities = -
mBAE Current liabilities 17,666 34,596
waefE Total liabilities 17,666 34,596
FEE Net assets 379,533 348,308
AEEDGZBED T Group’s share in % 50% 50%
REBDIEZ Group’s share in RMB
AR SHE 189,767 174,154
BE2mMBRE Summary of comprehensive income
ON Revenue 33,870 39,729
s BT 1B %A Post-tax profits from operations 31,225 26,058
Hara W Other comprehensive income - =
4RE A A EE Total comprehensive profits 31,225 26,058

/I 86 #i— ¥ EER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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11 AIEEESREE 11 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS
2017 2016
ARET ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BAAFIER 2 Available-for-sale financial assets at cost
AHESREE 270,540 270,540
STAHMEERZ 2 Fair value changes taken
NEEEE to other comprehensive income (11,242) (28,226)
R E R Less: impairment provision (37,205) (16,786)
BAVEFAEZ Available-for-sale financial assets
AftHEsHEE at fair value 222,093 225,528
FRAAHLESREENZEHNOT The movements in available-for-sale financial assets during

the year are as follow:

2017 2016

AR T AR¥ET T

RMB’000 RMB’000

M1A1R At 1 January 225,528 227,024
FFAEMEEYE 2 Net fair value changes taken to other

NEESEFE (H:E20) comprehensive income (Note 20) (3,435) (1,496)

M12HA31H At 31 December 222,093 225,528

% — ¥ FEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. /I 87
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11 I ESHmEE (&)

AEBzZAHEESREEARTE
SRR W BIEA TR

11 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL

ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The available-for-sale financial assets of the Group are stated
at fair value and include the following:

2017 2016
ARMT T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ST E Listed securities

BHRA BB Haisheng Juice — Hong Kong 10,428 13,863

JE ETH & Unlisted securities
TEEEILFLE Wondersun Dairy 211,665 211,665
222,093 225,528
B FtHEAZHE Market value of listed securities 10,428 13,863

EHRESZ2AFERBREEBR 2™
LHREMEE -

R2017F12A31H A& EHE B
FRAZERBRAR([EBHART])
37,800,000/ (20164 : 37,800,000
BR) (B R RER2.99% (2016
F:2909%) ZERENAFEARSE
ARANTERE-RFRN AEH
AREARTRERECEHNARE
20,419,0007T (20164 : &) °

AEEREREIATEUIERNE
BRAA (T7EZLWFLE])9% (20165 :
9% ) KR HE - STEIUFLERIE LT E
BREE  B2006FEREEIREMD
HERHE TEILIEFLETREZ
REFETIZERRANERTEHE (KM
33 MEABHZMEEMERE -

The fair values of the listed securities are determined based
on the quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.

The Group holds 37,800,000 shares (2016: 37,800,000
shares) in China Haisheng Juice Holdings Co., Ltd.
(“Haisheng Juice”) representing 2.99% (2016: 2.99%) of the
shareholding of Haisheng Juice as at 31 December 2017.
The fair value of the investment is the market quoted price
of Haisheng Juice. During the year, the Group made an
impairment provision of Haisheng Juice at the amount of
approximately RMB20,419,000 (2016: nil).

The Group holds 9% (2016: 9%) equity interests in EBFE)T
Lz LI ERMHB AR QA (Heilongjiang Wondersun Dairy
Joint Stock Co., Ltd.) (“Wondersun Dairy”), an unlisted PRC
domestic enterprise engaged in the manufacturing and sale of
dairy products since 2006. The fair value of the unlisted equity
interests in Wondersun Dairy is determined with reference to
a valuation based on a combination of income approach and
market approach (Note 3.3).

#— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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11 HEESHEE (&) 11 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS (CONTINUED)
BrIAEBIITEHEZ ETESFIN - Eap ot Other than the listed securities which are denominated in
HESREEHUARKE: HKD, the remaining available-for-sale financial assets are

denominated in RMB.

12 IREFFBH 12 DEFERRED INCOME TAX
BLEFBREENBELEFRGBSHRAES The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred
MTE T income tax liabilities is as follows:

2017 2016
AR T AREEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
RIEFTSREE Deferred income tax assets
— 128 A Rk E 2 — Deferred income tax assets to
BEEMEHEE be recovered within 12 months 193,021 177,491
— B 128 A& UkE 2 — Deferred income tax assets to
BIEMBHEE be recovered after more than
12 months 93,951 172,236
286,972 349,727
RIEFTSRAE Deferred income tax liabilities
— B2 AREE 2 — Deferred income tax liabilities to be
BEEFEH AR settled within 12 months 6,265 6,097
—BREBEI12(E A %448 2 - Deferred income tax liabilities to be
BIEFMBHARE settled after more than 12 months 167,910 185,705
174,175 191,802
BREFRSTHEE  F58 Deferred income tax assets, net 112,797 157,925

% — ¥ EE R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. /I 89
Annual Report 2017 £ &



-
e MR R MR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12 BEEMREH (&) 12 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)
REFTSRIRE <&M : The movements in the deferred income tax accounts are as
follows:
2017 2016
ARMT T ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
M1A1H At 1 January 157,925 130,787
RirB 1Bz R (K ) 5F A (Charged)/credited to the consolidated
(FF3E29) income statement (Note 29) (45,128) 27,138
®12A31H At 31 December 112,797 157,925
FRNRLEMEHEERBENEY (K The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
FFRFE—FAER A S ) AT during the year, without taking into consideration the
offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as
follows:
EEFESHERE Deferred income tax assets
ERERR UHE
g SHEE B EE
AERE RENE EtEX AVEMNTHE g bilkey HEER @it
Downward
Impairment adjustment
provision of in fair value
accounts of available-
receivables for-sale
and Depreciation Accrued financial Taxloss  Asset basis
inventories  of equipment expenses assets benefit difference Total

ARETT AREIE ARETE ARETE ARETE ARETL ARETR
RMBOOO  RMB'OO0  RMB00  RMB'OO0  RMBOOD  RMBO0O  RMBO0O

201661 A1B At 1 January 2016 3,967 3,117 105,581 6,672 190,625 18,175 328,137
WEABERA/ (k) Credited/(charged) to the consolidated

income statements 1,238 2,008 13,624 - 22,895 (18,175) 21,590
R2016%F12A31H At 31 December 2016 5,205 5,125 119,205 6,672 213,620 - 349,727
REaBRFIA/ (1K) Credited/(charged) to the consolidated

income statements (348) 2,589 10,835 - (75,831) - (62,755)
2017612A31R At 31 December 2017 4,857 7,114 130,040 6,672 137,689 - 286,972
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12 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

BEEFREHEE Deferred income tax liabilities
REME EEREK
B ES g e -4 @t
Accelerated Capitalization
Withholding Business  depreciation  of borrowing
tax  combination of equipment costs Total
AREFT ARBTFT AREFT ARETT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R2016F1 818 At 1 January 2016 17,251 133,846 24,091 22,162 197,350
INCI=REnE (Credited)/charged to the
(5FA) /B consolidated income statements = (3,987) (3,447) 1,886 (5,548)
#2016%12A31H At 31 December 2016 17,251 129,859 20,644 24,048 191,802
NG b (Credited)/charged to the
(3FA) /B consolidated income statements 2,413 (3,533) (16,507) = (17,626)
20178128318 At 31 December 2017 19,664 126,326 4137 24,048 174,175

BEFMSHEEEERAEEBARNRE
abaE M ERBETIAN SR LA E 2
MIEE TR - NEE W R 5E2017
F12A31B ] ALK BB ER UK
A T E 1B 49 A K #501,795,0007T
(20164 : AR#334,183,0007T ) R
EFEFTIS B & E 4 A R #123,050,000
7t (20164 : A R#73,159,0007T) °
20184 & 7 F N & F & w158
B R4 A ARM48,594,0007T * AR
¥57,794,0007T + A R #77,763,000
7T AR #127,886,0007T & A R
189,758,0007T °

MR20178F12A318 b AR5t & T K B
RN E R RSz R E B EF 7B
RIELEFTS T A EAR®232,701,000
7t (20164 : AR#244,345,0007T) °
EREREAMEENTRBRERZS
B A R2017F12F31H 2S5 K [E
Bl & F & £ A ARK4,654,021,0007T
(20164 : AR #4,886,899,0007T) °

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses

carried forward to the extent that the realisation of the related

tax benefit through the future taxable profits is probable.

The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets of

approximately RMB123,050,000 (2016: RMB73,159,

000)

in respect of tax losses amounting to approximately
RMB501,795,000 (2016: RMB334,183,000) as at 31
December 2017 that can be carried forward against future

taxable income. Tax losses amounting to approximately
RMB48,594,000, RMB57,794,000, RMB77,763,000,
RMB127,886,000 and RMB189,758,000 will expire in each of

the five years starting from 2018.

As at 31 December 2017, deferred income tax liabilities of
RMB232,701,000 (2016: RMB244,345,000) have not been
recognized for the withholding tax that would otherwise be

payable on the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries.

Management currently has no intention to remit those

earnings in the foreseeable future. Such unremitted earnings
totalled RMB4,654,021,000 (2016: RMB4,886,899,000) as at

31 December 2017.

% — > %¥ EZE R B R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. /I
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13 RENEITWEmMIT A 13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
BAVEER
THHE  BREEZ
e SREE SREE Bl
Available- Financial

for-sale assets at fair
financial value through

Receivables assets  profit or loss Total
SABEEEBRMTMEE Assets as per consolidated
balance sheet
12017812 A31H As at 31 December 2017
HEESHEE Available-for-sale financial assets
Cizak (Note 11) - 222,093 - 222,093
BRATEFBERCEZE  Financial assets at fair value
BEE (MF17) through profit and loss
(Note 17) - - 60,000 60,000
BB S8R (M &E15) Trade receivables (Note 15) 562,952 - - 562,952
e REMENE Deposits and other receivables
(PREENR) (excluding prepayments) 994,664 - - 994,664
B& RiRITHE (H5518)  Cash and bank balances
(Note 18) 2,782,731 - - 2,782,731
@t Total 4,340,347 222,093 60,000 4,622,440
2016512317 As at 31 December 2016
REESHEAE Avallable-for-sale financial assets
(BEE11) (Note 11) - 225,528 - 205,528
FEWE R (MEH15) Trade receivables (Note 15) 542,934 - - 542,934
B REMERFER Deposits and other receivables
(TBEEEMNT) (excluding prepayments) 1,188,585 = = 1,188,585
Be R T4% (MizE18)  Cash and bank balances
(Note 18) 2,463,201 - - 2,463,201
@ Total 4,194,720 225,508 - 4420248
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13 REFEIHNEMT A

13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(&) (CONTINUED)
H th 12 188 4 P AR
TENESRER
Other financial
liabilities
measured at
amortised cost
GREESEBRFITNEE Liabilities as per consolidated balance Sheet
R2017%F12A31H As at 31 December 2017

BB 58 (M EE21)

AN TR R EA BN
(TERFERERE)

fBE (H5E23)

R it R FOR (K E22)

a5t

#2016%12831H

FEESER (M)

HiEN B REFER
(TeREFeRERE)

fE & (fiEk23)

Hib R EEAFE (f:22)

st

Trade payables (Note 21)

Other payables and accruals
(excluding non-financial liabilities)

Borrowings (Note 23)

Other long-term payables (Note 22)

Total

As at 31 December 2016

Trade payables (Note 21)

Other payables and accruals
(excluding non-financial liabilities)

Borrowings (Note 23)

Other long-term payables (Note 22)

Total

1,396,000

2,179,064
1,334,768
251,319

5,161,151

1,138,154

2,004,108
2,600,169
430,879

6,173,310

% — ¥ EE R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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15

194

FE 14 INVENTORIES
2017 2016
ARET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
R Raw materials 313,060 384,137
EEm Work in progress 97,420 68,349
X & Finished goods 559,038 582,183
S Consumables 189,855 179,858
1,159,373 1,214,527

R ARSI W A E KA &E 4 FH
TZHEEKRALAEARE14,2668 &

e —

7T (20164 : AR¥13,796E & L) °

KRB ZE2017F12 4318 1EF E 5t sH
GEZHAERIFIEMNS AEEE
EFERBELNAREARM28250007T
(20164 : #ER A K #3,821,0007T )
(Mt sF24) - ZEREEFABERZ
[SHERAR] H -

The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and

included in cost of sales and other expenses amounted to
approximately RMB14,266 million (2016: RMB13,796 million).

The Group reversed inventory provision of approximately
RMB2,825,000 (2016: recognized RMBS3,821,000) (Note
24) for the year ended 31 December 2017 in respect of the

write-down of inventories to their net realisable values. These

amounts have been included in ‘cost of sales’ in the income

statement.

B E 5 R 15 TRADE RECEIVABLES
2017 2016
AR®ET T ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EURBEIE =8 S5KRN Trade receivables from independent
third parties 575,244 505,932
ORI E R Less: provision for impairment (15,478) (10,086)
BB E=FE SR Trade receivables from independent
FE third parties, net 559,766 495,846
FEUS BRESE 7T B 5 RR K Trade receivables from related parties
(MI5E34(b)) (Note 34(b)) 3,186 47,088
JEWE SR FE Trade receivables, net 562,952 542,934

Annual Report 2017 F#§
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15 BRE SRR (&)

REBBBERTEP6OREIOKR ZE
FA B3 (20164 : 60K E90K) ° JE W &
ZERFORE DTN

15 TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The credit terms granted to customers by the Group are
usually 60 to 90 days (2016: 60 to 90 days). The ageing
analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

2017 2016
AR T AR¥ET T
RMB’000 RMB’000

JEWE SRR - 485 Trade receivables, gross
— 90K AR — Within 90 days 532,329 511,148
—912180K - 91 to 180 days 41,368 38,986
—181E365K — 181 to 365 days 3,366 1,437
——F — Over one year 1,367 1,449
578,430 553,020

7K 52 18 1 M R 5% B 2 R 4 A T )
B EE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

2017 2016
AR T AR®EF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
JEWE 5 R - AA%E Trade receivables, gross
—AR% - RVB 575,778 547,913
—X7T - UsD 218 1,706
—#T - HKD 2,434 3,401
578,430 553,020
REEH BRESEXREAERER The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate their
FEMEE - fair values as at the balance sheet dates.
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15 BRESRM (&)

15 TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

R2017F12A31H  HARME116B 5 As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables of approximately
7T (20164 : ARM110B &) 2 B RMB116 milion (2016: RMB110 million) were overdue and
B SRS E @ - Mt s EEL 2 & the amount of provision for impairment was approximately
HeBHAEAREKI5.48 & T (2016 RMB15.4 million (2016: RMB10.1 million). The impairment is
F:AREI01EE L) ~@ARIE KK firstly assessed individually for individual significant or long
RRARZHEESEHEBEBTERE ageing balances, and the remaining balances are grouped for
SR T RIBRIBEEARE KRBT R E collective assessment according to their ageing and historical
Fert RERLEREFAEBRLUE default rates as these customers are of similar credit risk
E R EFR ot FREKRRERAEER DT characteristics. The ageing of these receivables is as follows:
IR
2017 2016
AR¥T AR¥ET T
RMB’000 RMB’000

FEU B R - A

Trade receivables, gross

— 90K AR — Within 90 days 69,920 68,156
—91E180K - 91 to 180 days 41,368 38,986
—181£365K — 181 to 365 days 3,366 1,437
——FLE — Over one year 1,367 1,449
116,021 110,028
AEEBRIEBRERZ [TTHREAX ] RER The Group recognises provision for impairment of trade
JEWE SRR ZRERE - BEREZ receivables in ‘administrative expenses’ in the income
FEnT statements. The movements in provision for impairment are
as follows:
2017 2016
ARMT T AR®ET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
M1A1R At 1 January 10,086 8,573
FEUE SR FOR B B Provision for impairment of
(FHF3E24) trade receivables (Note 24) 6,604 3,118
85 T AT U [E] 2 e U BR R Receivables written off as uncollectible (1,211) (1,605)
W12H31H At 31 December 15,479 10,086

#— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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FEWE SRR (&) 15

RBERH AEBEAZZRSRER
Rk m L EWE RN ZREE AN
SEYEFAEMNEFRIESER-

ANRER REREMEWRR 16
|

TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The maximum exposure of the Group to credit risk at the
reporting date is the carrying value of trade receivables as
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral as
security.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

2017 2016
AR¥T T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
&3 [0 8 2 m National Debt Reverse Repurchase
products 775,000 1,000,000
b TE A 5178 K FE IR IR Other prepayments and receivables
—TEIEER R H IR — Prepaid value added tax and
other taxes 220,509 228,316
—JEN IR FHEERE - Prepayments — advance payments
2 I8 to suppliers 87,530 49,761
— FE UK B 75 5R0B — Amounts due from related parties
(H$3E34(0)) (Note 34(b)) 73,508 34,743
—HEMIBFRIBRERFKIE - Other prepayments and receivables 105,994 152,428
487,541 465,248
A JEBNEAER 9 Less: non-current portion (7,117) (11,280)
BN ER &R > Current portion 1,255,424 1,453,968

R2017F 128 REB U KRS HiT A
RE775B Tt LELEERFRSMEE
TEEYSLBER Hb Aokt A
R®475BITHBEY B BE DS B7
FBERR7TAS%E13% B K&
HAARBIBETHBREFEEE SRR
B4R REFIEG.4%:1 B - A& K E
7 B B 201891 A EI #5 55 & &k
B - R2017F12A31H  ZERERA
RekReEEY (KE18) -

In December 2017, the Group purchased National Debt
Reverse Repurchase (“NDRR”) products from Shanghai Stock
Exchange with principal amounts totalled RMB775 million,
including RMB475 million with a term of 7 days and interest
rate from 7.15% to 13%, RMB300 milion with a term of
14 days and interest rate of 6.4%. The principal and fixed
interest were received by the Group in January 2018 upon
the maturity of the NDRR products. The NDRR was classified
as cash and cash equivalent as at 31 December 2017 (Note
18).
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16 ANRE RS REMEKRK
H (%)

RARE M BENFR  RE R EAME R
FERAREE RENKREERR
REERAZRAFERE-

17 BAVEZERERTRZ2EH
BE

BRoFEEBERCEZEMEETD
TRITEEMSESKRE -RBAFE
FEBRCHRIEREERATESE
RiEmRA [EM (BR) s F 5]
51 8R (Bt 3E35) °

16

17

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Substantially all of the prepayments, deposits and other
receivables are dominated in RMB. Their carrying amounts
approximate their fair values as at the balance sheet dates.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
represented the investment in money market fund at banks.
Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recorded in “other (losses)/gains — net” in the
income statement (Note 35).

18 BERIBITHER 18 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
2017 2016
ARET R ARBTIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RITRFEEIR® Cash at bank and on hand 2,782,731 2,463,201

RORTFHERACERSEEY 2 HIR

A reconciliation of cash at bank and on hand to cash and

R cash equivalent is as follows:
2017 2016
AR®B T ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RITRFERE Cash at bank and on hand 2,782,731 2,463,201
hn: BUME B S E & Add: National Debt Reverse Repurchase
(KtzE16) products (Note 16) 775,000 1,000,000
R EHER Less: Time deposits (1,200,881) (1,386,362)
PR HI R 1T 7 5K Restricted bank deposits (500) =
BehBEeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 2,356,350 2,076,839
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RERBITHES ()

MR2017F 128318 » REEF R RTT
R F R BB T F R K 54.38E
(20164 : 4.55E ) °

R2017F128318 A5 BN TEH7F
F B ANR#1,200,881,0007T (2016
F: AR #¥1,386,362,0007T) © R 2 H
BE=EANEE—FR-

MR2017612A318 SR FIBITER
5 iR 1717 %X A R #500,0007T (2016
F:\) DELHASEREEERR
SR

MR2017F12A31H RE NE L& 5B
YA N & A

18 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2017, the effective weighted average
rate on deposits of the Group placed with banks was 4.38%
(2016: 4.55%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had time deposits of
RMB1,200,881,000 (2016: RMB1,386,362,000) which had
terms with original maturity over three months to within one
year.

As at 31 December 2017, the restricted bank deposits
represented deposits at bank of RMB500,000 (2016: nil)
pledged as security for the issue of letter of credit facilities
and bills of the Group.

As at 31 December 2017, cash and cash equivalents were
denominated in the following currencies:

2017 2016
AR T AR®EF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

— AR - RMB 2,337,157 1,983,882
=Z57E =) 14,375 82,052
— BT - HKD 3,297 6,701
—HAfh — Others 1,521 4,204
2,356,350 2,076,839

% — > %¥ EZE R B R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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18 RERMWITHER (F) 18 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
(CONTINUED)
R20178F12831H  FHITER AL As at 31 December 2017, time deposits were denominated in
HEEEHE: the following currencies:
2017 2016
AR¥T AR®ET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
— AR - RMB 1,200,000 1,385,500
—HAh - Others 881 862
1,200,881 1,386,362
AREERIWIIEATRBEBRTS B /B RMB is currently not a freely convertible currency in the
Hia 2 B - S ARBHIRABINE RIE international market. The conversion of RMB into foreign
i A B 3R A0 B 52 R B M B AR A 2 SN EE currency and remittance of RMB out of the PRC are subject
B IR Al K2 48 B B #R R o to the rules and regulations of exchange controls promulgated

by the PRC authorities.

QOO #— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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19 BRARK KRG %E K

@ BRARKRMDEER

19 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

ACCOUNT

(@) Share capital and share premium account

EE
Authorised
EERHE R BRAH &
Number of Share capital
ordinary shares Share capital equivalent to
THT ARBTT
HKD'000 RMB’000
R2017F1 1R E At 1 January 2017 ill
2017%12H31H 31 December 2017 50,000,000,000 500,000 440,240
RELE
Issued and fully paid
RBEE BA& kafsd  RORER &it
Share Share
Number of Share capital premium
shares capital  equivalent to account Total
TEnr  ARETR ARETr  ARETR
HKD'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R017E1R1BE At 1 January 2017 til
2017412 A31H 31 December 2017 4,319,334,000 43,193 39,764 4,829,899 4,869,663

(b) BREESTE

AR AR IER2007F11 A23H
BACEMAZRRMN —BBER
A ([%ErE]) - BEZE
A TERITZRNDBETEE
#352,681,0008% * BN AN 2 A] i
20074128178 (BIA R A& H
REEZFT ETHE B ) T TR m 2
HH10% &t EIIETER LB
iz —MEBHENK L B H
ZERFETBEIB20%  BHEREEBEH
fE B A 5% HE B Bk 4 B BR RB 5T 1S
DR —FRBERNEBABTFLE
;’qo

(b) Share option scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) pursuant to a written resolution passed on
23 November 2007. The total number of shares which
may be issued under the Scheme must not exceed
352,681,000 shares, representing approximately 10%
of the total number of shares issued by the Company
as at 17 December 2007 (ie. the listing date of the
Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange). The
general vesting period for the options granted under the
Scheme is limited to 20% at each anniversary of grant
date and should be a period to commence not less than
one year and not to exceed 10 years from the date of
the grant of the option.

% — ¥ EE R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 20»]
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19 BARKRGBER (&)

(b)

fBlrrEstEl (&)

ACCOUNT (CONTINUED)

(b)

ZatE 2 R2017F12 8168 %

Share option scheme (Continued)

19 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

H o B 4 BB AR M 10 2% AT 811 04F
ARG 17/ BUBEXK -

20 HitvfEEREERR

The Scheme had been expired on 16 December 2017.
No share option has been granted, exercised, cancelled
or lapsed under the 10 years period of the Scheme.

20 OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED

EARNINGS
N AFERE HERE EREAN i
Contribution Fair value Statutory Retained
surplus reserves reserves earnings Total
ARETFT ARETFT ARETFT ARETFT ARETFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
M2016F1A1A 2 &8k Balance at 1 January 2016 1,312,424 (23,918 986,063 4,458,171 6,732,740
EREM Profit for the year - - - 607,329 607,329
NHHESREEL ATERR Fair value losses on available-for-sale
(FEE11) financial assets (Note 11) - (1,496) - - (1,496)
BYZAERE Appropriation to statutory reserves - - 131,817 (131,817) -
BX 20155 2 R 8 Dividends relating to 2015, paid (168,125) - - - (168,125)
20165123310 2 &84 Balance at 31 December 2016 1,144,209 (25,414) 1,117,880 4,933,683 7,170,448
MEEESREERE (Hak1) Impairment of available-for-sale
financial assets (Note 11) - 20,419 - - 20,419
ERRA Profit for the year - - = 878,216 878,216
tHEeREEL ATEER Fair value losses on available-for-sale
(FizE11) financial assets (Note 11) - (3,435) - - (3,435)
BREEERE Appropriation to statutory reserves - - 130,727 (130,727) -
EX 20165 2R 8 Dividends relating to 2016, paid - - - (119,834) (119,834)
R2017E12R318 2 &8 Balance at 31 December 2017 1,144,299 (8,430) 1,248,607 5,561,338 7,945,814

(@) BAZREER

(a)

Contribution surplus

ARRNBARBEEIERAT
R LT 2 BIAD DS A
RIS T E 1T 2 BAR R
ZEE RIARE TR &
FH -

#i— ¥ EER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Contribution surplus of the Company mainly represent
the net balance of contributions from and distributions
to the equity holder of the Company prior to the
listing of shares of the Company pursuant to the
reorganisation for the purpose of the Listing.
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20 HitfRtERHAEREFN (&)

(@

(b)

(c)

BB (E)

RRASREEEEEN  ZFH

ABHTHIET AR A #EH
BA-

AR EH
AEEATEEERETHREE
SHEEATEED-
sEER B

B B (8 SRS BRI T
AR EH R ABERS
R AT 6 2% 5 W3k FE B S SRR B 6
o #3i FUR B (FE IR 9 T AL
MR BIAR) FIRE %
S - B RE R BT
SLEES

ERIEBELCENAELEF
MR P EHB AR - EETE
FERB SN D IRE - BRORE
EANFREZ10%BIEEERB R
BE BEEAEABKABE IR
NAZFEMERE0% AL ° k5N -
BEARAEZRAESTEWIFR
ETHRESMRRER SR BART
BAREAFEBRIERHKR AR
T ERTINEBEREDEEMAK
YHFREMNELAR EEZEES
SRIBERE T HEBIEERBRIEK
S M BEAOE E 8 e

ETRBLESREARBRL
AN AR AR EEE L
EMAREAR

20 OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED
EARNINGS (CONTINUED)

()

(b)

(c)

% — ¥ EE R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Contribution surplus (Continued)

According to the law and regulation of the Cayman
Islands, such contribution surplus is distributable to the
equity holders of the Company.

Fair value reserves

Fair value reserves of the Group comprise of changes in
fair value of available-for-sale financial assets.

Statutory reserves

The PRC laws and regulations require companies
registered in the PRC to provide for certain statutory
reserves, which are to be appropriated from the net
profit as reported in their respective statutory financial
statements after offsetting accumulated losses from
prior years, before profit distributions to equity holder.
All statutory reserves are created for specific purposes.

PRC subsidiaries incorporated as wholly-foreign
owned enterprises and domestic companies are
required to appropriate 10% of statutory net profits to
statutory surplus reserves, upon distribution of their
post-tax profits of the current year, until the statutory
surplus reserve is not less than 50% of its registered
capital. In addition, at the discretion of the respective
boards of directors, these companies may allocate
a portion of their post-tax profits to the staff welfare
and bonus reserve and discretionary surplus reserve.
PRC subsidiaries incorporated as sino-foreign equity
joint venture companies may allocate a portion of their
statutory post-tax profits to the statutory reserves at the
discretion of the respective boards of directors.

The statutory surplus reserves shall only be used to
make up losses of the companies, to expand the
companies’ production operations, or to increase the
capital of the companies.
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21 ENE SRR

21 TRADE PAYABLES

2017 2016
AREBT T ARBEFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000

FERTE SRR Trade payables
—BYE=FH - to independent third parties 1,127,978 869,243
— B8 5 (M97E34(0) ) - to related parties (Note 34(b)) 268,022 268,911
1,396,000 1,138,154

HEBRTAKE ZERHEBE B30
REIOK ° BT B Z R 2 fRk ik 7 4 1A

The credit terms granted by suppliers to the Group are usually
30 to 90 days. The ageing analysis of trade payables is as

T follows:
2017 2016
AR¥T T AREEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000

FERE SR Trade payables

—30KR AR — Within 30 days 1,032,357 914,159
—31F90K —31-90 days 293,730 176,412
—91&180K - 91-180 days 35,636 16,236
—181E365K — 181 to 365 days 22,133 21,323
——F U E — Over 1 year 12,144 10,024
1,396,000 1,138,154

PIERNEZRFIGAARKEHE - K
ErhREEEAREERAZATEMR
=

All the trade payables are denominated in RMB. Their carrying
amounts approximate their fair values as at the balance sheet
dates.

204 #— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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22 HttENRERESER 22 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
2017 2016
AR®T T ARBEFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEMENMNK Advance receipts from customers 1,369,209 1,574,355
RERESERZH Accruals for promotion and
EEtE A advertising expenses 1,206,635 1,035,496
e & REF Salary and welfare payables 477,455 425,433
HEFREFPINNZES Deposits from suppliers and customers 397,598 384,991
RS A e R Payables for purchase of equipment 236,124 291,537
Hab eI sRIB R ERT & A Other payables and accruals 590,027 763,400
4,277,048 4,475,212
& FERNERED Less: non-current portion (251,319) (430,879)
BN ERER 7> Current portion 4,025,729 4,044,333
BA B H A fE I R EET B A Substantially all of the other payables and accruals are
UARBGE BEZRABEBHELRE dominated in RMB. Their carrying amounts approximate their
EAZAFERSE- fair values as at the balance sheet dates.

% — ¥ EE R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 205
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23 EE& 23 BORROWINGS
2017 2016
AR®T AR¥ET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
JEBPHA Non-current
BT RIR - MK Notes payable, unsecured 500,000 2,000,000
B RN RIRBIER S Less: current portion of notes payable - (1,500,000)
500,000 500,000
B H#A Current
MEIRTTEE &K Short-term bank borrowings, unsecured 834,768 600,169
RN EEBEE S Add: current portion of notes payable - 1,500,000
834,768 2,100,169
EERT Total borrowings 1,334,768 2,600,169
TEERNEEHAASEARKSET The Group's notes payables comprised 3.9% notes with
(20165F : ARMESE L) 23.9E F & principal value of RMB500 million (2016: RMB500 million) and
R - FE R - I 201948 A28 five years term expiring 28 August 2019.
H & °

206 #— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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23 & (&) 23 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
AEEBBEZEFBHOT The Group’s borrowings were repayable as follows:
2017 2016
AR¥ T AR T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
—F R Less than 1 year 834,768 2,100,169
—ZEMF Between 1 and 2 years 500,000 -
W 2 B Between 2 and 5 years - 500,000
BERRE Total borrowings 1,334,768 2,600,169
BECEEERERNEERA AT E The carrying amounts of the borrowings approximate their fair
iEEE values as at the balance sheet dates.
AEBEEEZEERER T EEEE: The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings were

denominated in the following currencies:

2017 2016
AR®T T ARETIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR RMB 1,321,700 2,600,169
ETT USD 13,068 =
1,334,768 2,600,169

% — ¥ EE R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 207
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23 B8 (&) 23 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
REEE R 2 NEFHERNEH7| The weighted average effective interest rates at the respective
wm balance sheet dates were set out as follows:
2017 2016
AR¥T T AR®ETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
IRITEE - EIEKH Bank borrowings, unsecured
—AR% - RMB 3.99% 3.92%
—%7T -UsD 1.47% -
R EE Notes payable
—AR% - RMB 3.65% 3.65%
AEEHEE THRRERCEBITEERSE The Group have the following undrawn bank borrowing
Z : facilities:
2017 2016
AR®T AREBFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RIEBFIE: At floating rate:
——FAE| — Expiring within one year 5,201,627 5,069,688
——F A EFIER — Expiring beyond one year 522,738 1,744,440
5,724,365 6,814,128

208 #— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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24 BHEEDZHAX

AEAHERA HE TS HERERX
THRAXREMASX ZAX T :

24 EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of goods sold, selling and
marketing expenses, administrative expenses and other

expenses are analysed as follows:

2017 2016
AR¥T AR¥ET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FrARM & SRk - Raw materials, packaging materials,
SEMEREENE® consumables and
purchased commodity used 12,118,282 11,696,352
KomFa# Changes in inventories of finished goods 96,344 85,723
INBEERS Manufacturing outsourcing expenses 43,087 7,793
fRERESEE M Promotion and advertising expenses 1,798,144 2,251,242
ETRAMAY B Employee benefit expenses, including
E=HM (H:E26) directors’ emoluments (Note 26) 3,025,180 3,176,774
EHEA Transportation expenses 833,989 865,816
T AR SH (P FE6) Amortisation of land use rights (Note 6) 57,206 56,836
M BE R EREBITE Depreciation of property,
(FF=E7) plant and equipment (Note 7) 1,314,559 1,338,321
wEMEIE (K1:E8) Depreciation of investment properties
(Note 8) 18,592 18,262
B EE#E (E9) Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 9) 11,148 19,351
EFKERE Operating lease in respect of buildings 137,017 157,962
TR RR A MEB R City construction tax, property tax and
B i & A other tax surcharges 273,722 276,449
GFEMRENERFEZ Provision/(reversal) of provision of
BE (BERD) inventories to net realisable value
(BEE14) (Note 14) (2,825) 3,821
FEUE 5 AR 2 RIERH Provision for impairment of trade
(MI5E15) receivables (Note 15) 6,604 3,118
ZE RN & Auditors’ remunerations
— B R 75 — Audit services 7,269 7,872
Hit Others 723,856 764,694
FEe Total 20,462,174 20,730,386

% — ¥ EE R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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25 Hfth (B18) FE-— 28

25 OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS - NET

2017 2016
AR® T AR®ET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEWHE HEREZE2 Losses on disposal of property,

E518 - JF R plant and equipment, net (12,414) (25,117)
& T FAE 2 518 0 JF 58 Losses on disposal of land use rights, net (16,174) =
METEZEEFE Gains from settlement of derivatives 4,663 =
AL ECHEERE Impairment of available-for-sale

(FF=E11) financial assets (Note 11) (20,419) =
e & AR E 2 FE Gains on disposal of investment

(MIEE10(0)) in an associate (Note 10(a)) = 311,125
HAt Others 12,818 12,185

(31,526) 298,193
26 HfgA 26 OTHER INCOME

2017 2016
AR® T ARMT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BT B Government grants 135,866 153,554

HEYSE MENLEE Rental income from lease of property,

URIGEYE RS WA plant and equipment and

investment properties 120,257 114,718
B ARSUA (M 5E34(a) ) Consultation service income (Note 34(a)) 52,388 68,587
Hib Others 75,266 72,313
383,777 409,172
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The income from government grants represented financial
support subsidy received from various local governments
in the PRC as rewards to the Group’s subsidiaries for their
contributions to the economy and development of the regions
in which the subsidiaries are located. Such government
grants were unconditional and with no future commitment to
be fulfilled. They were recognised within ‘other income’ in the
consolidated income statements.
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27 EIEANEX BFEEESHE 27 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES,
INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

2017 2016
AR T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
TERE® Wages and salaries 2,448,606 2,551,304
RRe R EMItEET Pension and other social welfare
(EEEHEARETED) (defined contribution plan) 332,330 351,210
BTIREEREREH Staff quarters and housing benefit 100,181 102,736
H it %2 7 Other benefits 144,063 171,524
3,025,180 3,176,774
(@ EEESFHFMAL (a) Five highest paid individuals
B E2017F12A31B EFE 2 The five individuals whose emoluments are the
AEBRhEESTFWATBEEM highest in the Group for the year ended 31 December
% (20165 : =& ) E = - H 7 Bi 2017 included two (2016: three) directors, whose
2 M 5£36(a)FT 2% 2 2 T # emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in
R -REANEZNTEHR=F Note 36(a). The emoluments payable to the remaining
(2016F -MAB ) FMALZ three (2016: two) individuals during the year are as
s AT follows:
2017 2016
AEAX¥F & - FFEEBL-  Basic salaries, housing allowances,
E 2 R EYF &= other allowances and benefits
(AR&FT) in kind (RMB’000) 4,590 5,822
#E: In the band of:
1,000,001 L& HKD1,000,001 to HKD2,000,000
2,000,000/ 7C (& (equivalent to RMB836,001 to
MWA R 836,001t E RMB1,672,000)
AR #1,672,0007T) 3 4

% — ¥ EE R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 2/] »]
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28 BMEWA-FH

28 FINANCE INCOME - NET

2017 2016
AR®ET T ARBEFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B & WA Finance income
—IBERIBITHESRZ — Interest income on cash and banks
FEWA 113,484 107,898
Bl & X 7R Finance cost
—BEEZABERAX — Interest expenses on borrowings (61,038) (141,770)
—ERAE(&EER)FHE — Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) (5,857) 12,461
- EAEBEREEZ - Less: amounts capitalized on
BER{LEHE qualifying assets 15,121 33,725
(51,774) (95,584)
BB WA —F5E Finance income — net 61,710 12,314
29 FREBiR X 29 INCOME TAX EXPENSE
2017 2016
ARE T ARBEFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BN BT 1S 7 Current income tax
—BAFERFZ — Current income tax on profit
BN AR 18 for the year 319,067 467,781
EEFTEH (MEE12) Deferred income tax (Note 12) 45,128 (27,138)
FENMBARKE 2B Withholding tax on dividends from
a PRC subsidiary 34,413 20,000
398,608 460,643

212

Annual Report 2017 F#§

#i— ¥ EER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.




e B R R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29 FREBMA< (&)

(@)

(b)

MBI EAES ([1REFR
&Bil)

RAFE - £/ Bl b AR 37 A BT B
NAEIBEIR25% (20164 : 25% ) HY
HREBNDEME -

BB AR AR EEE
FE M AT [2011]585% [ @R
s N E HE 78 B0 K B 2 B A A A
WBRE AR B - R E
MW BRFPEBNEAMZET
EEEEXEH I ARBAERE
E1I5%BERE - NEEHHF
B Bt /B N ) 5 7 BT A B = K AT
HMRAFEERER F15%E
B

HA P8t

ARARBEFAESEHSE R ADEAER
EREEIMALABERRBERA
A Eit NRRARERLENFS
BERBH-

BEKREBEMKLAN B
NAIEREMBIMNES B A
17%%16.5% (20164 : 17% &
16.5% ) B AN FT 1S %t ©

29 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

(@)

(b)

% — ¥ EE R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT”)

Subsidiaries established in the PRC are subject to CIT
at rate of 25% (2016: 25%) during the year.

According to the Caishui (2011) No. 58 “The notice
on the tax policies of further implementation of the
western region development strategy issued by the
Ministry of Finance, the State Administration of Taxation
and the General Administration of Customs” (8%
[2011]585% B8 70 & A B b5 78 &F K 5 2 BU RS A B T UL
BRI RER @A) , companies set up in the western
region and falling into certain encouraged industry
catalogue promulgated by the PRC government will be
entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15%. Some of the
Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC set up in the western
development region are entitled to the above mentioned
preferential tax rate of 15% during the year.

Other income tax

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law of Cayman Islands and, accordingly, is
exempted from payment of Cayman Islands income tax.

Subsidiaries incorporated in Taiwan and Hong Kong are
subject to income tax at the prevailing rates of 17% and
16.5% (2016: 17% and 16.5%), respectively.
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29 Fiig®iBAx (&)

(b)

214

HtprssH (&) (b)

R & B B BT 15 7 AT i A1) B2 % o B
BEARAHERENZ AEMR
25% (20164F : 25% )t E v B

29 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

Other income tax (Continued)

The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise
using the statutory tax rate in the PRC of 25% (2016:

BIEZEZ0T : 25%) applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as
follows:
2017 2016
AR¥T AR¥ET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
B BT 1S 75 B A Profit before income tax 1,276,824 1,067,972
BRBDEEMEFE 2 Tax calculated at the statutory tax rate
IR in the PRC 319,206 266,993
TRREZMGTE: Tax effects of:
ElETHEBEAR Preferential tax rates on the profits
A 2 BE R of certain subsidiaries (416) (8,814)
AL KRERZ Utilisation of previously unrecognized
MIEEE tax losses = (1,415)
RIERIEILEFTISHL Tax losses and temporary differences
BEIHIBEERR for which no deferred income tax
TR =R asset was recognized 46,563 35,664
BARBTBA Income not subject to tax (7,126) (23,286)
AR Expenses not deductible
for tax purpose 12,142 32,751
HE—FBERARZ Income tax charge from disposal
Fri5 i 5 X2 of an associate - 138,750
T 8% 58 S hnEt 40k Additional deduction of research and
development expenses (6,174) -
— B E B AR Withholding tax on dividends from
MR Bz FEHH a PRC subsidiary 34,413 20,000
FISHFE X Income tax expense 398,608 460,643

#i— ¥ EER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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29 FEBMAX (&) 29 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

(b) HAFES (&)

BEREMEEKEE D ZAEH

(b) Other income tax (Continued)

The income tax charge relating to components of other

AT : comprehensive income is as follows:
2017 2016
BRBLAT BEXH BRB% BBiAl PEH BB
Before tax  Tax charge After tax Before tax ~ Tax charge After tax
ARBTR AR%TR ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
Hh 2 E s : Other comprehensive income:
—AEHESR — Impairment of available-for-
BERE sale financial assets 20,419 - 20,419 - - -
- HHESLR ~ Net fair value losses from
BEATE available-for-sale financial
FERE assets (3,435) - (3,435) (1,496) = (1,496)

ERTFTSH (MzE12)  Deferred income tax (Note 12)

30 BRAER 30
A
EREABFDRFEAD AERS

B AR5 AR B 317 & B 0
BB E -

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

2017 2016
KAREZEA AB(REA  Profit attributable to equity holders
(AR®TFT) of the Company (RMB’000) 878,216 607,329
BE 1T E @A i Weighted average number of ordinary
(Fh%) shares in issue (thousands) 4,319,334 4,319,334
FRERZF Basic earnings per share
(BERARBE) (RMB per share) 20.33 cents?  14.06 cents®

HRARBY EEEETL B M
R ERNETRERNBN —H-

Diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per
share as there are no potential dilutive ordinary shares of the
Company.

% — ¥ EE R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 2/] 5
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31 RE 31 DIVIDENDS
2017 2016
ARMT T AREBFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
IR AR B BB E B Proposed final dividend of
AR¥14.235 (20165 : A RMB14.23 cents
R#2.812%9) (2016: RMB2.812 cents)
per ordinary share 614,751 121,466

R2017F &2016F XA HEE
20164 &2015F 12 A31 B L FE B K
f& 25 Bl A A R¥119,834,0007T & A
R #168,125,0007T °

R2018F5A18H BT RRBAF RS
F#EBREEHE2017F12A318 1
FEZBRESBRARK14.235 (&4
B B A AR#614,751,0007T) © It &
MHHRARERBILERMGRES -

The dividends paid by the Company in 2017 and 2016 for
the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 amounted to
RMB119,834,000 and RMB168,125,000, respectively.

A dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2017
of RMB14.23 cents per share, amounting to a total dividend
of RMB614,751,000, is to be proposed at the annual
general meeting to be held on 18 May 2018. These financial
statements do not reflect this dividend payable.
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32 EEELEZRE

32 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

2017 2016
AR¥T T AR¥ET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
B P15 5 B A Profit before income tax 1,276,824 1,067,972
sNSIBIBEL 2 A% Adjustments for:
—DAREzE AR 2 (R — Share of profit of investments
% & m A (FFEE10) accounted for using equity
method (Note 10) (28,503) (93,147)
— o 3t 50 AR A 4 g — Amortisation of land use rights
i) (Note 6) 57,206 56,836
— M BEMEETE — Depreciation of property, plant and
(BMH5E7) equipment (Note 7) 1,314,559 1,338,321
—REMENTE — Depreciation of investment
(FfF7E8) properties (Note 8) 18,592 18,262
— BB EEHE — Amortisation of intangible assets
(PF3E9) (Note 9) 11,148 19,351
—BEWE HENMKEN - Losses on disposal of property, plant
518 (FI7E25) and equipment (Note 25) 12,414 25,117
— & i R EEE — Losses on disposal of
(MIzE25) land use rights (Note 25) 16,174 =
— A ESREERE — Provision for impairment of
B ( MT?ZS) available-for-sale financial assets
(Note 25) 20,419 -
—FEMRZEAI IR FEE 2~ (Reversal)/provision of inventories to
(Bm), B net realisable value (Note 14)
(M E14) (2,825) 3,821
— IR & 5 BR BORE 5 1 — Provision for impairment of
(MI5E15) trade receivables (Note 15) 6,604 3,118
— B EZ ( B zE28) — Interest expenses (Note 28) 45,917 108,045
—[EX (FI18) B#E — Foreign exchange (gains)/losses
( Bﬁms) (Note 28) 5,857 (12,461)
—THEESBM T AERFERNIS - Fair value gains on derivative
(Fff5E25) financial instruments (Note 25) (4,663) (188)
—HEREE RFIHRERZE - Gains on disposal of investment in
(Ki5E25) an associate (Note 25) - (311,125)
2,749,723 2,223,922
HEEE Changes in working capital:
—ERE S HE SKIE N — Increase in trade receivables (26,621) (16,854)
—TBNFIE e R EMER — (Decrease)/increase in prepayments,
;I CRd) ijJD deposits and other receivables (27,486) 90,626
—H A IEBNERE U FRIER 2> — Decrease in other non-current
receivables 4,163 831
—FERD — Decrease in inventories 57,979 149,369
— BB ZER — Increase/(decrease) in trade
Zan, CRd) payables 257,846 (90,861)
—H A AR R — Increase in other payables and
FEET & F3E N accruals 278,626 206,599
—H A IEBNEAE M X IEIR > - Decrease in other non-current
payables (179,560) (8,270)
BEELEZRE Cash generated from operations 3,114,670 2,555,362

#— ¥ P EZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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32 BEELEZRE (&) 32 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
(CONTINUED)
RBeRERT HEVE BEER In the statements of cash flows, proceeds from disposal of
B2 BRERRE: property, plant and equipment comprise:
2017 2016
AR¥T T AR®ET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BREDFE (7)) Net book amount (Note 7) 22,710 32,273
HEWME  WE RE&EN Losses on disposal of property,
E18 (FisE25) plant and equipment (Note 25) (12,414) (25,117)
LEME BERZEZ Proceeds from disposal of property,
Fri5s038 plant and equipment 10,296 7,156
BE BE
(B (%&) @t
Borrowings Borrowings
(Non-Current) (Current) Total
ARBTT ARBTT ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
HZ20165128318 As of 31 December 2016 500,000 2,100,169 2,600,169
BEeRE Cash flows
—BMEEBDRER ~ Inflow from financing activities - 11,062,327 11,062,327
—BEEHRLMH — Outflow from financing activities - (12,326,829) (12,326,829)
FREEH Non-cash changes
—BEH% — Currency translations = (899) (899)
HZ201712831H As of 31 December 2017 500,000 834,768 1,334,768
33 & 33 COMMITMENTS
(a) BEAREIE (@) Capital commitments
AEEF@EYE HELZENE The Group’s capital commitments in respect of
IRAHFENT property, plant and equipment are as follows:
2017 2016
AR® T ARMET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ERTAMER B Contracted but not provided for 400,084 360,040

2/] 8 #— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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33 i (&)

(b)

REHERE
EEEESEBA -

AKERENABEHEOEE HZE
HABF ETARENEEHEE
@& T AEREBZRAKNRERS
NRBBMT

33 COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Operating lease commitments

The Group is the lessee:

The Group leases buildings under non-cancellable lease
agreements. The Group’s future aggregate minimum
lease payments under these non-cancellable operating
leases are as follows:

2017 2016
AR®T T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
THA—F Not later than 1 year 22,698 35,260
HiE—F Later than 1 year and

BAEBERF not later than 5 years 50,487 46,255
A F Later than 5 years 84,164 118,889
157,349 200,404

FEFEDBLHHA - The Group is the lessor:

ASERBENABENEEEE
HETHEREYME BE &R
- REENETRANFEHRER
TR R EEHERZE T
AEBERKERNZERSBE

The Group leases out investment properties, plant
and equipment under non-cancellable operating lease
agreements. The leases have various terms and renewal
rights. The future aggregate minimum rental receipts
under these non-cancellable operating leases are as

N follows:
2017 2016
AREBT AREEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
TiBiE—F Not later than 1 year 61,952 84,570

BiE—F Later than 1 year and

BABEAF not later than 5 years 121,044 156,255
HBimAF Later than 5 years 31,872 30,966
214,868 271,791

% — ¥ EE R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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34 BBAERS 34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

REBEZREERARA/FK—EERND
BERAR([R—0G%])  DREER
HFRHABR AR EMZ AR ARQA]
EERRE—EZWBRARRAEE
ZEEEERMERARRIEBET

(a)

220

The ultimate holding company of the Group is £t — 2 {5
AR~ A (Uni-President Enterprises Corporation®) (‘UPE”), a
company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation.
The directors of the Company are of the view that the
subsidiaries of UPE, the joint ventures and associates of the
Group are regarded as related parties.

HEBAETHRS (@) Transactions with related parties:
BARAR F TR ST The following transactions are carried out with related
parties:
2017 2016
P 7 ARB®TRT ARBTT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
RTE R an #5 & - Sales of raw materials and ()
finished goods:
G—EZHEBRAR Subsidiaries of UPE 85,322 200,124
AEFEZEELER Joint ventures and associates of
/NS the Group 198,103 174,600
283,425 374,724
IRHTHLR B dp R - Purchase of raw materials and ()
finished goods:
m—1E UPE 13,178 11,723
S—EZHBRAR Subsidiaries of UPE 3,473,843 3,181,518
AEFEZEELER Joint ventures and associates of
FAl/N]| the Group 683,560 741,821
4,170,581 3,935,062
VIR % - Logistics service expense: ()
H—EIHEBRR Subsidiaries of UPE 15,584 15,545

#i— ¥ EER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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34 BHMAEXEZ (&)

(a) EERAEESETHRE: (F)

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(@) Transactions with related parties: (Continued)

2017 2016
M aE AR®TT ARETT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BHARBWA - Consultation service income: 0)
—EZWB AR Subsidiaries of UPE 43,113 65,259
KEBZ2EETER Joint ventures and associates of
/N the Group 9,276 3,328
52,389 68,587
WA - Rental income: (ii)
—EZHBAF Subsidiaries of UPE 61,720 67,964
AEEBZEERER Joint ventures and associates of
A l/NC]| the Group 2,291 730
64,011 68,694

(if)

EXERWTAARREERER
NP XL BB RS -

Lt 8K 6 T BRAE AR K R R
BN IR R 05K AR 75
Ty iR B ARRA W o 2 RSO TT -

HeEHEEMEZWA  LRE
F#973 FVRT 3L 13 2 2 {6k SRCER o

*

The English name represents the best effort by the
management of the Company in translating the Chinese
name.

Notes:

(i) The above sales and purchases of finished goods and
raw materials, receipt of logistics service and provision of
consultation service are carried out in accordance with
the terms of the underlying agreements.

(ii) Rental income represents income from lease of
properties and is charged in accordance with the terms
of agreements made between the parties.

#— ¥ KRAR 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 22/]
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34 BHMLEXEZ (&)

(b) EZEEEET AER:

M2017F12A31H AEBEHEHE
RAEE AN E KA

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

Balances with related parties:

The Group has the following significant balances with its
related parties as at 31 December 2017:

2017 2016
AR®T T ARBEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
JE U A B 5 8RR Balances due from related parties:
TEWE Z 873 Trade receivables (Note 15):
(HI&E15)
H—rEZHEBRR Subsidiaries of UPE 3,186 47,088
TET B R A A Prepayments and other receivables
JEY S IE (H1aE16) - (Note 16):
H—rEIHEBRR Subsidiaries of UPE 61,900 31,688
AEBZEEDHER Joint ventures and associates of
AN the Group 11,608 3,055
73,508 34,743
76,693 81,831
JE 1~ A B 75 8RR - Balances due to related parties:
JETTE Z 87 Trade payables (Note 21):
(ftat21)
H—EZHBAR Subsidiaries of UPE 247,596 226,578
AEBZEELER Joint ventures and associates of
i Al/N| the Group 20,426 42,333
268,022 268,911

FE W K A BRBSE 5 45 R BV R TE B

HENEERZRAFERSE-

The carrying amounts of balances due from and due to
related parties approximate their fair value as at balance
sheet dates.

222 #— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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34 BHMAEXEZ (&)

(a)

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

FTEEEBEASHH (c) Key management compensation:
2017 2016
ARE T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
Fe LA REMEF  Salaries, bonus and other welfares 12,463 14,085
35 AAREEABERRMHESEE 35 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
AKABEEEEBR (a) Balance sheet of the Company
2017 2016
AR¥T T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
R—FKHWBAFZKE Investment in a subsidiary 7,806,256 7,693,167
R—KEE QR 2z Interest in an associated company 1,436 1,436
AtHEEMEE Available-for-sale financial assets 15,359 13,863
Y BE KR Property, plant and equipment 6 11
H b IE R B U FRIB Other non-current receivables - 494
7,823,057 7,708,971
REBEE Current assets
AR FIE X Prepayments and other receivables
H h fE WK IE 871 1,329
JE Y BT B8 & R 5RIR Amounts due from subsidiaries 303,764 676,327
BLEENGIEE S Loans to subsidiaries - 104,864
HehkBeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 39,191 861,683
343,826 1,644,203
EE#E Total assets 8,166,883 9,353,174
% — ¥ EE R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35 APREERERRHFES®E 35 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE

(#&) MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)
(@ AABEEEFRXR(E) (a) Balance sheet of the Company (Continued)
2017 2016
AR¥ET T AREEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
i EQUITY
& 7 Share capital 39,764 39,764
%15 5 18 Bk Share premium account 4,829,899 4,829,899
H A Other reserves 1,381,078 1,364,094
IRE & H Retained earnings 1,391,044 467,988
Mg Total equity 7,641,785 6,701,745
afE LIABILITIES
FkRBERE Non-current liabilities
EE Borrowings 500,000 500,000
REBAE Current liabilities
H th FE 5 5K R Other payables and accruals
FEETE A 12,030 51,429
BE Borrowings 13,068 2,100,000
25,098 2,151,429
FR =R Total liabilities 525,098 2,651,429
ExREEHEEE Total equity and liabilities 8,166,883 9,353,174

AAREEBBRER2018F3 27
HEEEgit s YHUTESEARE

Zo

224

B2EE
LO Chih-Hsien
HITESE

Executive Director

behalf.

Bz
LIU Xinhua
HITEFE

Executive Director
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35 KNTEEEBREHE®E 35 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE

(&) MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)
(b) QB FHEE (b) Reserve movements of the Company
EdEH AVERE RERF @5t
Contribution Fair value Retained
surplus reserves earnings Total
AREFTT ARETT AREFT AREFTL
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R20165181H2  Balance at 1 January 2016
&tk 1,549,203 (15,488) (19,348) 1,514,367
FERM Profit for the year - - 487,336 487,336
AHEHESBEEY  Fair value gains on available-for-sale
ATENGE financial assets - (1,496) = (1,496)
B 2015F 228 Dividends relating to 2015, paid (168,125) - - (168,125)
A20165128318 2 Balance at 31 December 2016
-3 1,381,078 (16,984) 467,988 1,832,082
FERM Profit for the year - - 1,042,890 1,042,890
AHHELREEY  Fair value losses on avalable-for-sale
AFEER financial assets - (3,435) = (3,435)
AEHESBEE  Imparment of avalable-for-sale
ZRE financial assets = 20,419 = 20,419
2% {20164 2 #% 8 Dividends relating to 2016, paid - - (119,834) (119,834)
MW2017F128318 2 Balance at 31 December 2017
g3 1,381,078 - 1,391,044 2,772,122

% — ¥ EE R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 225
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36 EEEARESR 36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS
(@ EBRESTBRAEZ#HME (@) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

BEERERITHRAB ZHMEH The remuneration of every director and the chief
HIEAT - executive is set out below:

ESps ik 2 BERA EEEE @t

Discretionary Housing
Name of Director Fees Salary bonuses allowance Total

ARBTRT ARETR AR®Tz ARBTR ARET:x
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

20174 2017
HOIES Executive directors
BELSEHE Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (&% 5% ) 163 314 4,030 - 4,507
AFELE Mr. Liu Xinhua ( 2|72 )
(PEE() (Note (i) 35 672 2,613 240 3,560
fREIE A& Mr. CHEN Kuo-Hui (FREL/E)
(PR EEG) (Note (i) 20 368 - - 388
FHTES Non-executive directors
BRfind Mr. Su Tsung-Ming (B£2#) 39 - - - 39
REELE Mr. Hou Jung-Lung (&4 )
(GEY (Note (i) 17 - - - 17
FREIE % & Mr. CHEN Kuo-Hui (B EI/E)
(PR Gi)) (Note (i) 23 299 - 72 394
BUFHNTES Independent non-executive
directors
REELE Mr. Chen Sun-Te (FRE %) 246 - - - 246
BLERE Mr. Fan Ren-Da (3512 $> 246 - - - 246
KE2h4E Mr. Lo Peter (B2 E) 246 - - - 246
RERLE Mr. Chen Johnny (BRE%) 235 - - - 235
1,270 1,653 6,643 312 9,878
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36 EER/ARER (8) 36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
(@ EBERBESTHRAEZHME (a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(%&) (Continued)
EENL ik i migEa FERE st
Discretionary Housing
Name of Director Fees Salary bonuses allowance Total

ARBTT  ARBTT ARETR AREBTT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

20165 2016
HITES Executive directors
EREEE Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (%2 %) 63 333 3,200 - 3,59
RERBEEE Mr. Hou Jung-Lung (44 )
(B 2 i) (Note (i) 24 672 1,374 120 2,190
BREELE Mr. CHEN Kuo-Hui (FREL/Z)
(B aE (i) ) (Note (i) 42 736 491 144 1,413
FHTES Non-executive directors
B Mr. Su Teung-Ming (B£44) 42 = = = 42
REBEEE Mr. Hou Jung-Lung (44 )
(B 2 i) (Note (i) 24 - - = 24
BUFRTES Independent non-executive directors
BREmEE Mr. Chen Sun-Te (FRZ%2) 258 - - - 258
BLERSE Mr. Fan Ren-Da (G5 ) 258 - - - 258
BREXE Mr. Lo Peter (% 2) 258 - - - 258
REREE Mr. Chen Johnny (FRE%) 250 - - - 250
1,219 1,741 5,065 264 8,289
B 5 Note
(i)  H2017F3F2HEZ L (i) Appointed on 25 March 2017.
(iy MR2017F7A1BHBITESTE (i) Re-designated from executive director to position as a
EFEHMITESE- non-executive director on 1 July 2017.
(i) R20174F5 8198 BAE - (i)  Retired on 19 May 2017.
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36 EEEMRER (&)

(a)

EERHEETHRA
(%)

2=

A

REL E20174%F k2016512 A 31
BIEFE BERNARESHEMT
RS - NA TN EEERES
XA B & VE 5 00 BB AN & B sk R
B RE S ERBERmE-

ARARWERAEE 2 ZHFT L
ARREENETHEBEERER
(T AEEXEE)  ARAF
JE 8 SR By 3 AN 4R [ REAAT B D
AREMZEARR S  RERAH -

RAFEE  HSEESCHIMAKK
AT A 3R R 4% 7 Sk BRE B AR A

37 KB LA

B AR B R2017F12A318 2

36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

(@

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, no
directors of the Company waived any emoluments and
no emoluments were paid by the Company to any of
the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits or termination benefits during the
year.

37 SUBSIDIARIES

The following sets out the details of the principal subsidiaries

FENBARFE- of the Company as at 31 December 2017.
AMEIEAR/
ARER R A ERTRARRE FisRE TEEY/REHY
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2017 2016
EEES Directly owned
F—mMERER AR HERE 899,580,000% 1T 100% 100%  BEER/FHEHS
2006464290
Uni-President Asia Holdings Ltd. Cayman Islands, USD899,580,000 Investment holding/
29 June 2006 Cayman Islands
BiEEs Indirectly owned
G—0F (FE)REFRAA HE g 1,080,170,00035 7T 100% 100%  REHER/HE
199863 A10H
(Uni-President Enterprises (China) Shanghai, PRC. USD1,080,170,000 Investment holding/PRC

Investments Ltd.*)

228

10 March 1998

#i— ¥ EER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Annual Report 2017 F#§



37 WEB A (&)

e B R R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

EMALEAR/
NRARB B KA BRTRAZRE P e TEEYKEHY
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2017 2016
MEF-CERMEB AR HESEARE 37,500,000% 70 100% 100%  AEREEHRE R@
199241 F13H F M,/ e
(Uni-President Enterprises (Xinjiang) ~ Urumqj, PRC. USD37,500,000 100% 100% Manufacturing and sale of
Food Co., Ltd.") 13 January 1992 beverages, foods and
instant noodles/PRC
RBGE—CERMERDA g & 65,000,000 7T 100% 100%  AERHEESGHERAEE/
199354 A14H F
(Chengdu President Enterprises Chengdu, PRC. USD65,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Food Co., Ltd.”) 14 April 1993 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
BLG—CERBERAR FEEL 96,000,00057¢ 100% 100%  EERBEFHERSEE/
199355 414H i
(Kunshan President Enterprises Kunshan, PRC. USD96,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Food Co., Ltd.") 14 May 1993 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
RES—CERRARAF HEHE 59,600,000% 7 100% 100%  EERBEFHEAEE/
1993F7A7H H
(Wuhan President Enterprises Wuhan, PRC. USD59,600,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Food Co., Ltd.*) 7 July 1993 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
EMG—rEERAF FE M 75,000,000% 70 100% 100%  FEREESKEAEE/
1994412 A5H h
(Guangzhou President Guangzhou, PRC. USD75,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Corp.”) 5 December 1994 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
BER—tEERAR RS 39,900,000% 7 100% 100%  EERBEFHEAEE/
1995F6 4150 th
(Shenyang President Shenyang, PRC. USD39,900,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*) 15 June 1995 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
BESG—CEERAR FEAR 60,000,000% 1 100% 100%  EERBEFHEAEE/
199852 A23H 3
(Hefei President Enterprises Hefei, PRC. USD60,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.") 23 February 1998 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
REEF—CEBRARA RERRE 29,200,000% 7 100% 100% EEREESHEAEE/
199852 A26H H
(Harbin President Enterprises Harbin, PRC. USD29,200,000 Manufacturing and sale of

Co., Lid."

26 February 1998

% — ¥ EE R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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37 WEL A (&)

37 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

AMRLER
RAEE R AL ERTRBERE Fi s R TERYLEHY
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2017 2016
ERFE—REERAA FEER 52,900,000 7% 100% 100%  4AERHERH/HE
200142A20H
(Beijing President Enterprises Beijing, PRC. USD52,900,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Drinks Co., Ltd.*) 20 February 2001 beverages/PRC
HESR—CEERAR HEEE 44,000,000% 70 100% 100%  FEREESKKAEE/
200145H18H F
(Nanchang President Nanchang, PRC. USD44,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.") 18 May 2001 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
BMGE—CEERAF B RM 20,000,000 7T 100% 100%  EERBEFHEAEE/
2001674198 H
(Fuzhou President Fuzhou, PRC. USD20,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 19 July 2001 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
G- EERAR 1 B 66 ) 37,000,000% 1T 100% 100%  EERBERHEAEE/
200256 4250 HE
(Zhengzhou President Zhengzhou, PRC. USD37,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 25 June 2002 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
G- (LB)BEERAA HE 8,600,000% 7T 100% 100% S& AFRERRRES/
2005%10A178 FE
(President (Shanghai) Shanghai, PRC. USD8,600,000 Trading of beverages,
Trading Co., Ltd.) 17 October 2005 instant noodles and
food products/PRC
GLEERNERARA =) 1,000,000%f & % 100% 100%  ANERER/ 8k
200612 H28H
(Tong Ren Corp. Limited.*) Taiwan NTD1,000,000 Human resource
28 December 2006 management/Taiwan
ERG—CERRBBRLA REEH 30,000,000% 7% 100% 100%  HEREEHHEAEE/
2007411 A8A H
(Kunming President Enterprises Kunming, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Food Co., Ltd.”) 8 November 2007 beverages and instant
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EMALEAR/
NRARB B KA ERTRAERAE P e TEEYKEHY
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2017 2016
SEEABBR DA B 1,761,920 7 100% 100%  REER/EE
200846 A5H
(Champ Green Capital Hong Kong USD1,761,920 Investment holding/
Co., Limited.) 5 June 2008 Hong Kong
BEH-—RRKERAH hEES 4,150,000% 7T 100% 100%  EERBEESH/FEH
200942 A20H
(Bama President Mineral Water Bama, PRC. USD4,150,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.%) 20 February 2009 beverages/PRC
B—LEEBERERAA G 4,881,355,6007% 7T 100% 100% REERKES
200954 A 308
(Uni-President Hong Kong Hong Kong HKD4,881,355,600 Investment holding and
Holdings Co., Ltd.) 30 April 2009 trading
EEREERFA(LE) HE g 150,000 7 100% 100%  EEH#
BARAA 200958128
(Champ Green (Shanghai) Shanghai, PRC. USD150,000 Management Consulting
Consulting Co., Ltd.") 12 May 2009
ROB—CEERAA HERY 30,000,000 7 100% 100%  EERBEFHEAEE/
201049A1H h
(Changsha President Changsha, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 1 September 2010 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
REF—HEEER Hh g D AR 1,000,000 100% 100%  EfRRH/RE
BRAA 201058 A24H
(Chengdu Unifies The Skillful Chengdu, PRC. RMB1,000,000 Catering services/PRC
Noodle Restaurant Dining 24 August 2010
Culture Limited Company?)
EIR—CEARAF BT 25,000,0005 7 100% 100%  EERBEFHERSEE/
2010%10728H HE
(Zhanjiang President Zhanjiang, PRC. USD25,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*) 28 October 2010 beverages and instant
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37 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

AMRLER
AAEH R AL ERTRBERE P R 4B TERYLEHY
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2017 2016
BER—CEERAR HEmE 30,000,000 7T 100% 100%  HEREEHMKAEE/
2010F11 A 168 HE
(Nanning President Nanning, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*) 16 November 2010 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
REG—EERAA RERE 20,000,000 T 100% 100% EERBERN/HE
2010F12H2A
(Changchun President Changchun, PRC. USD20,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 2 December 2010 beverages/PRC
M &s—tEBRAR o B 5% 4 20,000,000 7% 100% 100%  SHRERILE HE
2010612150
(Akesu President Akesu, PRC. USD20,000,000 Wholesale of forage and
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*) 15 December 2010 fertilizer/PRC
ZNF—CEERAR hERM 30,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  EERBERHEAEE/
201161 4280 3
(Taizhou President Taizhou, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.") 28 January 2011 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
EER—EERAR hEEE 33,600,000 1T 100% 100%  EOERRRAXERLE
201142168 RTE/HH
(Chongqing President Chongging, PRC. USD33,600,000 Wholesale and retail of pre-
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*) 16 February 2011 packaged food and dairy
products/PRC
ARS—CEXERAR Bl B R 20,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  AEREESEKAEE/
201142248 HE
(Baiyin President Enterprises Baiyin, PRC. USD20,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.%) 24 February 2011 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
FEG-EBRREEEARAR  HELE AR 60,000,007 100% 100%  AEEE/HE
200348A1H
(Uni-President Shanghai Pearly Shanghai, PRC. RMB60,000,000 Leasing business/PRC

Century Co., Ltd. %)

1 August 2003
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMALEAR/
NRARB B KA ERTRAERAE P e TEEYKEHY
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2017 2016
PER—GEEREN HE g AR 20,000,007 100% 100%  BAHRH
ARAA 20037 A 18H
(Uni-President Shanghai Shanghai, PRC. RMB20,000,000 Investment holding/PRC
Management Consulting 18 July 2003
Co., Ltd.%)
BEG—CEERAT FEEE 22,000,000 7T 100% 100% EERBEERR/HE
201143 A8H
(Hainan President Chengmai, PRC. USD22,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 8 March 2011 beverages/PRC
ARER—EBRAA HE AR 35,000,000 70 100% 100%  EEREEFHEAEE/
2010411 A15H HEl
(Shijiazhuang President Shijiazhuang, PRC. USD35,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*) 15 November 2010 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
ERA—CEERAR HELER 30,000,000% 7 100% 100%  EERBESHESEE/
201154 A188 F
(Jinan President Jinan, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.") 18 April 2011 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
BB CEERAR TEER 30,000,00057¢ 100% 100%  AEREEHHRAEE/
201147 A6H f
(Guiyang President Guiyang, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.) 6 July 2011 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
RS —ERIKERAA HEIE X 4,800,000% T 100% 100%  £EBERK/HE
20117 A6H
(Wuxue President Enterprises Wuxue, PRC. USD4,800,000 Manufacturing mineral
Mineral Water Co. Ltd.") 6 July 2011 water/PRC
LEGESRESARAA HE g 950,000% 7T 100% 100%  EERRMRAEERLE
2011567280 /HE
(President (Shanghai) Private Shanghai, PRC. USD950,000 Wholesale of pre-packaged
Label Marketing & 28 June 2011 food and dairy products/
Trading Co., Ltd.”) PRC

% — ¥ EE R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
Annual Report 2017 £ &

233



e MR ERR MR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37 WEL A (&)

234

37 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

AMRLER
AR AR R AH ERTRAZRE Pl TEEY/BEBE
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2017 2016
mME—EERAR SET 40,000,000 7T 100% 100%  HEREEHMKAEE/
2011664218 H
(Hangzhou President Hangzhou, PRC. USD40,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*) 21 June 2011 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
BGMGE—EERAE FREIARM 33,000,000 T 100% 100% EERHERH /&
201149H2AH
(Xuzhou President Xuzhou, PRC. USD33,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 2 September 2011 beverages/PRC
f-HE(BIL)BERAR REE L 10,000,000% 7 100% 100% EEERRNE/HE
201243 A28H
(President (Kunshan) Kunshan, PRC. USD10,000,000 Wholesale of pre-packaged
Trading Co., Ltd.”) 28 March 2012 food products/PRC
RS- tEFRAR RETE 30,000,000 7 100% 100%  AEREEHRH/HE
201263 A9H
(Henan President Henan, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*) 9 March 2012 beverages/PRC
ERG—CEBRKERAA hE R 1,700,000% 7T 100% 100%  BEEERGRIEERIE
2012654308 /HE
(Wuyuan President Enterprises Wuyuan, PRC. USD1,700,000 Wholesale of pre-packaged
Mineral Water Co., Ltd.”) 30 May 2012 food and dairy products/
PRC
RES—CEER AR HEIRRE 50,000,000 70 100% 100%  EERBERHRFEE/
201297 A6H h
(Shaanxi President Shaanxi, PRC. USD50,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.) 6 July 2012 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
LEG—EEERAT FERER 30,000,000 7T 100% 100% EERHERBRAEE,/
2012911 A5R ]
(Jiangsu President Nanjing, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 5 November 2012 beverages and instant
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37 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

EMALEAR/
NRARB HHRAH ERTRAERAE P e TEEYKEHY
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2017 2016
RAWF—© % (FH)BRK A AR #180,000,0007C 100% 100%  EEBERK/HE
ARAA 2013F3A15H
(Changbaishan Mountain Jilin, PRC. RMB180,000,000 Manufacturing mineral
President Enterprises (Jilin) 15 March 2013 water/PRC
Mineral Water Co., Ltd.*)
F—rE(RIL)EXRE REE I A& #60,000,0007T 100% 100% B E/HE
BRAA 201354 H98
(President Enterprises (Kunshan) Kunshan, PRC. RMB60,000,000 Real estate/PRC
Real Estate Development 9 April 2013
Co., Ltd.%)
BER—GEERAR RER 16,000,000 7T 100% 100%  AEREEHH/HE
201354 A22H
(Ningxia President Yinchuan, PRC. USD16,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.) 22 April 2013 beverages/PRC
ARLH—CEERAA B A A 30,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  FERHEESFKRAEE/
2013%5H9H H
(Uni-President Enterprises Hohhot, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Inner Mongolia) Co., Ltd.") 9 May 2013 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
IWES—CEEBR AR HEEF 30,000,00057¢ 100% 100%  AERBEEHH/HE
2013%F9A5H
(Shanxi President Jinzhong, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*) 5 September 2013 beverages/PRC
HER—EXERAR HE g 40,000,000 7T 100% 100%  EEEE@ILE/H
2001%10A 148
(Uni-President Enterprises Shanghai, PRC. USD40,000,000 Wholesale of pre-packaged
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd") 14 October 2001 food products/PRC
RS — E B AR MR P ] B 19,500,000% 7T 100% 100%  4EREERH /HE
BRAA 201311 A1H
(Uni-President Enterprise (Hutubi) Hutubi, PRC. USD19,500,000 Manufacturing and sale of

Tomato Products Technology

Co., Ltd.*

1 November 2013
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AMRLER
ARER R AH ERTRARRA FiisRE TEEYRKEHY
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2017 2016
FEG-ERHER HE L 35,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  HEREEHMKAEE/
BRAA 201455R158 H
(Uni-President Enterprises Shanghai, PRC. USD35,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Shanghai) Drink&Food 15 May 2014 beverages and instant
Co., Ltd.") noodles/PRC
G—HE (R ERAA R AR #96,000,0007 100% 100% EEERGHE FE
200449H23H
(Uni-President Trading Hubei, PRC. RMB96,000,000 Wholesale of pre-packaged
(Hubei) Co., Ltd.%) 23 September 2004 food products/PRC
REG—EERAA REXE 12,000,000% T 100% 100%  AEREEHRE/HE
201448A158
(Uni-President Enterprises Tianjin, PRC. USD12,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Tiandin) Co., Ltd") 15 August 2014 beverages/PRC
HER—CEERAR hEHE 6,000,000 7 100% 100%  EEREEHRK/HE
2015434108
(Uni-President Enterprises Hunan, PRC. USD6,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Hunan) Co., Ltd*) 10 March 2015 beverages/PRC
ERFMAMITE mEES AR %100,000,0007C 100% 100%  HEREERE/HE
BRATF 200946 H9A
(Yantai Tongli Beverage VYantai, PRC. RMB100,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Industries Co., Ltd") 9 June 2009 beverages/PRC
G-rEELRAN REIE L 1,200,000% 7T 100% 100%  EERHEBRRY,HE
ARARA 1995124278

(President Enterprises

(Kunshan) Food Products

Technology Co., Ltd.*)

FERARE - 48

Kunshan, PRC.
27 December 1995

EBHKEAR

ERERECER -RASHSEMK
VZ—RWBRADNEHRREZERE

ERA] e

© RXARDARNEREENET XA

BEEET-

USD1,200,000

Manufacturing and sale of
seasoning/PRC

All subsidiaries located in the PRC, Taiwan and Hong Kong
are limited liability entities. One subsidiary incorporated in the
Cayman lIslands is an exempted company with limited liability.

* The English name represents the best effort by management of

the Company in translating the Chinese name.
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UNI-PRESIDENT CHINA HOLDINGS LTD.
(a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(—KRHESREEMALNERARE)

(Stock Code B3 #RSE: 220)
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